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PINNACLE VISION

t i Mg Lo o

To be the best financial services firm ( “Our p.revious rel'ariénship with another

and the best place to work in Tennessee.

—

local financial institution was adequate, bu
r |
what a pleasant surprise to work with an

organnauon that goes beyond adequate to

excellent.” ! '
“Never have | experienced a bank with the s : —
A A . (LJUDY CHEATHAM, MANI_I’F"AETLJRINE CLIENT
consideration and concern you show jor your : -
clients. It’s as though I have a partner and \ '
: " ? !
not just a bank. 4 |

/MACKENZIE cacLT.
K.SMALL BUSINESS TSLIENT

i ! i
N

ﬂl realized you guys have clierry -picked the best bankmg \
minds in the area, and under.s!andmg how Pzrmade is
structured and operated explains how you were able to
accomplish it. Our situation really has been u case where

a lending institution played a huge role in making some-

|
1

; i :
r(JEFFREY SEEMAN,
\\MEDIDAL FRACTIDE CLIENT

\one s dreams come to life.”

“I love working at Pinnacle because I feel I matter io : !

the company and I can contribute to the company's
growth and values. My clients matter. I feel | can truly i !

4 L-. '

address their concerns and do what is best for them.”

(F'INNAELE ASSDDIATEJ\} ; I

“I have worked for three other banks

and Pinnacle is the best company I have

worked for. This company .rieally seems to
; [ e

These last 16 months at Pinnacle havh care about me as a person.”

been the most exciting time in my

i i
- —(PINNACLE ASSDCIATE)
[ 1

banking career. Working with excellence i . J i

and high values make a difference

. J
every day. !
L—(F'INNACLE ASSDDIATE)/ ‘
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- T o0 Our Sharehofders: :
" o

Pmnacle s vision since 1ts foundmg in 2000 has been to be the best financial services provider and best
place to'work in Termessee Our results in 2006 demonstrate that our commitment to this vision has not

' wavered o , .o

Successful Integration of Cavalry Bancorp

" Pinnacle fulfilled its 2005 pledge to integrate Cavalry Bancorp ina way that would enhance. shareholder

:value We met all the integration milestones on time and within budget and delivered on. the financial
synerg1es we-promised. As a result of the integration, Pinnacle grew faster than the two firms had been
growmg on a combined basis-prior to the-merger. While most acquisitions impact the acquired market
negatively, our Pinnacle associates in Murfreesboro strengthened Cavalry’s No. | market share position
among Rutherford County’s financial institutions by increasing our share from 24 2% in 2005 t0 25.1% in
2006. N ! _ S o '

I |

Best Financial Services Provider -
Attractmg Tennessee’s most experienced financial professmnals is the cornersione of Pinnacle’s reputatron

- for providing effective advice and distinctive service.’Our integration with Cavalry enhanced our team and

1allowed us to grow faster than all of our competitors in Nashville — a testimony both to the quality of
assocrates we have ass1mrlated and the incredible word-of-mouth reputatlon we have established. In 2006,
Prrmacle -

L Increased six-year organic growth to $1. 35 btlhon in total assets

= (rew brokerage and'trust assets under management to nearly $1 billion

. Grew deposrt market share from 9" in the Nashville MSA in 2005 to 5" in 2006

. Malntamed our dtstmctwe service quallty accordrng to 14 measures of clrent satisfaction

Best Place to Work "T .
We realize we cannot provide exceptional client service and shareholder value without the people who are
Pmnacle That’s why we-are constantly focused on building:a culture that attracts and retains the best

L ﬁnanc1a1 services professionals in the market, Our approach was reaffirmed in 2006 as we:

t
|
-

-
.-‘-, I N
];

1. ~ Achieved a cumulative average of 4 5 (on scale of 1to5)on 12 standard measures of employee

0 "engagement D : "

~. Won the Nashville Business Journal's Best Place to Work award for the fourth consecutive year

»  Rewarded our assocrates for exceedmg soundness and earning thresholds by disbursing $4 1 mtlllon '
in cash incentives to associates throughout the ﬁrm

Shareholder Value . :
IOur focus on being the best ﬁnaneral services provider and best place to work meéans strong financial

“ performance for our shareholders. Here are some of the results our associates achieved for you in 2006:

[ . 339% increase ini total shateholder return from Jan. 1, 2006 through Dec. 31, 2006 versus 13% for the
Southeast Regional Bank Index (source: MSN.com) Lt

~

= 17.3%.increase in depos1ts versus the national average of 9.6% (source: FDIC Quarterly Banking Report —
December 2006)

|
|

+ = 29.1% increase in loans versus the natronal average of 7. 7% (source: Fl)IC Quarterly Ban.kmg Report -
I December 2006)
i
|
|

« ~ 0.05% net loan charge-offs versus the national average of 0. 38% (sourec FDIC Quarterly Banking Report -
" December 2006) .
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Continued Organic Growth A T R
We believe Pinnacle has the existing capacrty to incrzase its assets by an additional $1 billion through
organic growth in the next three years without.adding any additional financial advrsors or branch ofﬁccs.
We have targeted $3.5 bitlion in total assets and 1. 30% ROA by 2010 as the result of future organic growth

in the dynamic Middi€ Tennessee market. ’_’ . o R

P RN . s . - . . N

: | M
Additional Growth Opportunities . S
Pinnacle continues to monitor acquisition’ and market extcns:on opportumtles Wrth our proven track record
of successfully integrating another institution into our culture, we continue to look for acquisition targetis in
Middle Tennessee that strategically accelerate our geographrc dtstrlbutton are ¢ urrently producmg above
average growth and could fit into our hlgrh perforrnmg culture. We have a bias toward 'structuring any '
acquisitions in a way that sharcholders realize eammgs accretion in the first 12 months We arg'also
interested in capitalizing on de novo market extensions in other urban Tennessee markets wherc we believe
we could build a $500 to $750 rn11110r1 franchise in less than five years.

oo
P

Giving Back '

Affordable housmg is the centerpiece of Pinnacle’s.commitment tc. the commumty In recent years,
Pinnacle has partnered with affordable housing organizations to build 85 homes in Nashvtlle Franklin,
Murfreesboro and Shelbyville. In 2006, Pinnacle committed another $250,000 for down payment assistance
to ensure that the availability of affordal: le housing continues to grow. .

:
4 i
1

- Pinnacle’s addmonal community 1nvestments in 2006 totaled over $220 000. Equally 1mportant are the |-

« contributions Pinnacle made in the form of over 9,400 volunteer hours and significant community
leadership roles. For example, we have Pinnacle asscciates serving as charrpersons of Destination

. Rutherford, an economic development initiative to build a thriving | Rutherford (,ounty, the Nashvrllc

+ Downtown Partnershrp and the Cheekwood Botanical Gardens and Fme Arts Museum

: o ! a . L

Commitment for 2007 S ' : e '! ST
This year has bcgun as a challenging year for the equity markets Nonetheless we will continue fo dehver '

* .distinctive service and effective’advice t3 our clients, which we believe will allow us to outperform our |- .
competitors and maintain’ the supenor track record we've enjoyed since mceptmn We thank you for your
continued support and confidence. We welcome your questions, feedback and vrsrts at any tlme

i t
+
I

-~ Ry

Sincerely,

* M. Terry Tumner .-’ : Robert A. McCabe, It
President and CEO - : .~ Chairman

v

e e e e - =
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IS X Consecutlve Years of Extraordmary Results S

| : o -

Since inception in 2000, Pinnacle has had a compelling vision to take- care of clients better, than any. other*
ﬁnanmal institution-in the Middle Tennessee market and to create a work env1ronment that attracts and

i b

keeps the most talented and expenenced ﬁnanc1al professionals. . o : { R A
l v ..'.- <

This vision, combined w1th well-executed strategles allowed Pinnacle to fulﬁll its contlnumg commltment

to increase shareholder value in 2006. Over the course of the year, the value of our shares increased by.

32 8%. Over the past five years, PNFP stock value has increased by 647%, sngmﬁcantly outperformlng

i : N

Our board of drrectors has establishéd annual and long-range targets for 20 metrics categonzed by
soundness profi tablllty, growth and market effectiveness. These encompass a combination of traditional
measures such as net income and return on assets (below) and nontraditional measures, such as associate
rletentlon and client. service quahty (pp. 4 and 6). : :

. ... Netincome . : A | EPS Growth
| (m milltons) : ' : : - ! .
2000 T --m--mme DT Rl 140 - — S f e PR I
. N . N - 1l
" oo : I -."‘.- _' S o .51.20"'- ____________ .__n__u_nwn; ,,,,,,,, T :
$15.00 S - ’ : : : ' : ’
t SLO0 - mm - - -som o SRR SR S
' - . I —-- e e
S10.00 - - -~ v - - mmmme oo - - , _ o \
I '“" ‘ . . 50:60_..'__._____.__-__-_-‘____ .___T __I--;I“ e
b ‘ ' * - ' : !
5500 ! ____________ 040 fo-mmm e T R | SR
. ‘t i '.:- - o . T
O - 830207 ---mo oo ey ai i T
1 ST . ' . . : . l_1 . * ’
$0.00. N — . D —! ; — - - §0.00 + 1 - - S -
- ] B I o w . Y e ~ o K e e
B TETE SEEEE SR T & - E o EUE
=1 . . 1 . ! o
I + . L R :
1 t . % * T
i . PN LI § "oy +t .
i Return on Assets ' ' Return on Tangible Equity.
a [ . R 5!
' 1.25%v17———~-------—--'- —————————————————— 18.0% T - - = === oo m o e
. . rf
I . , . :
- - o | ___ e e e e s -
LO0% - mmmmmmmm oo oo - 13.0% . " :
. 1 __'_ ] : - !
{ ; 120% +-Z------m-So oo Y- F - --
0.75% +--—--—-—-—---- e I B I BRI . : ‘
' : : 90% 1 ---mm - mm oo me e ok B ks B e --
» |
0.50% S I R B 6%
N+ F-——""- kP F 171 A Rl
0.25% +; Ra. I EET I 30% - —ememae| [} --- N (NN G NI .
L]
| |
0.0% '
0.00% . . ° - - - - -
oo o, w P S = g =S S
S 2 2 = b £ b g
th - .

2006 excludes the impact of goodwill from average stockholders’ equity
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I_.'
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Drivers of COntinuedGro‘Wth and Performance . - P
.

, Slx key advantages give Pinnacle great rnomentum for continued growth and supenor performance again in
. 2007. Collectively these advantages create a “once in a generation” opportumty for Pmnacle s shareholders
* and associates: : ‘ , |
- Effective business strategies i
.« - Presence in a “hot” metropolitan market : ' .{ :
. = Vulnerable competition ‘ Lo
. . Successful integration of Cavalry Bancorp by
= Expansion opportunities throughout Tennessee ' o
. Shareholder ahgnment i ~ |

-Effective Business Strategties f
‘ i !
" When we founded Pmnacle in’ 2000 we developed strategles to deuver effectw-= advrce and distinctive
service to our clients. Today we embrace these same strategles wrth even greater Ieonwetlon
"+ Hire and retain hlghlv experienced and guallﬁed ﬁnancnal servu:es Dl ofessmnals with successful
track records, including client contact personnel who have an established'client base of small
- businesses and consumer houscholds in Middle Tennessee .

)
Y.

e - '

w“ia
- . . o

[ i

Assocmte Engagement Survey Results November 2006
Scale: 1 (lowest) to 5 (hlghest) : 1
O . o PNFP US.
‘Msinéss Measures- ' Avg.  Ave.
I know what is expected of me at work | 147 . 43
Ihave the materials and equipment I need to do my work properly ' 4.6 3.9
I have the opportumty to do what I do best every day at work : ]4 5 36
In the last 7 days I have received recognition or praise for good work | (4.4 34
My superv1sor or someone at work seems to care about me as a person | 4.7 4.0
"There is someone at work that encourages my development | if_'4.5 3.7
My oplnlons seem to count P44 3.6
The mission of my company makes me fee] like my work is important. i 4.6 3.6
My coworkers are committed to doing quality waork { 4.6 3.9
I have a best friend at work | 4.0 34
T have talked with someone about my progress in the last s1x months 4.4 4.0
- | This last year, I have had opportunities to learn and grow ~ o 1_4.5 39
Overall Average Score , : L 3.8

Lo
b
i f
[
[
-l

H
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}' « -..Provide individualized attention with consistent, local decision-making authority. Our financial - -
{
E

advisors focus on having close working relationships with their clients and ensuring timeliness in -

decisions without the hassle of out-of-state authorizations. This local decision-making authority has

: | been a competitive advantage in creating loan growth whilé maintaining excellent credit quality.
| : : . )
! Loan Growth : _ : Net Charge-Offs
! (in millions) : ' "
3 0.45% - - === -~ S e
| : . ]
$1400 |- - —mmmm e )
s]'l,zoo 1 R, R . 0.35% +----- 2fnieieaeiiie it
; .
S000 Lo oo
- . 0.25% £ —-~----------— B ...
$800 oo mmmmme oo __.____- N . '
1 . . .
$600 fo--mmemmmmee oo Tt 05% t-- -
7400 A . ’ - B
$200 £ ------- '-I - 0.05% - ----- . NENE| | NS .--
I $- __-_r_ e Ly —_ ....,.__‘ . a . . T T T - -] T —
| S 2 2 e . g ] = __-..8 s S s
- 2. § § & § - % % Lo -G o-mm g g i 2"
i CL : .

- Offer a full line of financial services to include traditional depository and credit products, as well as .
sophisticated investment, treasury management and insurance products. This year we added insurance .
and trust capabilities through our merger with Cavalry and the hiring of other experienced
professionais. i

Distribution of Revenue Across Key Fee Businesses

B 2005 | |
| 2006

$4.5

$40

335

33.0

$2.5

!

i

|

|

l

t

| sso - — _ "
l ‘
i

!

|

|

|

;o 820

51.5

$1.0

- 305

300

Service charges on deposit Investment services Insurunce sales commissions Trust fees
accounts {(New in 2006) {New In 2006)

hXY
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« - Capitalize on client dissatisfaction caused by our competitors’ less-than- sansfactory response to the
financial needs of today’s sophisticated consumers and small- to mid-size businesses. We survey all
chents annually and new clients more frequently to be sure we are exceedmg their expectations.

N
o . e i
‘ |
Representative Measures of Pinnacle Client Satisfaction

Januaary — December 2006 P

v

Involves other spec{elists when needed to ensure 1 get the best edvic:e 4.77
: Demonstrates knowledge and experience necessary to meet my needs 4.88
Provides timely responses to my requests 1 : 4.85
Ensures accuracy in all our work i 1 4.85
Is recogmzably better than compeutors - A i f ‘ 4.81
5-Strongly Agree; 4-Agree, 3 Somewhat Agree 2- Dlsagree l-Strongly Disagree -~ - | |,

*Based on more than 1,600 responses : . . 4 ‘

«  Offer extraordinary convenience by building a distribution system with online banking, telephqne
banking, courier deposit pick-up, and ATMs across the globz to pr0v1de options for clients to access

financial services 24/7. _ _— !
[

Pinnacle Online Banking Usage

47%

. 46% _ ‘ :
. . ' i '
. ' 5% —_'Ti ’
. 44% _— oo
T | . .
I .
4% —
: ; ,
“ee - S X IR
l C - 42./'—_—_— —_— _. [ S .
) 41% 4+——— _ -
o .
) . b
: . 40% - —

iy

% of Total PNFP Accounts

Consumer accounts - BllSI]'lESS accounts
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-"¢ "Take advantage of our directors’ and officers’ diverse personal and business contacts,
" -commupity invelvement and professional expertise. Active involvement by our directors has

helped fuel the dramatic growth Pinnacle has experienced, such as our deposit growth shown below.

$2,000 -
$1,800 -
$1,600 -

Deposit Growth
(in millions)

$1,400 4 - - - - - - L LT T TP .-
$1,200 +---------- fememe e . .

Strong job growth and a

Presence in a “Hot” Metropolitan Market

€007
¥007
§00Z
9007

+

thriving economy continue to give Pinnacle a tremendo_ijs opportunity in the °

Nashville MSA. The firm has expanded to 18 offices in high-growth locations throughout Middle

Tennessee.

Economic Indicators

Unemployment SRR R . Population G‘rowth -

0.0% 1.0% 2.0%

Median Household [lncpme- . ’ o Office Vacancy Rate

0% 4.0% - 5.0% D.0% . 50% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0%

$54,436

L T T
550,000 551,000 552,000

353,000 554,000 $55000 ¢ 0.0% 20% d40% 6.0% B0% 100% 12.0% 140% 160% 18.0%

-7-




Pinnacle Locations
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The four main counties where Pinnacle operates are the
most desirable in the MSA. Davidson is home to Nashville,
the state’s capital, and has a population of 610,000.

Williamson is the wealthiest county in Tennessee with a
median household income of $88,000, while Rutherford
County is the fastes: growing with a projected 24% increase
in population over the next five years. Sumner County
rounds out Pinnacle’s tightly focused market and has a
projected five-year population growth rate in excess of

10%.

Several factors make Nashville an attractive place for
existing companies ro grow and for corporate relocations:
» No state perscnal income taxes
+  Reasonable land and infrastructure costs
» 19 colleges and universities
«  Diverse econcmy anchored by heath care and
state povernment
Central U.S. {ocation 1nters'.ect1ng with three major
interstates

: . . | !

" The Nashville MSA experienced a 13% increase in population from 2000-2006, according to the U.S.
. Census Bureau. Its population is expected to increase 11% through 2011. The MSA is currently the:

- g8® Iargest in the Southeast |

« 38" largest in the U.S. with about 1.5 mllllon people
. 18 fastest growmg in populatlon 1

- 4™ fastest growing in per capita income

Nashville’s attractiveness is evidenced by top rankings from national publications:
«  Expansion Magazine named Nashville as the No. [ hottest relocation city for two consecutive years:
« Forbes Magazine ranked the area No 7 for best places for business and carcers.
« Kiplinger's Personal Finance rankflzd the city the No. 1 smart place to live among 50 competing
cities.

) .
1
|

| t

+

.

Vulnerable Competition i

.

The competitive landscape in Nashville’ sfﬁnanmal services market gives Pinnacle a umque growth
opportumty . | : , -

The market is home to 58 banks and thnﬁs with 505 offices, but the top three players (Regmns/AmSouth
SunTrust and Bank of America) control over 50% of the roughly $29 billion deposit market. The good news
for us is that all of the top three are steadll}, losing market share to locally owned firms like Pinnacle. In the
June 2006 FDIC rankings for the Nashvﬂle Davidson-Murfreesboro MSA, Pmnacle moved from 9" to 5
place. _ $ . -

¥
Merger and achISlt:on activity is rampant In addition o the Regions Bank/AmS(muth deal, two other local
community banks have recently announced agreements to be acquired. Renasant lnc. is acquiring
Nashville-based Capital Bancorp Inc., and Greene County Bancshares is acquiring Franklin, Tenn.-based | -
_ Civitas BankGroup. Additionally, MlSSlSSl])pl -based Bancorp South and Cadence Fmancml have closed on
acquisition transactions in the Nashville MSA 1n recent years.

| -8 :
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" market share through its model of dlstmctlve service and effective advice.

gty R R

" We believe all of this merger-reiated turmoil creates even more opportunity for Pinnacle to gain additional

FDI C Depos:t Market Share Report of FDIC-Insured Institutions .

l -

‘..,

‘s

Nashville-Davidson-M urﬁ'eesboro MSA |

(as’ of June 30, 2006)

P .
+

1

2005 Share /

2001 Share /

o 2006 Share /
: Rankin Rankin Rankin $ Deposits $ Deposits. . $ Deposits
Institution Name 2006 2005 2001 (in_‘000’s) (in *000’s) (in 000’s)
L - 22.78% 24.19% | 21.76%
Regions Bank/AmSouth* 1 1 I i . .
cglons Baniyamsow $6,516716 | $6,102,062 - | . $3,822,260
) 15.70° 17.77% | T 16.13¢
SunTrust Bank . 2 2 2.0 5.70% . & 6.13%
e $4,491,264 $4.479,997 52,833,179
e _ 15.54% 16.23% 15.65%
Bank of America 3 3 3 -
L : $4,444.939 $4,091,501 $2,749.413
Lo \ . 573% | - 5.06% 4.48%
First Tenness 4 5 SEE |
st Tenhessee ; S | siedosis | $1276541 | 787,093
| S50 B DB
[2innaclc] Bantncers) 8 o | B i .
| i L mm | omow

Source: FDIC Market Share Data

*4s of June 30, 2006, AmSouth was ranked No. 1 and Regions Bank was No. 4; all deposit share data above reflects a combination of the two

banks, which have 2 since merged..

Successful Integration of Cavnlry Bancorp

Cavalry 5 merger with Pinnacle created the second-largest bank holdlng company headquartercd in
Tennessee The success of the integration demonstrated Pinnacle’s ablllty to integrate banks into its

d1stmcttve culture on time and within budget The merger also allowed Pmnacle to grow faster than the two

firms had been growmg on a combined basis pnor to the merger

-9

. -
‘ha a

The biggest complaint bank customers hav‘e;when financial institutions merge is that their “go to” person
will no longer be there, client service will suffer and favorite products and services will be taken away. We
worked hard to demonstrate this would not happen to our new associates and clients. As a result, we not
only maintained the top market share'in Rutherford County’ we ‘increased it. More 1mportantly, the firm’s
client satisfaction surveys show that 100% of Pinnacle’s Rutherford County survey respondents rate the
firm as “recogmzably better than” its competitors: Our offices in Rutherford County completed their best

year'ever with over $100 million in organic/growth in deposits during 2006.

b e b D
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Rutherford County Market Share ;
! 2006 Share / 2005 Share /
: Rank in Rank in 8 Deposits 's Deposits
:Institution Name 2006 2005 (in ‘000’s) {in *000’s)
Pinnacle/Cavalry B397% 2H4.19%
‘ S615.310 Rl RIPDR]
SunTrust Bank 3 ’ 2 17.05% 20.09%
) ! $418,627 $426,596
Bank of America 3 ! 3 1 1‘:'?'8% l0;'45%
‘ $276,836 - © $221,999
First Tennessee 41 4 9.44% 9.80%
; . $231,794 . $208,138
Regions Bank/AmSouth* 51 5 _' 14.48% 16 47%
| _ $355,576 $349 850
MidSouth Bank 61 9 6.73% 3.57%
! ' $165,300 $75,739

Source: FDIC Market Share Data
*As of June 30, 2006, AmSouth was ranked Na; 5 and Regmm Bank was No 7; ail dﬂposﬂ share data above reﬂecrs a
combination of the two banks, which have since merged.

Pinnacle added resources to Cavalry’s already strong team. For 1nstanc.e chents gamed access to treasury
management, financial planning services, Courier deposit pickup for commercial accounts and our system of

free use of any ATM anywhere around the|w0rld

We also have benefited from Cavalry’s strong presence in the consumer and commercial real estate sectors

4

i
i

and leveraged Cavalry’s merchant services, trust and insurance capabilities across our frahchise.

Clients from both firms gained access to more benefits and convenience, including more office locatlons

(18) and enhanced online banking and bill pay services,

Our associate roster grew substantially during the year through the Cavalry mcrgcr and with the continued
addition of many new associates, Qur team at year-end 2006 totaled 425 associates who are the most

respected financial services professionals in our area. Thz team from Cavalry made significant contributions
in terms of new expertise and clients, as waTs evidenced by our continued market share growth in Rutherford

County. |
Gr;owth in Plinn_acle Offices and Associates
. (Year-end figures)
2001 . I 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Total Offices 3 3 5 7 8" 18*
Number of Associates 50 |1 s6 91 123 159 425

*Inciudes nine offices from merger with Cavalry Bancorp and one additional office which opened March 5, 2007.

**ncludes 220 associates from the merger with Cavalry Bancorp and 46 positions added during 2006.

-10-




Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. - 2006 Annual Report -~

tExpansion' Opportunities Throughout' Tennessee

Orgamc Growth in N ashville. In June of 2002 Pmnacle publlshed very aggresswe asset growth
© targets contemplating '$300_million in assets by year-end 2003, $400 million in assets by 2004 and $1
bllhon in assets:by 2010, all through- orgamc growth in the Nashwile market As shown in the chart
: 'below we under-promlsed and over-delwered LT L s oo
Orgamc Asset Growth Versus 2002 Cammttments -
(in millions})

$1,200 T OPlan @Actual’

) 31;017
$1,000

$800
$600
' $400

$200 +

"$0
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Pinnacle plans to leverage its existing capacity to grow market share in the Nashville MSA. Our current
team of ﬁndncml advisors has the capacity to produce an additional $1 billion in assets. In addition to our, .
existing productlon capamty, we intend to add roughly one office per year through 2010. We also
anticipate adding new associates at a pace similar to that during 2006 (excludmg the lmpact of the
‘Cavalry acquisition) in order to continue our rapid assct growth. A

Orgamc Asset Growth T argets in Nash wlle MSA

(in mt!hons)

$3800 7 : -
| [EreERw] o s
$3,300 + |
kY I .
$2,800 + i
P Targetec l
‘ . ROA of
52300 L o . 1.30% by
P s2i00 2010

. [
I

. 3006 " 2007 2008 - 2009 2010

e

o5
—
-]
=4
[—]
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» Future Acquisitions in the Nashvﬂle MSA. With our record of successfully thgratmg firms,
Pinnacle could target other M]ddle Tennessee banks that would strategically. accelerate our
geographic distribution, that have substantlally above-average growth rates and that could fit into

Pinnacle’s hlgh-performance culturP Our bias is that any future merger would need to be accretive to
our combined earnings in the ﬁrst|12 months.

_ Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

| )

® CL:IRRENT LOCATIONS & TARGETED COUNTIES

Humphreys

Hickman

'
Van Buren

Marshall Ve

. De Novo Market Extensions in Tennessee. We have stated that we would con51der extending into
other urban markets such as Memphls and Knoxville if we find an opportumty to repllcate what
we’ve done in Nashville—hire the }nost successful bankers and brokers in the market. Qur decision
criteria include being able to build : a $500 million to $750 million bank in ﬁve years




Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

-h Shareho‘lder Alignment SRR %

' Because our Leadershxp Team and associates drive the firm’s performance we must align our interests w1th
those of our sharcholders. The best way to ensure this allgnment is to make all assocnates thmk and act. 11ke

" shareholders. Fo that end we have in place : . R T
¢+ Significant insider ownership , Y oL
i+ Significant executive. ownership ' L O T
, =« Performance-based, at-risk compensation for all assoc1ates Co e
. « Broad-based stock option plan for a/f associates = ) ' C

© -« Annual incentives for a// associates based on corporate soundness and eammgs thresholds rather

than on 1nappropnate product sales or cold call 'statistics -
. i o - N Lo e
: ; ‘ s
. Our shareholders, associates and chents are well positioned to enjoy contmued beneﬁts from bemg
. associated wnh Pmnacle “Our ability to sustain performance year after yeat as well as our insight and
e expenence 10 seize new opportumnes m the marketplace will serve Pinnacle well-again in 2007. As you

. review'the mformanon in this report we hope you will be pleased with the exce]lent record and the
' potential | for the future. T _ y ) L

t ' ' 1.

1
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ‘
. . . !

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (“Pinnacle F'inancial”) may from time to time make written or oral statements,
including statements contained in this report which may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) The words “expect " “anticipate,”

“intend,” “consider,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek' " “should,” “estimate,” and similar expressions are intended to 1dent1fy
such forward-looking statements, but other stalements may constitute forward-looking statements. These statements
should be considered subject to various risks and uncertainti=s. Such forward- -looking statements are made based upon
management's belief as well as assumptions made by, and information currently available to, management pursuant fo

"safe harbor” provisions of the Private Secuntles Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Pinnacle Financial’s actual results
may differ materially from the results amiclpated in forward-looking statements due to a variety of factors. Such
factors are described below in “Item 1A. Rlsk Factors” and include, without limitation, (i) unanticipated detenoratlon
in the financial condition of borrowers resultm;, in significant increases in loan losses and provisions for those losses,
(ii) increased competition with other ﬁnancml institutions, (iii) lack of sustained growth in the economy in the
Nashville, Tennessee area, (iv) rapid ﬂuctuatxons or unanticipated changes in interest rates, (v) the inability of our
bank subsidiary, Pinnacle National Bank, to sausfy regulatory requirements for its expansion plans, and (vi) changes
in the legislative and regulatory environment, iincluding compliance with the various provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley

"Act 0f 2002. Many of such factors are beyond Pinnacle Financial’s ability to control or predict, and readers are
cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward—lookmg statements. Pinnacle Financial does not intend to update
or reissue any forward-looking statements corit.uned in this report as a result of new information or other
circumstances that may become known to Pmn.tcle Financial.

Unless this report indicates otherwise or the clomexl otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “our,” "us,” “Pinnacle
Financial Partners” or "Pinnacle Financial ”\as used herein refer to Pinnacle Financial Parrners, lnc and its
subszdtary Pinnacle National Bank, which we snmeumes refer to as “Pinnacle National,” “our bank subsidiary” or
“our bank” and its other subsidiaries. We opemte primarily within the Nashville- Dawdson Mwﬁ'eesboro Tennessee
Metropolitan Statistical Area, which we somet.rmes refer to as the "Nashville MSA."' References herein to the fiscal i

years 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 mean our fiscal years ended December 31, 2002, ’003 2004 2005 and 2006,
respectively. !

I
. i
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- *  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA -
‘ 20061 2005 2004 2003 2002
L - ! . (n thousands, except per share data, ratios and percentages)
Statement of Flnancml Condmon Data- _ .
Total assets : s ) e - $2 142,187 - $1,016,7727 " -$727,139 « § 498421  $ 305,279
Loans, net of unearnéd income w, e 1,497,735 648,024 . 472,362 b 297,004 -209,743- :
Allowance for loan losses B o ©(16,118) (7858) - (5,650 (3,719 2,677 - !
" Total securities 346,494 279,080+ . 208,170 139,944, " 73,980 !
Goodwill and core deposit intangibles 125,673 L - - - |
Dcposntswand securities sold under agreemems to repurchase ’ 1,763,427 875,985 602,655 405,619 249,067 oo
Advances from FHLB : Tat 53,726 41,500 53,500 - 44,500 21,500 |
Subordinated debt . o ‘ -51,548 .30,929 10,310 10,310 - |
Stockholders’ equity —_— ' . , X 256,017 63,436 57,880 34,336 32,404 i
- * - -, s |
Income Sta‘tementAData: - . * T
Interest income $109,696 - $ 46,308 $ 27679 -* § 18,262 $ 12,561
Interest expense ~ © - ) " 48,743 0 17270 ° 7415 5,363 ° 4,362
Net interest income - T e e 60,953 . " 29,038 - 20264 ‘12,899 [ 8,199
Provision for loan losses S Y 3,732+ - 2,152+ 2,948 © 1,157 : 938
Net interest income after pr0v1510n for loan losses ] . 57,221 . 26,886 - 17,316 e 11,742 7,261
Noninterest income i S o ) 15,786 .53%4 4978 . . 3,035 . 1,732
Noninterest expense .. i 46,624 . ° 21,032 . 14803 . 10,796 7,989
lncome before income taxes P ) - g 26,383 " 111 248 7491 3,981 1,004
Tncome tax expense | . ) Cee T e sAssT DS, 93 . 20721 1,426 o356
Net income o ' AR A 927‘- s 8055 s’ 5319 82 555_' $ 648
Per Share Data: - ro ) o R LT : ‘ }
Earnings per share —basic | . e 8- 128008 09 % 069 ¢+ 5. 035 5 011
Welghted average shares outstandmg ba51c s voawd 00, 13,954,077 . -7 8,408,663: 7,750,943 ! '7,384,106 - - 6,108,942
Earnings pér share — diluted , S e s 8.00118 8. O0B5. 0§ <061 4. %5.-.032 - 010
" . Weighted average shares outstanding — dlluted , 15,156,837 . 9,464,500. ' 8,698,139 ;.. 7,876,006, = 6,236,844
Baok value per share “% 1657 8 7.53 $° 690 $ 465 S 4.39
Common shares outstandm{1 at end of penod 15,446, 074 8,426,551 8,389,232 . 7,384,106 7,384,106
Perfnrmlance Ratios and Other Data - L ' o Ct T )
Retum on average assets ' T 1.01% - 1093% T 0.89% C0.66% 0.29%
Return on average stockholders’ equlty ) 8.66% - 13.23% 12.31% 7.70% 247%
Net mterest margin (2) ’ ’ 3.90% 3.60% 3.62% 3.53% 3.81%
Net mteresl spread (3) 3.20% 316% - -+ 334% . 0323% 3.42%
Noninterest income to average assets’ Ll 0.89% © 0.62% - 083% . - - 078% 0.76%
Noninterest expense to average assets o . ~ . 2.61% 2.42% .. 2.48% 2.78% 3.50%
Efficiency ratio(4) - . L b 60.80% 61.1% 58.6% - 67.8% . 80.4%
. Average loan to average deposn ratio . ' ' ' 88.73% 81.3%. 79.0% 85.5% . 98.5%
" Average interest- earnmg asséts to average mterest-beanng lnablhtles 122.10% 120.0% 1200% 118.9% 119.6%
Average equity to average total assets ratio “11.64% 7.00% C723% ! 8.54% 11.58%
1 . .
Asset Quallty Ratios: - y - f ] e , .
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming asscts "o 199.9% . 1,708.3% 1,006.9% 981.3% 143.4%
Al[owance for loan losses to total loans v 1.08% 1.21% 1.20% 1.25% 1.28%
Nonperformmg assets to total assets T T ! 0.37% 0.05% - 0.08% . 0.08% ¢ 0.61%
.Nonaccrial loans to total loans ' C047% 0.07% 0.12% 0.13% " 0.89%
Net loan'charge-offs (recovenes) to average loans T 0.05% (0.01)% 0.27% "t 0.05% 0.05%
. . . .
Capital Ratios: : . : {
Leverage (5) ) ; - ' 9.5% 9.9% 9.7% 9.7% 11.1%
Tier 1 risk-based capital - - o ST 10.9% 1L.7% 1L.7% 11.8% 12.7% -
Total ris%:—based capital ' ) - 11.8% 12.6% = 12.7% 12.8% 13.8%

‘(1) Information for, 2006 fiscal year 1ncludes the operations of Cavalry, which Pinnacle Financial merged with on March 15, 2006 and reflects
s approxnmately 6.9 million shares of Pmnacle Financial common stock issued in connection with the - merger.
t {2) Net interest margin is the result of net interest income for the period divided by average interest earmng assets.
(3) Net interest spread is the result of the difference between the interest yield earned on interest earning assets less the interest paid on interest
bearing liabilities.
f (4) Eﬂicwncy ratio is the result of noniriterest expense d|v1ded by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.
L (5)

Leverage ratio is computed by dividing Tier 1 capital by average total assets for the fourth quarter of each year.
| ) -

~15- _ :
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! l
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS -

. . H |
The following is a discussion of our financial condition at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and our, results of operations
. for each of the three-years ended December 31, 2006. The purpose of this discussion is to focus on information about
our financial condition and results of operatxons which is not otherwise apparent from the consohdated financial
statements. The following discussion and an'aly51s should be read along with our consolidated financial statements and -
the related notes included elsewhere herein. | P
Overview { : .
' . ' | ! .
General. Pinnacle Financial’s rapid organic growth from its inception through the fourth quarter of 2006 together with
its merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (“Cavalry "), a one-bank holding company located in Murfreesboro, Tennesse'e,
on March 15, 2006 has had a material 1mpact on Pinnacle Financial’s financial condition and results of operations.
This rapid growth resulted in net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 of $1.18 pér dlluted share as compared
to $0.85 and $0.61 per diluted share for 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006, loans totaled $1.498
billion, as compared to $648. million at December 31, 20035, while total deposxts increased to $1.622 b]l]lOﬂ at
December 31, 2006 from $810 million at Decl:t 'mber 31, 2005, ) '

1 !

I 1
Acquisition. On March 15, 2006, we consumrnated our merger with Cavalry. Pursuant to the merger agreement, we
acquired all Cavalry common steck via a tax\free exchange whereby Cavalry shareholders recewed a fixed exchange
ratio of 0.95 shares of our common stock forjeach share of Cavalry commeon stock, or approxtmately 6.9 million
Pinnacle Financial shares. The financial inforraation herein includes the activities of the fi ormer Cavalry (the
“Rutherford County market”) since March 15[ 2006. : | _

’ |
In accordance with Statement of Financial Ac: ounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 141, “Accountmg for Business .
Combinations™ (“SFAS No. 141"), SFAS No 142, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”) and SFAS|{ -
No. 147, “Acquisition of Certain Financial Instltutlons” (“SFAS No. 147”), we recorded at falr value the followmg
assets and habllltles of Cavalry as of March }‘ » 2006 (dollars in thousands} ;

| |
i

Cash and cash equivalents ! ;3 37420
Investment securities — avallabie-foz -sale . v 39476
i ' Loans, net of an allowance for loan losses of $5,102 ' : ! o 545,598
: Goodwill . | . P 114,288
Core deposit ititangible ‘ T 13,168
Other assets : Do 42,937
Total assets acquired . b 792,887
. ! e ) t
Deposits 5 j 583,992
Federal Home Loan Bank advances . 17,767
Other liabilities | L 18,851
Total consideration paid for Cavalry o oot 8 172,277

We are in the process of fi nalizmg the allocation of the purchase price to the acqwred net assets
noted above. Accordingly, the above allocations should be considered prehmmmy as of
December 31, 2006. .

i |

|
|
|
|
|
Total liabilities assumed N ' P 620,610
|

-16-
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1

As noted above, total consideration for Cava

~ value of those net assets in accordance with

- liability associated with these adjustments. T

. Cavalry acquisition.

. Our provision for loan losses was $3.7 millio

of our common shares and options to acqu:re
attorney’s fees and other costs related to the }

: ,-2:006 Annual Report

ry approximates $172.3 million of which $171.1 million was in the form
our common shares and $1.2 million in investment banking fees,,
urchase of Cavalry. We issued 6,856,298 shares of our common stock to

the former Cavalry shareholders. In accordance with EITF 99-12, “Determination of the Measurement Date for the
Market Price of Acquirer Securities Issued i 1rLa Purchase Business Combination,” the shares were valued at $24.53 per

common share which represents the average |

losing price of our common stock from the two days prior to the merger

announcement on September 30, 2005 through the two days after the merger announcement. Aggregate consideration
for the common stock issued was approxlma‘ely $168.2 million. Additionally, we also have assumed the Cavalry

Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the
shares of our common stock upon exercise of

ouistanding options as of March 15, 2006. A
_ date and expire at various dates between 201

$10.26 per share and $13.68 per share. In acl

“Cavalry Plan”) pursuant to which we were obligated to issue 195,551
stock options awarded to certain former Cavalry employees who held
1l of these options were fully vested prier 10 the merger announcement
| and 2012. The exercise prices for these stock options range between
ordance with SFAS No. 141, we considered the fair value of these

© options in determining the acquisition cost of Cavalry. The fair value of these vested options approx1mated 329

million which has been included as a compor‘em of the aggregate purchase price.

In accordance with SFAS Nos. 141 and 142,
intangible is being amortized over seven year

. deposits to'which the intangible is attnbutablle

we recognized $13.2 million as a core deposit intangible. This identified
s using an accelerated method which anticipates the life of the underlying
For the year ended December 31, 2006, approxlmatcly $1.8 million

was recognized in the statement of income. Amortization expense associated with the core deposit mtanglble will

approximate $1. 8 million to $2.1 million per
years .

year for the next five years with lesser amounts for‘the remaining two

v

We also recorded other adjustments to the caé'rying value of Cavalry’s assets and liabilities in order to reflect the fair

discount associated with the loan portfolio, a
million premium for Cavalry’s land and buildi

be amortized into our statements of income it
over the anticipated lives of the underlying fi

enerally accepted accountmg principles, including a $4.8 million

$2.9 million premium for Cavairy’s certificates of deposit and a $4.6
mgs' We have also recorded the correspondmg deferred tax asseét or

he discounts and prémiums related to financial assets and liabilities will
\ future periods using a method that approximates the level yield method
nancial assets or liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the’

accretion of the fair value discounts related t¢ the acquired loans and certificates of deposit increased net interest

income by approximately $3.7 million. Base
expect to recognize increases in net interest i
$4.0 million in subsequent years.

We also incurred approximately $1,636,000 1

d on the estimated useful lives of the acquired loans and deposits, we -
icome related to accretion of these purchase accountmg adjustments of

BN

n merger related expenses during thé year ended December 31, 2006

directly related to the Cavalry merger. These charges were for our integration of Cavalry and accélerated depreciation

and amortization related to software and othe

Results of Operdtions. Our net interest incorr

2005 and $20.3 million in 2004. The net inté
. for 2006 was 3.90% for 2006 compared to 3.

r technology assets whosé useful lives were shorténed as a result of the
Co 1

1e increased to $61.0 mitlion for 2006 compared to $29.0 million for

:rest margin (the ratio of net interést income to average earning assets)

60% for the same period in 2005 and 3.62% in 2004.

) for 2006 compared to $2.2 million in 2005 and $2.9 million in 2004.

The provision for loan losses increased primarily due to increases in foan volumes and charge-offs in 2006 compared

to 2005, while the decrease in expense betwe
significant dectease in charge-offs in 2005.

kn 2005 and 2004 was due to increases in loan volumes offset by'a

Neninterest income for 2006 compared to 20$ ;
with the Cavalry acquisition, pamcularl)'} with regard to service charges on

attributable to the fee businesses associated

5 increased by $10.4 million, or 193%. This increase is largely

deposit accounts, insurance sales commissions and trust fees. Noninterest income for 2005 compared to 2004
increased by $416,000, or 8.4%, which was due in large part to increases in investment sales cormmssnons insurance

commissions, trust fees and other fees.

Do
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Our continued growth in 2006 resulted in incr!eased nonintersst expense compared to 2005 due to the addition of the
Rutherford County market, increases in salane, and employce benefits, equipment and occupancy expenses and other
operating expenses. The number of full-time, equwalent employees increased from 156.5 at December 31, 2005 to
404.0 at December 31, 2006. As a result, we Ie'(penenced increases in compensation and ¢mployee benefit expense.
Additionally, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) i in 2006 which addresses the accounting for employee equity based
incentives which also increased our compensatron and employee benefit expense in 2006 when compared tono
expense in 2006. We expect to add additiona} employees throughout 2007 which will cause our compensation and
employee benefit expense to increase in 2007 Additionally, our branch expansion efforts during the last few years
and the addition of the nine Cavalry branches also increased noninterest expense. The increased operational expenses
for the recently opened branches and the addlltronal planned branch in the Donelson area of Davidson County expected
to open in early 2007 will continue to result in increased norinterest expense in future periods. Our efficiency ratio
(the ratio of noninterest expense to the'sum of net interest income and noninterest income) was 60.6% in 2006
compared to 61.1% in 2005 and 58.6% in 2004 These calculatlons include the impact of approximately $1,636.000 in
merget related charges in 2006.

The effective income tax expense rite for 2006 was approxrmatel) 32.1% compared to an effectlve income tax
expense rate for 2005 of approximately 28. 4% and 29.0% for 2004. The increase in the effectwe tax rate between the
periods was due to the additional earnings bemg taxed at a higher rate as the various tax savings initiatives (e.g.,
municipal bond income) had a lesser impact m 2006 when compared to the previous periods. Additionatly, the impact
of our incentive stock options and their treatme: :nt pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) also contributed to the
increase in our effective rate in 2006.

Net income for 2006 was $17.9 million compared to $8.1 mrlllon in 2005, an increase of 123%. Net income for 200|5
was 51% higher than net income for 2004 of $) 3 million. Fully-diluted net income per common share was $1.18 for
2006 compared to $0.85 for 2005 and $0.61 flor 2004, . .

Excluding the after-tax (rate of 39.23%) rmpact of merger related charges net income for 2006 was $18.9 million
compared to $8.1 million for 2005, an mcrease of 135%. As a result, adjusted diluted net income per common share
was $1.25 for 2006 compared to $0.85 for 2093 an increase of 47%. For a reconciliation of these non-GAAP

financial measures to their most directly compdrable GAAP financial measure, see “Reconcrhatlon of Non-GAAP .

financial measures” on page 22. '

Financial Condmon Loans increased $850 mrlhon during 2006 of which $551 million was attributable to the Cavaflry
acquisition. Thus, the net increase in our loan portfolio attributable to organic growth was $299 million. As we seek
to increase our loan portfolio, we must also c'ontmue to monitor the risks inherent in our leriding’ ‘operations. If our { -
allowance for loan losses is not sufficient to cover the estimated loan losses in our loan pnrtfoho increases to the

allowance for loan losses would be requrred which would decrease our eammgs
|

We have successfully grown ‘our total deposits to $1.622 billion at December 31 2006 compared to $810 million at |
| December 31, 2005, an increase of $312 mlllmn of which $584 million was attnbutable 10 the Cavalry acquisition.
i As a result, we increased our deposits by $228 million, excluding the Cavalry acqursmon This growth in deposits had
i a higher funding cost due to rising rates and rncreased deposit pricing competition in 20005 ¢ompared to 2005. We 1

typically adjust our loan yields at a faster rate than we adjust our deposit rates. As such, unless competitive pressures

dictate, our deposit funding costs do not usually adjust as quickly as do.revenues from interest income on floating rate

earning assets. : l _— L

We continue to believe there is broad acceptance of our business model within the Nashwlle MSA and in our target
markets of small to mid-sized businesses anq affluent clients, real estate professionals and consuers that desire a
deep relationship with their bank. f

Capital and Liguidity. At December 31, 200:6, our capital ratios, including our bank’s capital ratios, met regulatory
minimum capital requirements. Additionally, at December 31, 2006, our bank would be considered to be “well-

capitalized” pursuant to banking regulations.| As our bank grows it will require additional capital from us over that
which can be earned through operations, We anticipate that we will continue to use various capital raising techniques
in order to support the growth of our bank. ’

In the past, we have been successful in procuring additional capital from the capital markets (via public and private
offerings of trust preferred secunties and corr'rmon stock). This additional capitai was required to support our growth.
As of December 31, 2006, we believe we have sufficient capital 1o support our current growth plans. However,

expansion by acquisition of other banks or by branching into a new geographic market could result in issuance of

additional capital, including additional common shares. l
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" Critical Accounting Estimates”

The accounting prmcnples we follow and our, 1

generally accepted accounting pnncrples and
the application of those principles, we have

2006 Ann_tral Report o

H [ Pt

nmethods of applymg thése principles conform w1th United States
with general practicés within the banking mdustry In connection with *
hade judgments and estimates which, in the case of the determination of_

our allowance for loan losses, the adoption o SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share Based Payments” (“SFAS No.
123(R)”} and the accountmg for the Cavalry merger have been cnttcal to the detemunanon of our ﬁnanctal posrtton
and results of operatlons !

Allowance for Loan Losses { allowance ). Our management assesses the adequacy of the allowance prior to the end
of each calendar quarter.; This assessment intludes procedures to estimate the-allowance and test the adequacy and
appropriateness of the resulting balance.. Thé level of the allowance is based upon management’s evaluation of the, :
loan portfoltos past l0an loss experience, knpwn and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect
the borrower’s ability 1o repay (including the timing of future payment), the estimated value of any undetlying, -
collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, mdustry and peer bank loan quality indications and

- other pertinent factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates mcludmg the amounts.

* and timing of future cash flows expected 1o be received on impaired loans.that may be susceptible to srgmficant o

change. Loan losses are charged off when m'anagement believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely. A-
loan may be partialty charged-off after a “co ﬁrmmg event” has occurred which serveés to val1date that full repayment
pursuant to the terms of the loan is unlikely. |Allocation of the allowance may be made for speclﬁc loans, but the.

 entire allowance is avallable for any loan that, in management s judgment, is deemed to be uncollecttble DR

A f ’ R
Larger balance commercral and commercral eal estate loans are lmpatred when, based on current 1nformatlon and
events, it is.probable that we will be, unable to collect all amounts due accordtng to-the contractual terms.of the loan
agreement. Collection of all amounts due aocordmg to the contractual terms means that both the contractual interest
payments and lhe contractual ‘principal payrn'ents of a loan w1ll be collected as scheduled in the loan agreement

i Ttk

.An 1mpatrment loss is recogmzed if the present value of expected future cash ﬂows from the loan is less than the

recorded mvestment in the loan (recorded inyestment-in the loan is the prrnclpal balance plus any accrued interest, net
deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premtum or discount, and does not reflect any direct write-down of the
mvestment). _The impairiment loss is recogmzed through the allowance. “Loans that are 1mparred are recorded at thee
-present value of expected future.cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or if the loan is collateral -

'dependent impairment measurement is based on the fair value of the collateral, less estimated disposal costs Income

is recogmzed on lmpatred loans on a cash basis. . A .

P " :l '\-‘.—-. rf - .
The level of allowance mamtamed‘ is belteved by management to be adequate to absorb losses inherent.in; the portfolro
at the balance sheet date.” The allowance is increased by provisions charged to. e).pense and decreased by. charge ofTs,
net of recoveries of amounts previously charged-off. - . S PRI
. - . I . - T.
In assessing the adequacy of the consolidatell allowance, we also consider the results of our.ongoing independent loan
review process. We undertake this process both to ascertain whether there are loans in the portfolto whose credit

Fl

_quality has weakened over time and to assist/in our overall evaluation of the risk characteristics 'of the entire loan

portfolio.” Our loan review process includes the judgment of management, the input from our 1ndependent loan
reviewer, and reviews that may have been canducted by bank regulatory agencies as part of their usual examination, -

process. We incorporate loan review resultsin the determination of whether or not it is probable that we will be'ablé * "

to collect all amounts due accerding to the ¢ ntractual terms of a loan. - S ORI

. i ' :
As part of management’s quarterly assessment of the allowance, management d1v1des the loan portfolm 1nto four .
segments: -commercial, commercial real est.'tte consumer and consumer real éstate. - Each segment is then analyzed .
such that an allocatlon of the allowance is estimated for each loan segment. ;

. ' i

The allowance allocanon for commercial an{l commercial real estate loans begins with a process of estlmatmg the
probable losses, inherent’ for these types of loans. The estimates for these loans are established by category and based -
on our internal system of credit risk ratings dnd historical loss data for 1ndustry and various peer bank | groups :The .
estimated loan loss allocation rate for our infernal system of credit risk grades for commercial and commercial real ;-
estate is based on management’s experience;jwith similarly graded loans, discussions with bankmg regulators. and our

“ * L

\

internal loan review processes. We then wejght the allocation methodologies for the commerc1al and commerc1al real

estate portfolios anddetermine a weighted aVerage allocation for these portfoltos " N

l
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The allowance allocation for consumer and consumer real estate loans which includes installment, home equity,
consumer mortgages, automobiles and others|is established for each of the categories by cst1mat1ng losses inherent i n
that particular category of consumer and cons:u'mer real estate loans. The estimated loan loss allocation rate for each
category is based on management’s. experience. Additionally, consumer and consumer real estate loans are analyzed
based on our actual loss rates, indusiry loss rates and loss rates of various peer bank groups! Consumer and consumer
real estate loans are evaluated as a group by category (i.e. retail real estate, installment, etc.) rather than on’an
individual loan basis because these loans are smaller and homogeneous. We weight the allocatlon methodologies for

the consumer and consumer real estate ponfohos and determine a weighted average allocation for these portfolros

The estimated loan loss allocation for all four loan portfolio segments is then adjusted for man_agement’s estimate Ofi
probable losses for several “environmental” factors. The allocation for environmental faciors is darticularly subjective
and does not lend itself to exact mathematlcal calculation. This amount represents estimated inherent credit losses
which may exist, but have not yet been 1dent1f' ed, as of the balance sheet date based upon quarterly trend assessments
“in delinquent and nonaccrual loans, unanucrpated charge-offs, credit concentration changes; pre\farlmg economic
conditions, changes in lending personnel expeuence changes'in lending policies or procedures and other influencing
factors. These environmental factors are cons1dered for each of the four loan segments anid the allowance allocation{as
determined by the processes noted above for each segment is increased or decreased based on the incremental
assessment of these various “environmental” factors
‘ S
"We then test the resulting allowance balance bv comparing the balance in the allowance to historical trends and
industry and peer information. Our management then evaluates the result of the procedurzs performed, including the
result of our testing, and concludes on the apdropnateness of'the balance of the allowance in its entirety. The audit {
committee of our board of directors reviews the assessment prior to the filing of quarterly and annual financial
information, - :
! ,
For the quarters ended March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006, we assessed the allowance in two separate processes usin
methodologies for both the Pmnacle portfohos as the portfohos existed prior to the merger with Cavalry (the
“Nashville market”) and the Rutherford Countv portfolio. Our methodology for the first two quarters of 2006 was *
consistent with the past methodologies of Pmn acle Financial and Cavalry on a stand-alone bams In view of the
acquisition, we evaluated the respective assessment methodologies and made certain changes as noted above and
implemented such changes during the third quarter of 2006. The rzvised assessment methodology did not significantly

|
impact our recorded allowance for loan losses. : '

U=

Share Based Payments - On January 1, 2006, e adopted SFAS Nu. 123(R), which addresses the accountmg for share-
based payment transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for equrty instruments. SFAS
No.123(R) eliminates the ability to account fdr share-based compensation transactions, as we formerly did, using the

intrinsic value method as prescribed by Accountmg Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accountmg for Stock

" Issued to Employees,” and generally requires ‘that such transactions be accounted for using a fair* value-based method

and recognized as an expense. : ‘ :
. | l:
We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) usmg the modlf ied prospective method which requires the appllcatlon of the accountlng
standard as of January 1, 2006. The aecompanymg consolidated financial statements for ”006 reflect the impact of
adoptmg SFAS No. 123(R). In accordance with the modified prospective method, the consolidated financial '
staternents for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact'of SFAS No. 123(R).
Appllcatlon of SFAS No. 123(R) required us to assess numerous factors including the historical volatility of our stoc
price, anticipated option forfeitures and estlmates concerning the length of time that our options would remain
unexercised. Many of these assessments 1mpa(t the fair value of the underlying stock aption more significantly than
others and changes to these assessments in ﬁ.lture periods could be significant. We believe the assumptions we have
incorporated into our stock option fair value assessments are reasonable.

=~

i

' \ )
Accounting for the Cavalry Acquisition - We recorded the assets and liabilities of Cavalry as of March 15, 2006 at
estimated fair value. Arriving at these fair values required numerous assumptions regarding the économic life of
assets, decay rates for liabilities and other factors. We engaged a third party to assist us in valuing certain of the

financial assets and labilities of Cavalry. We also engaged 2 real estate appraisal firm to value the more sighificant

properties that were acquired by us in the acqnlsmon We also engaged a firm to analyze the income tax implication
of the assets and liabilities acquired as well as the deductibility of the various cash payments we and the former
Cavalry made as a result of this merger. As a‘rcsult we consider the values we have assigned to the acquired assets
and liabilities of Cavalry to be reasonable and consistent with the application of generally accepted accounting

principles. However, we are still in the proce.‘s< of obtaining and evaluating certain other information. Accordingly,

1 7]
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g "' we may have to,reassess our purchase price 1_tllocatrons We bel1eve that we will conclude the allocation of the i
} purchase pnce to the acqutred net assets durmg the first quaner of 2007 - . ) , .
L ¥ . \"r - $ot . "f" pr.\ - H v .;-:! ' ! N . o
Iz +  -Long-lived assets mcludmg purchased mtanglble assets Subject to amortization, such as-our core deposn mtanglble . o
i i assel; are revnewed fori tmpalrment wheneve? events or changes in"circumstances mdlcate that the carryirig amount of Coy
i * | anasset may not be recoverable Recoverablllty of assets to be held and uséd i is measured by a comparison of the .
it i earrymg amount of an asset to estimated undtscounted future cash flows expected to be genemted by the asset: Ifthe .
T \ ;i, carrying amount ofan asset exceeds:its esti ated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recogmzed by the amount -~ -
* - by which ‘the carrymg amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be d1sposed of would be L
‘ separately presented in the balance sheet and reponed at the. lower of the can'ymg amount or falr value less costs 1o !
et b sell and are no longer depreciated. - : . o o
. ,.j."-‘* .“ ",‘ . v 'J ‘_ o, ,‘I-' e . f;“_ - . “.. i ) .o .
e e Goodwrll and mtangtble assets that have ll‘ldt finite useful lives are tested annually for 1mpalrment and are tested for ;
Lo s 1mpa1rment more frequently if events and c1r'cumstances indicate that the asset might be 1mpa1red An impairment loss
T s, recogmzed to.the extent that the can'ymg amount exceeds the asset’s fair valie. Our annual assessment dateis . - _‘
i l* September 30.. Should we determing in a fu ure period that the goodwill recorded i in, connectmn with our acqu1smon : \
.ot of Cavalry has been 1mpa1red then a charge o our earnings will be recorded in the penod such determmauon is made. L
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Results of Operations

Our results for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2(|)(J4 were htghltghted by the continued growlh in loans and other eamm’g
assets and deposits, which resulted in increased revenues and expenses. The following is a summary of our results of

operations (dollars in thousands): i
l
i
I

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan

losses
Noninterest income : f
Noninterest expense i
Net income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income :

2006-2005 Year cnded

Years ended 20|05-2004
December 31, Percent . December 31, Percent
Increase ! Increase
2066 2005 {Decrzase) 2004 (Decrease)
i
-§ 109,696 $ 46,308 1369% - $ 27,679 67.3%
43,743 17,270 1822% - 1415 132.9%
60,953 29,038 109.9% 20,264 Y43.3%
3,732 2,152 734% | 2,948 (27.0%)
' . 4
57,221 26886  r28% 17316 s
15,786 5,394 1927% 4,978 8.4%
46,624 21,032 121.7% 14,803 42.1%
26,383 11,248 134.6% 7,491 '50.2%
8,456 3,193 164.8% 2,172 F47.0%
$ 17927  $ 8055  1226% $ 5319 514

Our results for the year ended December 31, 2006 included merger related expense. Excluding merger related expense
from our net income resulted in diluted net m( ome per common share for the year ended December 31, 2006 of $1. 25
A comparison of these amounts to the same pmods in 2005 and 2004 and a reconciliation of thls non-GAAP ﬁnanc1al

measure follow:

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP financial measures:

Net income i

Merger related expense net of tax of $642 for

the year ended December 31, 2006 |

Net income excluding merger related expense

Fully-diluted net income per common shlare

Fulty-diluted net income per common share,

excluding merger related expense

$ 17,927 $ 8,055

994 -
$ 18921  $ 8,055
$§ 1.8 § 085
$ 125 § 085

5 5319

$ 5319

$ 061
' $§ 061

The presentation of this non-GAAP financial information is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a substitute
for any measure prepared in accordance w1th GAAP. Because non-GAAP financial measures presented are not

measurements determined in accordance with GAAP and are susceptible to varying calculanons these non-GAAP| -

1
financial measures, as presented, may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures presented by other

companies,

Pinnacle Fmanc1a] believes that these non- GAAP financial measures excluding the impact of rqerger related expenses

facilitate making period-to-period comparlsons and are meaningful indications of its operating performance and

because we believe that the information prov1des investors with additional information to evaluate our past financial

results and ongoing operational performanc?:




Pinn‘acle Financial Partners, Inc. 2006 Annual Report

Pinnacle Financial's management utilizes thls non-GAAP financial information to compare our.operating performance
versus the comparable periods in 2005 and 2004 and utilized non-GAAP diluted eamings per share for the 2006 fiscal
year (excluding the merger related expenses}) in calculating whether or not we met the performance targets of our 2006
T Annual Cash Incentlve Plan and our eammgs per share targets in our restricted stock award agreements. ‘
b Net Interesr Income Net interest income represents Lhe amount by whlch interest earned on various earning assets
. exceeds interest paid on deposits and other |i1terest bearing liabilities and is the most sugmﬁcant component of our
¢ earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded net interest income of $60,953,000, which resulted in a
" net interest margm of 3.90%. For the year ellded December 31, 2005, we recorded net interest income of $29,038,000,
t+ which resulted in a net interest margin of 3, GO% ‘For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded net mterest
income of $20 264 000, which resu]ted in'a het interest margin of 3.62% for the year.

| .The followmg table sets forth the amount of our average balances interest income or-interest expense for each
-category of i lnterest-eammg assets and interest- bearmg liabilities and the average interest rate for total interest- -earning
! assets and total interest-bearing liabilities,’ ndt interest spread and net interest margin for each of the years in the three-
© " year period ended December 31, 2006 (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 ' . 2004

i

i
Vo TR ; i L " iy Average I .. Rates/ . Average - Rates/  'Average _ Rates/
A e 1+ Balances . . Ipterest Yields Balances Interest Yields Balances Interest  Yields
Interest-earning assets: ) oy PR o . ) ' ‘
Loans (1} . R $1,226,803- 3 92,006 ©7.50%  $562,061 $35167 6.26% $373,287 319,510 '5.34%
Securities: o, P : _ . ' . ‘
Taxable o ; 254906 . 12,6157 4 95% - 204,532, 9,086 4.44% 162,712 " 6,936 4.26%.
Tax -exempt ) [ . 54,270 12,016 4. 50%, -31,578 . 1,116 4.66% 13,899 491  4.55%
Federal funds sold and other .+ 53,562 3,059 6.87% 24,541 . 939  3.90% 17,610 342 1.94%
Total interest-earning assets 1,589,541 109,696 6.95% 822,712 46,308 5.68% 567,508 27,679 491%'
Nonea;'ning assets ; : 189,675 . . 47,322 - 29,872
~ Total as.se.is .y 51,779,216 - o - $870,034 ’ $597,380
Interest-bearing liabilities: ! T
Imer‘est—bearing deposits: . T ’ . .
Interest checkmg . C $ 171,637 % 4,074 237% $65119 5 659 1.01% 538,544 $ 191 0.50% .
Savings and money market f 435,082 13;532 3.11% - 250 136 4,860 194% 173318 1,520 . 0.88%
Certificates ofdepoqn C_ . 516,394 22426 434% 256056 8171 3.19% 182221 - 4118  226%
Total deposus * t "o 1,123,113 10,032 * 3:.56% ~ 571,311 ‘13,680 2.40% 394,083 ' 5829 1.48%
Secuntles sold under agreements | : - - P ‘ !
to repurchase > : 101,144, 4329 428% 54,811 1,315 °240% . 20,466 104 0.51%,
Federal funds purchased i 260 - 66 5.26% 1,607 57 351% - 1,705 -1 24 1.43%
Federal Home Loan Bank : N . . - ; ' S _
" advances | 38,468 1,812 471% 42326 1,222 2.89% 46,284 1,027 2.22%.
Subordinated debt - ; .- 37,372 2,504 . 6.70% 16361 . . 986 .602% . 10310 . .-431 4.18%
Total interest-bearing . - . S STt ‘ : - ‘ .o : '
“liabilities . . ' S 1,301,357 0 48743 L.3.75% . 686416, 17,270, 2.52% 472,848 7415° 1.57%;
Neninterest-bearing deposits - 259,585 - - 120,007 - . - - 78,616 - e
Total deposits and interest- -« _ . A R . o : i
" bearing liabilities ° ‘ L 1,560942 48,743 3.12% 806,423 17,270 2.14% 551,464 7415 1.34%
Other liabilities - | . 11,105 “t 4 . 2,730 . - 2,707 ., ,
Stockholders' equity . 207,169 R 60881 - .. 43209 . .
f . e 181,779,216 $870,034. | R $597,380 L
Net interest income -1 S ' =$(}0,953 ) ; $29.038 - £20,264
Net interest spread (3)” - - 3.20% ‘ T 3.16% 3.34%
Net interest margin ’ - 3.90% ) ' 3.60% 3.62%
(n Avérage balances of nonperfonnnng loans are included in the fbove amounts.
K (2) Yields based on the carryllng value of those tax exempt instrurfients are shown on a fully tax equivalent basis. -
(3) The net interest spread calculanon excludes the i impact of demand deposits. Had the impact of demand deposits been included the net interest spread for
.the year ended December 31, 2006 would have been 3.83% cumpared to a net interest spread for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 of 3.54%
and 3.36%, respectlvely
; . . . : 1
I
; -23-
t . . .
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As noted above, the net interest margin for 2006 was 3.90% cempared to a net interest margin of 3.60% for the same
period in 2005. The net change in the net 1nterest margin was significant because the net increases in the yield on
interest-earning assets was approximately 127 basrs pomts compared to the increase in the rate pald on interest-bearing
liabilities of 123 basis points. The net interest margm for 2004 was 3.62%. Other matters related to the changes in net
interest income; net interest yields and rates, an]d net interest margin are presented below: ! . i

e  Our loan yields increased between 2006 and 2005 by 124 basis points. The pricing of a large portion of our loan |
portfolio is tied to our prime rate. Our welghted average prime rate for 2004 was 4.40% compared 10 6.25% in 2005
and 8.02% in 2006. The rates were higher in 2006 and 2005 due to periodic increases in our pnme lending rate,
which moves in concert with the Federal Reserve’s changes to its Federal funds rate.

»  We have been able to grow our funding base significantly. For asset/liability management purposes in 2005 and
2006, we elected to allocate a greater proportlon of such funds to our loan portfolio versus our securities and shorter-
term investment portfolio than in 2004. For 2006, average loan balances were 69% of total assets corpared to 65'%
in 2005 and 62% in 2004. Loans generally have hlgher yields than do securities and other shorter-term investments.
This change in allocation contributed to the increase in thz overall total interest earning asset ylelds between the
three years. l .

¢ During 2006; overall deposit rates were higher than those rates for the comparable penod in 2005 and 2004,
Changes in interest rates paid on such products as interest checking, savings and money market accounts, securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and Federal funds purchased will generally increase or decrease in a manner,
that is consistent with changes in the shortl—term rate environment, During 2006, as was the ‘case with our prime
lending rate, short-term rates were higher than in 2005 and 2004. We also monitor the pricing of similar products
by our primary competitors The changes t’n the short-term rate environment and the pricing of our primary
competitors required us to increase these rates in 2006 compared to the previous periods whlch resulted in increased
rates pald on interest bearing liabilities. - , t

¢ During 2006, the average balances of nonmterest bearing depo:tt balances, interest bearmg transaction accounts,
savings and money market accounts and sec urities sold under agreements to fepurchass amounted to 62% of our |
total funding compared to 61% in 2005 and 56%-in 2004. These funding sources general]y have lower rates than!do
other funding sources, such as certificates |ot' deposit and other borrowings. !

t
¢  Also impacting the net interest margm dunng 2006 compared to 2005 and 2004 was pricing of our floating rate
subordinated indebtedness which compnsec approximately $30 million of our aggregate subordmated indebtedness
as of December 31, 2006. The interest rate charged on this indebtedness is generally higher than other funding
sources. The rate charged on the floating rate portion of the indebtedness is determined in relatton to the three-
month LIBOR index and reprices quarterly During 2006, the short-term interest rate t-nvrronment was higher than
previous years, and, as a result, the pricing for this funding source was higher in 2006, Addttlonally, in September
2005, we issued an additional $20 million|in fixed rate subordinated indebtedness at a rate of 5.848% for the first
five years with a floating rate determined in relation to three-month LIBOR thereafter.

Prior to the merger with Cavalry, Cavalry's net interest margin was higher than ours. As a result, since the merger date,
our net interest margin is higher compared to thu. same periods last year due to the impact of the net assets of Cava]ry
being included with our net assets and because Cavalry’s cosl of funding were less than ours. !

We believe that interest rates should remain fa]irly stable over the next few quarters. We also believe we will continue to
increase net interest income through growth in cammg assets with particular emphasis on ﬂoatmg rate lending.
However, the additional revenues provided by'mcreased floating rate loans may not be sufficient fo overcome any
immediate increases in fundmg costs such that we are unable to maintain our current net interest margin. As a result,
even though our net interest income will contlr'me to increase, our net interest margins will likely decrease due to new,
deposits being obtained at current market rates which are higher than our current average cost of fundmg and the
continued competitive deposit pricing in our market area. We believe our net interest margin for 2007 should be within
a range of 3.60% to 3.80%, compared to 3.74% for the fourth quarter of 2006.

' i
i
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: -Conversely, should interest rates begm to fluctuate over the next few quarters, we believe that in a rising.interest rate

o 1env1ronment we would be able to repnce our ﬁaSCtS more qulckly than our funding costs and thus lwe believe we would
{be ablé to grow our net mterest income-and ne interest margins in'such an.environment. Conversely, ina falling rate-

. environment, this would serve to have the oppusite effect on our net mterest income and net 1nterest margins. Ina
ifalling rate environment, we may-not be able t0 reduce’ our dep051t fundmg costs as quickly as our assets would reprice

_ due to. market pressures whlle our net mlerest
T ‘nsmg or stable mterest rate’ envnronment

N
'.r-..~ v i -

Rare and Volume Analysis?: Net 1nterest income

1o

{.
ncome would not 1ncrease as fast as it would l1kely increase under a

= increased by $31,915, 000 between the years ended December 31, 2006

o ‘and 2005 and by.$8,774,000 between the years eénded December 31, 2005 and 2004, The followmg is an analy51s of the

changes 1n our nt.t interest mcome companng 4

he’ changes attributable to rates and !hose attnbutable to volumes (dollars

*inthousands): - -
! N . i e . R T - E - L.
L S 2006 Compared to 2005 ,2005{ Compareéi to 2004 :
S . - Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to i
. i _ Rate: Volume . Net ' Rate :  Volume . Net
A Interest-eammg assers S o e : o e
“Loans . ' § 6970 $: 49869 -$56839 -§53434 § 11,823 §15257 ©
Secumles ! o e . : : . L .
i “Taxable « - 1,043 PRo486 0 3,529 - 293 1,857 *2,150 "
Tax-exempt . ; T - 1176 + S 8240 - 900 . 15 . .610 625 }
. Federal fiinds sold" r TO79 0 - 1391 . 2120 v 345 1252 597 7
- Total interést-caming assets‘ 8,818 . 54,570 63,388° 4,087 14,542 18,629 'y .
"n- Lo e S
Imerest-bearmg liabilities: ' 1
o Intérest- -bearing deposits: S e o T Lt
»l lnterest checking s 886 & 2,529 § 3,415 $ 197 78 271 $ 468
s Savmgs and money market 12,927 5,745 8672 . 1,837 1,503 3,340 ¢
: Certificates ofdeposu ' 4 2:9'45" . 11,310 14,255° 1,695 - 2,358 4,053- 1
© Total deposits b 6,758 2 T 19,584 26342 . 3,729 4,132 7,861 ‘
i Securities sold under agreements to ‘ ) . : ‘ L
: repurchase:’ e -+1,031 1,983 3014 = 387 824 1211
| Federal funds purchased | S8 . (a9 -9 35 @ 3 i
_' Federal Home Loan Bank advances ~- 770 © {180) 590 310 _(115) 195 - .
i ‘Subordinated debt ¥ - 11 - 1407 1518 190 . 365 555 .t
- Total interest- beanng liabilities 8,698 |- 22775 - 31473 465l 5204 ' 9855
"':Netmteresrmcame» Lo o8 120 8 31,795 831915 8 (564) 8 9.338 * §8.774 )

-
.

Changes in net interest income are atmbuted to either changes n average balances (volume change) or changes in average mtes {rate chan!,e) for" v - T

earning assets and sources of funds on which interest is receiv
while rate change is change in rate times the prev:ous volume,
. is considered above as a change in volume
: |
i -'"i - l
R
1

i__- i

= )

F sl

1

d or pand Volume change is calculated as change in volume nmes the prewous rate
The change attributed 1o rates and volumes (elumge in rate tlmes change in volume)

©E

. :
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Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for lozlin losses represents a charge to earnings necessary tb establish an
allowance for loan losses that, in our management’s evaluation, should be adequate to provide coverage for the 1nherent
losses on outstanding loans. The provisien for loan losses amounted to $3,732,000, $2 152,600 and $2,948,000 for the'
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 200¢t respectively. . '

I [

Based upon our management's evaluation of theiloan portfelio, we believe the allowance for loan losses to be adequate 1o
absorb our estimate of probable losses existing 1n the loan portfolio at December 31, 2006. A significant increase in loan
growth and increased net-charge offs in 2006 were the primary reasons for the increased provision expense in 2006 when
compared to 2005. A significant decrease in grgr)s,s charge-offs, increases in recoveries of praviously charged-off loans]
and improvement in the overall credit quality of our loan portfolio, net of the effect of an increase in loan volumes, were
the primary causes for the decrease in our provi'sion for loan losses in 2005 when compared to 2004.
Based upon management's assessment of the Ioan portfolio, we adjust our allowance for loan losses to an amount
deemed appropriate to adequately cover 1nherent risks in the lcan portfoho While our policies and procedures used to
estimate the allowance for loan losses, as well as the resultant orovision for loan losses charged to operations, are
considered adequate by our management and ar'e reviewed from time to time by Pinnacle National's regulators, they are
necessarily approximate and imprecise. There emst factors beyond our control, such as general economic conditions
both locally and nauonally, which may negauve]y impact, materially, the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses and,
thus, the resulting provision for loan losses. :

i
Noninterest Income. Qur noninterest income is _'composed of several components, some of which vary significantly
between quarterly and annual periods. Service charges on deposit accounts and other noninterest income generally
reflect our growth, while investment services and fees from the origination of mortgage loans'will often reflect market
conditions and fluctuate from period to period. lThe opportunities for recognition of gains on loans and loan
participations sold and gains on sales of investment securities may also vary widely from quarter to quarter and year to
year and may diminish over time as our IendingF and industry concentration limits increase. |

The following is the makeup of our nomnterest income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (dolars

in thousands): l
Years ended - 2006-2005 ' Yearended  2005-2004
I December 31, Percent December 31, Percem
) Increase ! J’ncrease
| 2006 2005 (Decrease} 2004 (Decrease)
Noninterest income: . ‘ '
Service charges on deposit accounts % 4,645 $ 978 379w "% 956 2139
Investment services ‘ 2,463 1,836 342% 1,657  10.8%
Gains on sales of loans and loan participations, net: !
Fees from the origination and sale of mortgage . : o
loans, net of sales commissions ] 1,448 1,096 33.1% © 760 44.2%
Gains on loan participations sold, net [ 420 152 1753% 514 (70.4%
Insurance sales commissions ¢ 2,123 - - ! - -
Gain on sale of investment secuntles net ’ - 114 (100.0%) | 357 (68.1%)
Trust fees I BREY - - : - L.
Other noninterest income: ! . S l _
ATM and other consumer fees 1,796 90 1895.6% - 58 552%
Letters of credit fees ‘l 506 527 (4,0"'/,) J 212 9‘5.8%
Bank-owned life insurance i 470 74 535.1% 78 (5.1%%)
Equity in earnings of Collateral Plus, LLC 120 216 (44,4%%) ) 9 l -
Other noninterest income | 614 311 97.4% | 317 (1.9%)
Total noninterest income ; $ 15,786 $ 5,394 192.7% § 4978 8.4%
|

Service charge income for 2006 increased ovel‘ that of 2005 and 2004 due to increased vo]umes from our Rutherford
County market and an increase in the number bt Nashville deposit accounts subject to service charges However, forjthe
Nashville accounts, the increase in service charges in 2006 when compared to 2005 and 2004 was offset by the eammgs
credit rate provided by Pinnacle National to :té commercial dzposit customers. This eamnings credlt rate serves to reduice
the deposit service charges for our commercial customers and is based on the average balances oﬁ their checking

accounts at Pinnacle National. l
{ Il
l
|
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Also included in noninterest income are comniissions and fees from our financial advisory unit, Pinnacle Asset

' Management, a division of Pinnacle Nationalq At December 31, 2006, Pinnacle Asset Management was receiving
commissions and fees in connection with approximately $597 mlll1on in brokerage assets held with Raymond James
‘ Financial Services, Inc. compared to $441 million at December 31, 2005. Additionally, at December 31, 2006, our trust
department was receiving fees on approxlmat&ly $395 million in assets and in 2006 we earned $2.1 million for insurance
, commissions. Following our merger with Ca\'ralry, we now offer trust services through Pinnacle National’s trust division
and insurance services through Miller and Lor'lghry Insurance and Services, Inc. which we believe will increase our
- noninterest income in future periods.

Additionally, mongage related fees also proviled for a significant portion of the increase in noninterest income between
' 2006 and previous periods. These mortgage fees are for loans originated in both the Nashville and Rutherford County

' markets that are subsequently sold to third-party investors. All of these loan sales transfer servicing rights to the buyer.
“Generally, mortgage origination fees mcreaseLn lower interest rate environments and decrease in rising interest rate
“environments. As a result, mortgage originatibn fees may fluctuate greatly in response to a changmg rate environment.

;We also sell certain commercial loan participations to our correspondent banks. Such sales are primarily related to new
‘ lending transactions in excess of internal loan]limits or industry concentration limits. At December 31, 2006 and
pursuant to participation agreements with these correspondents, we had participated approximately $95.4 miltion of
originated loans to these other banks comparefl to $60.3 million at December 31, 2005. These participation agreements
have various provisions regarding collateral ppsition, pricing and other matters. Many of these agreements provide that
. we pay the correspondent less than the loan’s Eontracted interest rate. Pursuant to SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
" Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets ahd Extinguishments of Liabilities — a replacement of FASB Statement
No. 125, in those transactions whereby the cOrrespondent is receiving a lesser amount of interest than the amount owed
by the customer, we record a net gain along with a corresponding asset representing the present value of our net retained
, cash flows. The resulting asset is amortized over the term of the loan. Conversely, should a loan be paid priorto -
matunty any remaining unamortized asset is Charged as a reduction to gains on loan participations sold.. We recorded
gams net of amortization expense related to'tle aforementioned retained cash flow asset, of $420,000, $152,000 and
-$234,000 during each of the years in the three;year period ended December 31, 2006 related to the loan participation
-transactions. We intend to maintain relationships with our correspondents in order to sell participations in future loans to
these or other correspondents primarily due to limitations on loans to a single borrower or industry concentrations. In
: general, the Cavalry merger has resultéd in anlincrease in capital which has resulted in increased lending limits for such
“items as loans to a single borrower and loans to a single industry such that our need to participate such loans in the future
" may be reduced. In any event; the timing of p‘articipations may cause the level of gains, if any, to vary significantly.

: Dttring 2004,’ we sold a loan to an individual and reborded a gain'on the sale of this loan of $280,000, which is also ]
included in gains on sale of loans. We had ac{juired this loan in a settiément agreement with a borrower for which we
had no basis in the loan. c -

Also included in noninterest income for 2005 bhnd 2004, were net gains of approximately $114,000 and $357,000 realized
from the sale of avarlable for-sale securities. :

. Included in other noninterest income are miscgllaneous consumer fees, such as ATM revenues, merchant card and other
electronic banking revenues. We expenenced a significant increase in these revenues in 2006 compared to previous
periods due primarily to the merger with Cavalry as Cavalry had a larger presence in these business lines than we did.

Noninterest income from the cash surrender v’llue of bank-owned life insurance increased significantly between 2006
_and the previous periods. In connection with the Cavalry merger, we became the owner and beneficiary of several life
insurance policies on former Cavalry executives. These policies were acquired by Cavalry in connecnon witha
supplememal renrement plan for these former{Cavalry executives.

.

At the end of 20[}4 we formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinnacle Credit Enhancement Holdings, Inc. (“PCEH™).

. PCEH owns a 24.5% interest in Collateral Plu‘s, LLC. Collateral Plus, LLC serves as an intermediary between investors
and borrowers in certain financial transactions whereby the borrowers require enhanced collateral in the form of
guarantees or letters of credit issued by the inyestors for the benefit of banks and other financial institutions, Qur equity
"in the earnings of Collateral Plus, LLC for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $l20 000 and §216,000,

. respectively.

. Additional other nonmterest income increased by approximately $303,000 during 2006 when compared to 2005 and
' decreased by $6,000 in 2005 when compared {o 2004, Most of these revenues are for loan late charges and other fees.
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Noninterest Expense. Noninterest expense consists of salaries and employee benefits, equipment and occupancy
expenses, and other operating expenses. The fo]lowmg is the makeup of our noninterest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thuusands)

Years ended’ 2006-2005 . Year ended _ 2005-2004

Total noninterest expense $ 46,624 $21,032  s27% ' $14,803 42.0%

|
I December 31, Percent ' December 31, Percerfl
| Increase Increase
| 2006 - 2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decre'ase)
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits: - 5 859 ! ‘ g o7
Salaries 18, . 109.7% '-§ 58 45.7%
Commissions | 1,298 74 a8 610 17.0%
Other compensation, primarily incentives 4,209 2,101 100.3% 1,217 72.6%
Equity compensation expenses | 1,475 245 . 502.0% 43 469.:8%
Employee benefits and other 2,470 1,479 67.0% 1,279 15.6%
Total salaries and employee beneﬁts 27,469 . 13131 109.2% 9,046 45.3%
Equipment and occupancy 7,522 3,767 979 2,406 56.6%
Marketing and business development 1,234 - 698 768% 607  15.0%
Postage and supplies l 1,510 618  1443% . 492 256%
Amortization of core deposit intangible - E 1,783 - - b - J
Other noninterest expense: C _ ‘ . , 0
Accounting and auditing . | 742 646 14.9% ‘ 540 19.6%
Consultants, including independent loan review 320 123 160.2% 182 (24%
Legal, including borrower-related chargest 310 245 265% 280 (12.3)%
OCC exam fees ! 257 182 41.2% 131 38.9%
Directors' fees _ ’ 257 Co229 2 b 138 sy
Insurance, including FDIC assessments | 687 322 Hia 7 256 25.8%
Other noninterest expense I 2,897 1,071 170.5% - 725 47.7%
Total other noninterest expense ! ' 5,470 2,818 941% 2,252 25i%
Merger related expense E 1,636 - ~ - -4

Expenses have generally increased between the above periods clue to our merger with Cavalty, perslonnel additions -
occurring throughout each period, the continued: development of our branch network and other expenses which increase
in relation to our growth rate. We anticipate connnued increases in our expenses in the future for such items as
additional personnel, the opening of additional brmches, audit expenses and other expenses which tend to increase in
relation to our growth. Additionally, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in 2006 which addresses the accountmg for
employee equity based incentives. Qur compensatlon expense will increase in all future penods as a result of adopting
this accounting pronouncement. In 2006, approilmately $1.01 million of compensation expense related to stock options
is included in equity compensation expense.

At December 31, 2006, we employed 404.0 full Itime equivalent employees compared to 156.5 at Décember 31, 2005 and
122.0 at the end of 2004. We intend to contmueI to add employees to our work force for the foreseeable future, which.
will cause our salary costs to increase in future periods. o

We believe that variable pay incentives are a valuable tool in motivating an employee base that is focused on providing’
our clients effective financiat advice and increasing shareholder value. As a result, and unlike many other financial |
1nstitutions, substantially all of our employees arre eligible to participate in an annual cash ine entwe plan. Included in the
salary and employee benefits amounts for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $4,104,000,
$2,031,000 and $1,135,000, respectively, related to variable cash awards. This expense will ﬂuctuale from year to year
and quarter to guarter based on the estimation of achievement of performance targets and the increase in the number of|
associates eligible to receive the award. For 2006 the actual award to be paid to qualifying associates equaled 120% of
their targeted award. For 2005, the actual award 1o be paid to associates equaled 100% of lh’“ll' targeted award compared
to 80% in 2004. The incentive plan for 2007 is e)\pected to be structured similarly to prior yPar plans in that the award is
based on the achievement of soundness and eammgs objectives. Because of the relative experience 'of our associates, , our
compensation costs are, and we expect will contlnue to be, higher on a per associate basis than: other financial institutions
of a similar asset size; however, we believe the expenence and engagement of our asscciates also allows us to employ
fewer people than most financial institutions our size.
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Equ1pment and occupancy expenses in 2006 v

ere greater than the 2005 amount by 99.7% due primarily to the addmonal

‘branches and equipment acquired with the Cayalry merger. Additionally, during 2004, we opened a new branch ofﬁce in
2005 we opened an office in Franklin; Tennéssee and in the second ..

Jquarter of 2005 we opened an office in Hendegsonville, Tennessée. We plan on opening an office in the Donelson area .

(of Nashville, Tennessee in-the first quarter of 2007.: These branch additions contributed to the increase in our equipment
.sand occupancy expenses throughout the three year period and will contribute to increases in expenses in the. future

.the West End area of Nashville. In January o

Marketmg and other busmess development an I postage and supplies expenses aré higher i in 2006 compared 1o 2005 and
rs and prospective customers; increases in ‘the number of customer .

2004 due to mcrr.ases in the number of custon}ls
contact personnel ‘and the correspondtng increfses ifl customer entertainment; and other business development expenses.

20067,4 nnual Report -

_,l
N |

The addition of customers from the Cavalry m'erger had a direct impact on these mcreased charges. "

Other nonmterest expenses increased 94.1% i) 2006 over 2005 and 25. 1% m 2005 over 2004. Most of these i 1ncreases .
ng fees, legal fees and insurance expenses. . Also contributing to the .
etated to deposit gathering and lending. Examples include expenses
service charges, check losses, appraisal expenses, closing attorney

are attributable to.increased audit and accountin
increases in 2006 are incidenta! variable costs
~ related to ATM networks, correspondent bank
expenses and other items which have increasec

b : S
‘Included in noninterest exp'ense for 2006 is 31

1 srgnrt' cantly asa result of the Cavalry merger.

1-

of merger related expenses directly associated

"

the remarmng two years.
t

.E

The merger related charges consisted of i integra
depreciation assocrated with software and othef

Cavalry acqursttlon We do not antrcrpate any
transacnon n 2007

Our efﬁctency ralto (ratio of nomnlerest expen

2006 compared to’ 61.1% in 2005 and to 58.6%)i

incurred 10 generate a dollar of revenue.

1 -

The lower effective tax rate in 2005 and 2004 was prrmanly due to addtttonal tax-exempt investment income and the
formation.of a real ‘estate investment trust durinf the fourth: .quarter of 2004, which provides us with-an alternative
dditionally, the ownership structure of this real estate investment trust
alsollowered our effective tax rate. Also for 2005 and 2004 our
effective rate was 1mpacted by Federal tax credits related to the New Markets Tax Credit program whereby a subsidiary
of Pinnacle National ‘has been awarded approxlr‘nately $2.3 million in future Federal tax credits to be realized thru 2010.
The credit available for each of the years in the fhree-year period ended December 31, 2006 was $300,000. Pinnacle
Financial believes that it and its subsidiary has domplied with the various regulatory provisions of the New Markets Tax
2004 and 2005 Federal income tax return and will claim the credlt in

vehicle for ratsmg capttal shoutd we so desire.

prov1des certam state income tax benefits whrcl}

Credrt program and has claified the credit in its

. 2006

.o

IS
|
P
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78 nnllron of amortization of the core deposit mtangrble and $l .64 million
mth the Cavalry merger. In connection with the Cavalry merger we
recognized an intangible asset of $13.2 million] related to the fair value of Cavalry’s core deposit base as of the i merger
date. This identified intangible is being amortized over seven years using an-accelerated method which anticipates the
life of the; underlvmg deposits to which the intangible is atmbutable For the year ended Décember 31, 2006, :
approxrmately $1.78 million was recognized ir the statement of-income. Amortization expense associated with the core

deposrt intangible will approximate $1.8 mrlho‘n t0.$2.1- million per year for the next five years wrth lesser amounts for - -

. r"

dtion costs mcurred in connection with the merger tncludrng accelerated
technology assets whose useful lives’ were shortened as a result of the
1dd1tronal merger related expénses, aasocrated with the Cavalry

eto the sum of 1 net interest income and noninterest lmc:ome:) was 60. 8% in
in 2004 The efﬁc1ency ratro measures the amount of expense that is

Income Taxes. The effectrve income tax expénse rate for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately 32.1%, -
compared to an effective income tax expense rdte for years ended December 31, 2005.and 2004 of approxlmately 28.4%

: and 29.0%, respectrvely The increase in the ¢ ective tax rate in 2006 was due pnmanly to the additional earnings being

* taxed ata higher rate as the various tax savings|initiatives (e.g., municipal bond rncorne) had a lesser impact in 2006
"when compared to the previous periods. Additionally, the impact of our incentive stock options and their treatment
pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) aso contr1buted to the increase in our effective rate in 2006
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Financial Condition

l l

Our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, ”006 reflects s lgmf' icant growth since December 31, 2004. Total assets
grew from $727 million at December 31, 2004 tp $1.02 billien at December 31, 2005 to $2.14 blllmn at December 31,
2006. Total deposits grew $812 million during 2006 and $239 millien during 2005, Excluding the'deposits acquired

with the Cavalry acquisition on March 15, 2006/0f $584 million, total deposits increased by $228 million in 2006. We
invested substantially all of the additional deposlns and other fundings in loans, which grew by $850 million (of whlch]
$551 million was acquired with the Cavalry acqutsmon) and $176 million during 2005, and secumles which increased

by $67 million i in 2006 (of which $39 million wlm acquired with the Cavalry acquisition) and $71 million in 2005. '

Loans. The composition of loans at December 31 for each of the past five years and the per—.entage (%) of cach
classification to total loans are summarized as foilows (dollars in thousands): | )
i o

2006 Tl 2005 2004 2003 2002

. Amount . Percent J(moum Percent Amount Percemt Amouns I;ercen! Amount ;’c.rcem‘

Commercial real estate - Mortgage $ 284,302 19.0% l5148,1(}2 22.0% 5117,123 248%° § 68,567 '23.1% $ 58,965 28.1%
Commercial real estate - Construction 161,903 10.8% ‘ i 30,295 4.7% 8,428 1.8% E,Zil 2.8% 5,397 2.6%
Commercial - Other . 608,530 40.6% 239,129 36.9% 189,456 . 40.1% ]29,8&2 :43.7% 98,722 | 47.1%
Total commercial 1054735 704% 1417526 644% 315007 667% 206600 69.6% 163,084 | 77.8%
Consumerlreal estate - Mortgage 299,627 200% I 169,953 26.7% 126,907 26.9% 76,042 ;25.6“9 37,533 i 17.9%
Consumer real estate - Construction 91,194 6.1% [ 37312 5.3% 14991 . - 32% 2077 1.0% LT 0.9%
Consumer - Other . 52,179 3.5% l 23,173 3.6% 15,457 33% 11,285 3.8% 7,155 I 3.4%
Total consumer ! 443.000  20.6% | 30498  356% 157355 333% 90404 304% 46659 | 222%
Total loans §1,497,738 .!.00.0% ‘34348,024 T 10040% $472,362 100.0% $297.004 l\(30().0% 5109,';43 l\%.ﬂ%

1 i
H

Primarily due to the Cavalry merger, we have 1m.reased the percentage of our outstanding loans in commercial real estate

construction significantly. These types of loan§ require that we maintain effective credit and construction monitoring ‘
systems. Also as a result of the Cavalry merger, we have increased our resources in this area so that we can attempt to
effectively manage this area of exposure through utilization of experienced professionals who are well-trained in this
type of lending and who have significant experience in our geographic market. . ;
The following table classifies our fixed and vari“iable rate loans at December 31, 2006-according to.contractual maturities
of (1) one year or less, (2) after one year through five years, and (3) after five years. The table also classifies our
variable rate loans pursuant to the contractual repncmg dates of the underlying loans (dollacs in thousands):

l Amounts af December 31, 2006 ]

| Fived Variable At December 31. At December 31,
i Rates Rates Totals : é006 20015
Based on contractual maturity: : ! '
Due within one year $ RB1,576 § 531615 % 613,191  409% 34.5%
Due in one year to five years ' f 444 357 152,627 596,984 39.9% : 39.4'%
Due after five years | 79,557 208,003 287,560 19.2% 26.0%
Totals $ 605,490 $ 892245 % 1,497,735 r1o0.0% 100.0%
. . ; i
Based on contractual repricing dates: g : ‘
Daily floating rate - 15 - 5689954 $ 689,954 45.;% - 53.5%
Due within one year | 81,576 122,144 203,720 13.6% 9.6:}6
Due in one year to five years 444357 68,203 512,560 ' 34.2% 28.8%
Due after five years | 79,557 11,944 91,501 6.1% ) 8.1I%
Totals $ 605,490  $ 892245  $1,497,735 100.0% 100.0%

The above information does nat consider the impact of scheduled principal payments. Daily floating rate loans ave tied to Pinnacle National's prime

lending rate or a national interest rate index with the underlving loan rates changing in relation to changes in thes: indexes.
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' Non-Performing Assets. The specific economic and credlt risks associated with our loan portfollo include, but are not

* limited to, a general downturn in the economy which could affect employment rates in our.market area, general real- .
, estate markel detetioration, interest rate flucthations, deteriorated or non-existent collateral, title defects, inaccurate
appra1sals financial deterioration of borrowefs, fraud, and any violation of laws and regulations. A

' We attempt t to reduce these economic and credit risks by adherencc to loan to value gutdelmes for collateralrzed loans

_ by investigating the credltworthmess of the bprtower and by monitoring the Botrower's financial position. Also, we-
establish and penodlcally review our lending|policies and procedures. Banking regulanons limit our exposure by

+ prohibiting loan relatlonshrps that exceed 15% of Pmnaclc National’s statutory capua] in the case of loans that are not
fully secured by readily miarketable or other fermissible types of collateral.’ Furthermore we have an internal limit for

" aggregate indebtedness to-a single borrower qf $15 million. Our loan policy requires that our board “of directors approve

+ any relationships that exceed this internal li L . . T o

We discontinue the accrual ‘of interest 1ncom when (1) there is a srgmﬁcant detenoranon in the financial condition of
; the borrower and full repayment of pnnc1pal nd interest is not expected or (2) the pnncrpal or interest is more than 90
days past due, unless the loan is both well-sequred and in the process of collection. At Decembcr 31, 2006, we had -
+1.$7,070,000 in loans on nonaccrual compared fo $460,000 at December 31, 2005. The.increase in nonperformmg loans -
.- " between December 31, 2005 and Decémber 31, 2006 was primarily related to toans acqu1red from Cavalry and identified .
1 as being impaired as dlscussed more fully bel w and several larger loans 1dentlﬁed in the fourth quarter of 20006.

i At December 31, 2006, we owned $995,000 i real estate which we had acquired from borrowers Substantlally all of

- this amount relatés to homes that are in variogs stages of construction for which we beligve we have adequate collateral.” .

:  There was approximately $737,000 in other lgans 90 days past due and still accruing interest at December 31, 2006

l compared to no loans at December 31, 2005, JAt December 31, 2006 and at December 312005, no loans were deemed
l to be restructured loans. The following table |s a summary of our nonperformmg dSSCtS at December 31 for each of the
| years, 2006, 2003, 2004 2003 and 2002 (dolldrs-in thousands) R - ‘

oy

l : B ‘ ! . ) < ’ ‘Arrbecembe;'JI,

; : B o 2006 05 T 2004 . 2003 2002

+ Nonaccrual loans (1) ; i o $§ 7070 % 460 % 561 % 379 § 1,845

| Restructured loans o o e . L - S . .

. Other real estate owned ' . 995 - - - - -

. Total nonperforming assets . ’ . -8065 460 - o561 - . 379 1,845 . -

" Accruing loans past due 90 days or more . 737 - 0 146 182 ‘22

i Total nonperforming assets and accruing loans past dugl90 days or more " . 8.802 460 ¢ 707 ° 561 ) 1,867

1 Total loans outstanding . $1,497,735 $648.024  $472,362 - $297,004 $ 209,743,

i Ratio of nonpérforming assets and accruirig loans past que 90 days ormore ' ¢ | T ) ’ R

. to total loans outsumding at end of period : . - 0.59% . 0.07% 0.15% - 0.19% 0.89%
Ratio of nonperformmg assets and accruing loans past que 90 days or more_ . ) ! )

! 16 totat allowance for loan losses at end of period ! 54.61% 3.85%- 12.51% 15.08% 69.74%

. - : . . X y )
| (1) Interest income that would have been recorded in 2(06 related to nonaccrual loans was $283,000 compared 1o $21,000 for the year ended

December 31, 2005 and $41,000 for the year ended|December 31, 2004, none of which is included in interest income or net income for the

Ny nf)plicable pcriods

.

. 'lPotentlal prob]em assets, which are not included in nonperforming assets amounted to approxrmalely £6.0 million, or
0.24% of total loans outstandmg at Decemberj31, 2006, compared to $1.3 million, or 0.20% of totat loans outstanding at
1December 31, 2005. Potential problem assets]represent those assets with a potential weakness or a well-defined
1 weakness and where information about possigle credit problems of borrowers has caused managemenl 10 have serious
*doubts about the borrower!s ability to comply}with present repayment terms. This definition is believed to be -
‘ substantially consistent with the standards established by the OCC, Pinnacle National’s primary regulalor for loans
classified as substandard.. ;- ’ ‘

. L Allowance for Loan Losses (ALL) We mamt( in the AlLL-at a level that our management deems appropnate to
’adequately cover the inherent risks in the loan portfollo As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, our
*allowance for loan losses was $16,118,000 anf $7.858,000, respectively, which our management deemed to be adequate
at each of the respecuve dates. The significant increase in our ALL was primarily the result of our merger with Cavalry.
'The judgments arid estimates associated with hur ALL determination are described under “Critical Accounting "
Estimates” above. ' '
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Approximately 70% of our. Ioan portfolio at December 31, 2006 consrsted of commercial loans' compared to 64% at
December 31, 2005. We pcnodrcally analyze our loan position with respect to our borrowers’ industries to determine if
a concentration of credit risk exists to any one or'more industries. We have significant'credit exposiures arising from -
loans outstanding and unfunded lines of credit to/borrowers in-the home building and land subdrv1d1ng industry, the
trucking industry and to lessors of residential and commercial properties. We evaluate our ex, posure level to these
industry groups periodically to determme the amount of additional allowance allocations due to these concentrations.

The following table sets forth; based on managerlu :nt's best estlroate the allocation of the ALL to types of loans as well
as the unallocated portion as of December 31 for.each of the past five years and the percentage of loans in each category
to the total loans (dollars in thousands):. - l l

" i
T o S
2006 . " \ 2005 2004 003 - 2002

. Amount . Percent . Amount  Percerit  Amount . Percent ° Amount- | Percent Amount Percent
Commercial real estate - Mortgage . $ 4550  190% ' $1,.488  229%  $1,205 248% 5 723 7 231% $ 508 28.1%
. Commercial real estate - Construction 2,591 10.8%. | 630 -4.7% 188 - 18% - 103« 2, 8% 59
Commercial - Other J 6517  406% 2305 369% . 1711 - 40.1% 1,236 ;. 43.7% 977 47.1%
Total commercial . 13,658  704% - 4423  64.4% 3,104 66.7% 2062 | 69.6% 1,544 i77.8%
Consumer real estate - Mortgage 913 20.0% - l,1286 L 262% 869  269% 607 % 25.§% 392 17.9%
Consumer real estate - Construction 278 61% | 60 5.8% 39 3.2% 10, 10% 13
Consumer - Other . 870 3.5% y 352 3.6% s 396 . '3.3% 320 | 3.53% 193
Total consumer - S 2061 29.6% 1,398 35.6% 1,304 33.3%, 937 | 30.4% 598 2%
Unallocated , 399 NA 1,537 NA 1,242 NA 720 ! NA 535 | NA
Total allowance for loan losses $16,118 1000% $7.358 1000%  $5650  100.0% 53,719 , 100.0% $2,677 100.0%

o ! !
In periods prior to 2006 the unallocated portion of the allowan( e consisted of dollar amounts spec1ﬁcal|y set aside for
certain general factors influencing the allowancel These factors included ratio trends and other factors not specifically
allocated to each category. Establishing the percentages for these factors was largely subjectrve but was supported by
economic data, changes made in lending functions, and other support where appropriate. In ”006 the unallocated
portion decreased stgnificantly, due to a more comprehenswe and refined model adopted to assess the adequacy of our
allowance for loan losses. As a result, in-2006, the model was refined to embed many of the factors. prevrously included
in the unallocated portion of the allowance in the allocated amounts above for each category. Thrs enhancement
" established a method whereby national'and econom1c factors, concentrations in market segmems loan review and
portfoho performance could be assrgned to these ‘:peClﬁC categones _ ;
" The followmg is a summary of changes in the allowance for 10an losses for the years ended Delcember 31, 2006, 2005,
2004, 2003, and 2002 and the ratio of the allowance for loan lo‘.ses to total loans as of the end of each perlod {dollars in
thousands): S o P

r———

o

3 .
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For the year ended December 31,7 -}

2002

. 2006 2005 2004 . 2003

_ Balance at bcgiﬁning of period - $ 7,858 $ 5,650 $3719 . §$2677 ° §$13832
Provision for loan losses 3,732 2,152 2,948 - o157 938
Allowance from Cavalry acquisition 5,102 : LR .

,  Charged-off loans: . - k "
Commercial real estate - Mortgage v - - - - -
Commercial real estate - Construction - - - C - 9D
Commercial - Other, (436) 61 6oy L - -
Consumer real estate - Mortgage (46) (38) (834) (123) -
Consumer real estaté - Construction | . - - - s - -

: Consumer - Other _ (336) (109) .- (148). (44 )

' Total charged-off loans (818) . (208) - (1,032)- (167) (93) \

Recoveries of previously charged-off loank: ‘ '
Commercial real estate - Mortgage - - - - -
Commercml real estate - Constructmn - - 2. 49 -
Commercial - Other 166 3 - X }

! Consumer real estate - Mortgage - 231 < - CT .

'l Consumer real estate - Construction | - - - - _ - ;

2 Consumer - Other : 78 30 13 ! 3 .-

Total recovenes of previously charge l-off loans 244 264 15.. 52 - l

n Net (charge offs) recoveries (574 . - 56, (1,017 (1L5) 93

Balance at end ofperiod $16,118 $ 7,853 $5650 . .$3.719 $2.677 ‘
L) +

¢ Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total ]oans "f:“' g ‘ ' Cow

outstanding at end of period 1.08% 1.21% 120% @ 1.25% 1.28% ’

: Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries) to average Joans . ‘ ’ ’ ' -

outstanding for the period 0.05% ‘' (0.01)% 0.27% 0.05% 0.05%

for loan losses.
r

at least in part, to qred:t quality (i.e.,
apply to the loans we acquired in our merger

Included in charged-off loans in 2006 was one commercial borrower of approximately.‘$404;{)00 which had been on
nonaccrumg status since the fourth quarter of 3005, -Included in the charged-off loans during 2004 were two loans
totaling approximately $884 000, $834,000 of wh:ch had been on nonaccrual status since June of 2004, We recovered
hpproximately $231,000 of these particular chg rge-offs in 2005, .

As a relatively new msmut]on {excluding the i npact of Cavalry), we do not have extensive loss cx'pe:ﬁcncé comparable
to mote mature ﬁnanc:al mstltutlons, howeverfas our loan portfolio matures, we will have additional charge-offs as our
losses materialize. We consuier the amount and nature of our charge-offs in determmmg the adequacy of our allowance

Statemcnt of Position 03-03, Accounting for Cértain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer (“SOP 03 -03™)
+ addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to be collected from an
investor's initial investment'in loans or debt sedu urities (loans) acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable, "
“impaired loans™). SOP. 03-03 does not apply to. loans originated by us but does
ith Cavalry: Our assessment indicated 'that Cavalry:had approximately *
$3.9 million of loans to which the application qf the provisions of SOP 03-03 was required. As a result of the
-application of SOP 03-03, we recorded prelimipary purchase accounting adjustments to reflect a reduction in loans and
the allowance for loan losses of $1.0 million re]ated to these 1mpa1red loans thus reducing the carrying value of thesé
Jloans to $2.9 million at March 15, 2006.. All of these loans were classified as nonperforming at December 31, 2006. The
ir;esulting impact on Cavalry’s allowance for logn losses at March 15, 2006 was as follows: ‘ - :

Impact of After

233 -

_ - Be

Impact of SOP 03-03 on Rutherford County’s allowance for loan losses APP“;?‘::" of Application . Application of
at March 15, 2006 7 - SOF 03-03 SOP 03-03 "_SGP 03-03

Allowance for loan losses $ 6,129 $1027 - § 5;102

Fair value of Cavalry loans at acquisition date ‘ " $ 550,700

Allowance for loan losses to fair value of Cavairy oans at acquisition date 1.11%

0.93%




Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc,

| 2006 Annual Report - -

|

Investments. Our investment portfolio, consisting primarily of Federal agency bonds, state and municipal securities and
mortgage-backed securities, amounted to $346.5!million, $279.1 million and $208.2 million at December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectlvely : |

I S
I

I .
The followmg table shows the carrying value of i mvestment securities accordmg to contractual ; matunty classifications of

(1) one year or less, (2) after one year through flV( years, (3) afier five years through ten years, and (4) after ten years.

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturmes of mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages

underlying the securities may be called or prepald with or without penalty. Therefore, these secuntles are not included in

the maturity categories noted below as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands)

t

l At December 31, i .
U.S. Treasury U.S. government State and Municipal o
securities agency securities securities Corporaie securities Totals
. Antount Yield Amount ' Yield Amount Vield Amount t ‘Yield Amount | Yield
At December 31, 2006: C b
Securities available-for-sale: I o :
Due in one year or less $ - % 5§ - -% $ 2.240 4.5% 5 398 32%° § 2,638 4.3%
Due in one year to five years - -% 30,105 4.7% 22,121 5.2% 1,427 3 4% 53,653 | " 49%
Due in five years to ten years - -% 7,524 3.2% ' 28,848 5.4% - | -% 36,372 5.4%
Due afler ten years - - -% b - % 8,750 5.7% L 1 -% 8,750 5.7%
$ - - % $ 37,629 4.8% $ 61959 5.3% $§ . 1,825 :3.4% $101413 !} 5.1%
Securities held-to-maturity: . i : | .
Due in one year or less $ - % ) . -% 3 154 5.6% $ - % $ 154 5.6%
. . - .
Due in one year to five years —— -% 15,750 4.2% 5,777 4.9% i— -% 21,527 4.4%
Due in five years 1o ten years : -% 1,997 4.8% 3,579 5.0% - 1 -% 5,576 4.9%
Due after ten years ~ - -% 1. -% - -% Loy - -%
3 - -% $ 17,747 4.3% § 9,510 5.0% 3 - L -% $§ 272571 45%
At December 31, 2005: i ! ' ’
Securities available-for-sale: ) i I !
Due in one year or less $ - -% $ - -% $ - -% $ 08 133% s 404 33%
Due in one year to five years: L. S% 16,205 4.3% 5,105 4.5% 1,302 '3.4% 23,112 4.3%
Due in five years 1o ten years - . =% 14,315 5.1% 16,787 5.2% - 1-% 34,102 52%
Due after ten years - - % L. - % 7,245 5.5% . I =% 7.245 5.5%
3 - -% $ 30,520 4.7% $ 32,137 3.2% $ 2,206 13.4% $ 64,863 4.9%
Securities held-to-maturity: ' : ’ ' | .
Due in one year or less s - -% . 8 - -% $ - -% 3 - % $ - -%
Due in one year to five years . - -% 15,750 4.2% -4,010 5.0% i |- % 19,760 4,4%
Due in five years o ten years . - -% 1,997 5.0% 5,574 5.0% - | -% 7.571 5.0%
Due afier ten years - -% ¢ . -% - -% - - -% -l -%
$. - --%. $17,747 4.3% $ 9,584 5.0% $ - i -% - § 27331 4.5%
At December 31, 2004: : . " : .
Securities available-for-sale: ' ; ,
Due in one year or less -8 - % $ '! - -% 5 - -% 3 - % 2 T -%
Due in one year to five vears - -% 2,982 3.5% - % - 2,270 1'3.4% 5,252 3.5%
Due in five vears to ten years .- - % 23,001 4.7% 7409 - 5.0% . -% 30,410 4.8% -
Due after ten years . -y 1291 5.5% 5094 5.4% ey 63851  5.4%
$ - - % $27,274 4.6% 5 12,503 5.2% $ 2270 . !34% $ 42,0471 47%
Securities held-to-maturity: b . ' oo
Due in one year or less 5 - % s ! - - % $ - =% $ L% $ - -%
Due in one year to five years - -% 3,250 41% 844 4.3% ' - % 4,094 4.1%
Due in five years to ten years .+ . - -% 14,496 4.3%. 7,953 5.0% i- L% 22,449 4,5%
Duc after ten'years L - % e =% 1,053 - 53% - % 1,0531  .5.3%
3 - -% $ 17,746 4.3% $ 9,850 5.0% b3 i- % 3 27,5961 4.5%
' |

¢ computed yields using coupon interest, adding discount accretion or subtmctmg prermum amortization, as appropriate, on a ratable basis over the life of each security.

& computed lhc weighted average yield for each maturity range using the acquisition price of each security in that range
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to $810 million at-December 31, 2005. Our

savmgs accounts, money market accounts an

customers to sell certain of our securities und
-_agreements (whlch are typlca]ly assocnated W
-clients and provide themi-with short-térm ret
12006 and $65.8 million: -at December.3 1, 2005,
in advances from the Federal Home Loan Ba

r
:

Generally, banks classnfy thelr fundmg base 2
. deposits other than time deposits issued in dej
to be non-core. The following table represen
each type to the total at December 31, 2006 2|

+
.« '

iy

, Core fundmg . C
Noninterest-bearing, deposrt accounts
Interest- beanng demand accounts
Savings and money market accounts
Time deposrt accourits less than SlOO 0

Total core funding’
Non-core fundmg _".

i Time deposrt accounts greater than $10
v Public funds : g
: Brokered depos1ts . .

-

" Other time deposits -

Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Suborclmated debt

Total non-core funding
i Totals

Deposits and Other Bdrrowings. We-had ap|

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

hroximately $1.62 bitlion of deposits at December 31, 2006 compared
leposns consist of noninterest and interest-bearing demand accounts,

Ll time deposits. -Additionally, we entered into agreements with ceftain
er. agreements to repurchase the security the following day: -These - -~
ith comprehenswe treasury management programs for our commercial
rns for their excess funds) amounted to $141.0 mllhon at December 31,
Additionally, at Decémber 31, 2006,.wehad borrowed $53.7 million ,-
hk of Cincinnati compared to: $4l 5 million at'December 31, 2005.

. f '.

5 e1ther core fundmg or niof-cote fundmg Core fundmg con51sls of all
rominations of $100,000 or greater while-all other fundmg is deemed

s the balances of our deposits and other fundings and the percentage of
hd December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

December 31,
2506 "Percem’ . 2005 Percent
. b
$.300978  16.% ‘$155,81|," 163%
, 236,674 127% 72,521 7.6%
- 485936  26.0% 304,162 . 3271%
0 - ) 158,687 8.5% . 31,408 33%
: : 1,182,275 - 63.3% - 563,902 - 59.5% -
J : .
,000
98,286 5.3% 106,928« 11.3%
. 61,718 3.3% 55,360 . 58% -,
. 280,132 1s0% 83,961 .  89%
141,016  7.5% 65,834+ 69%
} 53,726 2.9% 41,500 | 4.4%
51,548 2.8% 30929 ' . 3.3% .
‘686,426 36.7% 384,512 ' 40.5% -
$1 868,701 100.0% $948414 iooo% .

The amount of time deposits issued in amounts of $ 100, 000 or more as of December 31; 2006 and 2005 amounted

'to $440.1 million and $246.2 million, respecti

‘category at December 31, 2006, based on timd remaining until maturity of (1) three months or less, (2) over three

‘but less than six months, (3} over six but less

Three months or less

Over three but less than six monthj
Over six but less than twelve months o

Over twelve months

'

an twelve months and (4) over twelve months (dollars in thousands): -

At December 31, 2006
$ 176,732
84,734 .
81,186 i Lo
. 97,484
’ § 440,136

i

Subordinated debr On December 29,2003, we estabhshed PNFP Statutory Trust I; on September 15, 2005 we »
established PNFP Statutory Trust II; and on September 7, 2006 we established PNFP Statutory Trust 111 (“Trust I -
“Trust 11"} “Trust 11" or collecuvely, the “Trufts™). - All are wholly-owned statutory business trusts. We are the sole

sponsor of the Trusts and acqun’cd each Trust’}

b common securities for $310,000, $6l9 000 and $619,000,

respectively. The Trusts were created for-the ebxcluswe purpose of issuing 30-year capital trust preferred securities

(“Trust Preferred Securities™) in the aggregate

| o :

amount of $10,000,000 for Trust I; $20,000,000 for Trust IT and

2006 Annual Repbrt:‘ =

irely The following table shows our time depos1ts over $100,000 by

e
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$20,000,000 for Trust 11I and using the proceeds to acquire junicr subordinated debentures (“‘aubordmated
Debentures™) issued by Pinnacle Financial, The so]e assets of the Trusts are the Subordinated Debentures. Qur
$1,548,000 investment in the Trusts is included i 1n investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and our $51,548,000 ,oblrgauon ts reflected as subordinated debt. ’

I ' : i
The Trust I Preferred Securities bear a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR (IS 16% at
December 31, 2006) which is set each quarter and-matures on Dzcember 30, 2033. The Trust. 11 Preferred Securities
bear a fixed interest rate of 5.848% per annum thru September 30, 2010 at which time the securities will bear a
floating rate set each quarter based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR. The Trust Il securities mature on September
30, 2035. The Trust 11 Preferred Securities bear'a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR

(7.02% at December 31, 2006) which is set each quarter and mature on September 30, 2036, ! i
Dlstrrbutrons are payable quarterly. The Trust Pre ferred Securities are: subject to mandatory redempuon upon
repayment of the Subordinated Debentures at thelrr stated maturity date or their earlier redemptlon in an amount
equal to their liquidation amount plus accumulated and unpaid distributions to the date of redernptron We
guarantee the payment of distributions and payments for redemption or liquidation of the Trust Preférred Securities
to the extent of funds held by the Trusts. Pinnacle Financial’s obligations under the Subordmated Debentures
together with the guarantee and other back- -up oblrganons in the aggregate, constitute a full and uncondrtronal
guarantee by Pinnacle Financial of the obllgatlons of the Trusts under the Trust Preferred Securmes
| !

The Subordinated Debentures are unseCured bear interest at a rate equal to the rates paid by thé Trusts on the Trust
Preferred Securities and mature on the same dates as those noted above for the Trust Preferred Securities. Interest is
payable quarterly. We may defer the payment ot; interest at any time for a period not exceeding 20 consecutlve
quarters provided that the deferral period does not extend past the stated maturity. During any such deferral period,
distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities w1ll also be deferred and our ability to pay d1v1dends on our commeon
shares will be restricted, !

; ]
Subject to approval by the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta, the Trust Preferred Securities may| be redeemed prior to
maturity at our option on or after September 17, 2008 for Trust [; on or after September 30, 2010 fot Trust I1 and
September 30, 2011 for Trust [II. The Trust Preferred Securities may also be redeemed at any time in whole (but -
not in part) in the event of unfavorable changes in laws or regulations that result in 1) the Trust becoming subject to
federal income tax on income received on the Subordinated Debentures, (2) interest payable by the parent company
on the Subordinated Debentures becoming non-deductible for fzderal tax purposes, (3) the requirement for the Trust
to register under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or (4) loss of the ability to treat the Trust
Preferred Securities as “Tier | capital” under the Federal Reserve capital adequacy guidelines. i

The Trust Preferred Securities far the Trusts quallrfy as Tier [ capital under current regulatory definitions subject to
certain limitations. Debt issuance costs assocraled with Trust I of $120,000 consisting prlmanly of underwriting
discounts and professional fees are included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. These
debt issuance costs are being amortized over ten vears using the straight-line method. There are no debt issuance
costs associated with Trust Il or Trust II1. ! A
Capital Resources. At December 31, 2006 and 2005 our stockholders’ equity amounted to $256.0 million and
363.4 million, respectively. The 2006 increase ol $192.6 million was primarily attributable to $171.1 million of
common stock issued in connection with the Calvalry acquisition and $18.8 million in comprehenswe income, which
was composed of $17.9 million in net income and $853,000 of net unrealized holding gains assocraled with our
available-for-sale portfolio. During 2005, stockholders’ equity increased by $5.5 million due primarily to $8.1
million in net income offset by other compreheﬁswe loss of $2.9 million attributable to the after tax decrease in the
fair value of our available-for-sale securities portfoho ; |

I

[ H h

Dividends. Pinnacle National is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to Plnnacle Financial under
federal banking laws and the regulations of the Ofﬁce of the Comptroller of the Currency. We, in turn, are also
subject to limits on payment of dividends to our shareholders by the rules, regulations and policies of federal
banking authorities and the laws of the State of Tennessee We have not paid any dividends to date, nor do we
anticipate paying dividends to our shareholders [for the foreseeable future. Future dividend policy \lel depend on

Pinnacle National's earnings, capital position, financial condition, anticipated growth rates and other factors.
i .
] I
! ]
; ;
!
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Market and Liquidity Risk Management
! t
! b ' )
- Our objective is to manage assets and liabiliti
framework of established liquidity, loan, inve
‘ Management Committee (*ALCO"™).is charge
*designed to ensure acceptable composition of]
rate sensitivity and liquidity risk management

Interest Rate Sens:'livity In the normal course
'in interest rates. ALCO measures and evalual
various types of loans and deposns ‘ALCOd

t

s to provide a satisfactoty, consistent level of profitability within the
stment, borrowing, and capital policies. Our Asset Liability

fl with the responsnblhty of monitoring these pohcms which are -
asselliability mix. Two critical areas of focus for ALCO are interest

| .
of business, we are exposed to market risk arising from fluctuations
s the' interest rate risk so that wé can meet customer demands for

termines the most appropriate amounts of on-balance sheet and off-

.balance sheet items. Measurements whlch we use to help us manage interest rate sensitivity include an earnings
“simulation model; an economic value of equ{ model, and gap analysis computations. These measurements are
used in conjunction with competmve pricing 2na1ys1s

Eammgs simulation model. We believe that i
Forecasted levels of eamning assets, intere

order 1o produce various earnings simulat

terest rate risk is best measured by our earnings simulation modeling.f
t-bearing liabilities, and off-balance sheet financial instruments are

combined with ALCO forecasts of mtered; rates for the next 12 months and are¢ combined with other factors in

ons. To limit interest rate risk, we have guidelines for our earnings at

risk which seek to limit the variance of ne} income to less than 10 percent for a 200 basis point change up or
down in rates from management’s flat int¢rest rate forecast over the next twelve months The results of our
current simulation model would indicate that our net interest income should increase with a gradual rise in

interest rates over the next twelve months

Economic_value of equity. Qur economic valy

and decrease should interest rates fall over the same period.

 of equity model measures the extent that estimated economic values

of our assets; liabilities and off-balance STet items will change as a result of interest rate changes Econemic

values are determined by discounting exp

cted cash flows from assets, liabilities and off- balance sheet items, -

which establishes a base case economic vqlue of equity. To help limit interest rate risk, we have a guideline -
stating,that for an instantaneous 200 basislpoint change in interest rates up or down, the economic value of
equity will not change by more than 20 pefcent from the base case.

Gap analysis. An asset or liability is considerefl to be interest rate-sensitive if it will reprice or mature within the’

time period analyzed (e.g., within threée months or one year). The interest rate-sensitivity gap is the difference

© between the interest-carning assets and intrest-bearing liabilities scheduled to mature or reprice within such
time period. A gap is considered posmve vhen the amount of interest rate-sensitive assets exceeds the amount
of interest rate-sensitive liabilities (i.e., “agset sensitive”). A gap is considered negative when the amount of
imterest rate-sensitive l1abllmes exceeds thE interest rate-sensitive assets (i.e., “liability sensitive”). During a
period of rising interest rates, a negatwe 23p would tend to adversely affect net interest income, while a positive
gap would tend to result in an increase in rfet interest income. Conversely, during a period of fallmg interest
rates, a negative gap would tend to result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive gap would tend
to adversely affect net interest income. 1f Qur assets and liabilities were equally flexible and moved

* - concurrently, the 1mpact uf any increase o decrease in interest rates on net interest income would be minimal.

i

Each of the above analyscs may not, on its own, be an accurate mdncator of how our net interest income will be
affected by changes in interest rates. Income a sociated with interest-carning assets and costs associated with
interest-bearing liabilities may not be affected Yniformly by changes in interest rates. In addition, the magnitude and
duration of changes in interest rates may have a significant impact on net interest income. For example, although
certain assets and liabilities may have similar nfaturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees
to changes in market interest rates. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities fluctuate in advance of

changes in general market rates, while interest

tes on other types may lag behind changes in general market rates.

In addition, certain assets, such as adjustable rafe mortgage loans, have features (generally referred to as "interest
rate caps and floors") which limit changes in inferest rates: Prepayment and early withdrawal levels also could

deviate 51gn1ﬁcantly from those assumed in ca

idulating the maturity of certain instruments. The ability of many

borrowers to service lhelr debts also may decredse during periods of rising interest rates. ALCO reviews each of the
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N above interest rate sensitivity analyses along w:th several different interest rate scenartos as part of its responsibility
to provide a satisfactory, consistent level of profitability within the framework of established liquidlty, loan,

investment, borrowing, and capital policies.

contracts to aSSISl managmg our mterest rate Seﬂ’ﬁlti\r'lty

Liquidity Risk Management. The purpose of liquldity risk management is to ensure that there are siufﬁment cash
flows to satisfy loan demand, deposit wnhdrawals and our other needs. Traditional sources of liquidity for a bank
include asset maturities and growth in core depo sits. A bank rnay achieve its desired’ Ilquidlty objecuves from the
management of its assets and liabilities and by mtemally generated funding through its operations.| i Funds invested
in marketable instruments that can be readily sold and the continuous maturing of other eamuiig assets are sources of
liquidity from an asset perspective. The liability base provides sources of liquidity through attractlon of increased

deposits and borrowing funds from varicus othei institutions.

Changes in interest rates also affect our hquidity position. We currently price deposits in response to market rates
and our management intends to continue this policy. If deposits are not priced in response to ‘market rates aloss of

[
We may also use derivative financial mstrumenFts to improve the balance between mterest-s:.nsmve assets and
interest-sensitive liabilities and as one tool to manage our interest rate sensitivity while continuing to meet the credit
and deposit needs of our customers. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had not entered into anyldenvative

deposits could occur which would negatively afiect our liquidity position.

Scheduled loan payments are a relatively stable source of funds, but loan payoffs and deposit'flows fluctuate
significantly, being influenced by interest rates, general econcmic conditions and competition. Additionally, debt
security investments are subject to prepayment and call provisions that could accelerate their!payo:ff prior to stated
maturity. We attempt to price our deposit products to meet our asset/liability objectives consistent with local market
conditions. Our ALCO is responsible for monitoring our ongoing liquidity needs.” Our regulators;also monitor our

liquidity and capital resources on a periodic basis.

In addition, Pinnacle National is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati, As a résult Pinnacle
National receives advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati, pursuant to the' terms of various
- borrowing agreements, which assist it in the funding of its home mortgage and commercial real estate loan
Pinnacle National has pledged under the borrowing agreements with the Federal, Home Loan Bank of
Cincinnati certain qualifying residential mortghpe loans and, pursuant to a blanket lien, all quahfymg commercial
mortgage loans as collateral, At December 31, 2006, Pinnacle National had received advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati totaling $53.7/million at the following rates and maturities (qlollars in thousands):

portfolios.

2007
2008
2009
2010-2019
Total |
Weighted average interest rate i

thousands)
:

-38-

i

i |
: }

[

Interest Rate |

Amount Rangés '

$28,054  3.2% 10 5.4% .

10,054 48%

15,054 5.0% !

564 23% !

$ 53,726 ’ ' '
50% ¢

At December 31, 2006, brokered certificates (l)f'deposit approximated $61.7 million which represented 3.3% of total
fundings compared to $55.4 million and 5.8% at December 31, 2005, We issue these brokered certificates through
several different brokerage houses based on competitive bid. Typical]y, these funds are tor varying maturities from
six months to two years and are issued at rates which are competitive to rates we would bé requ1red to pay to attract
similar deposits from the local market as well as rates for Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati advances of
similar maturities. We consider these deposus to be a ready source of liquidity under current marker. conditions.

Our short-term borrowings (borrowings which mature within the next fiscal year) consist primarily of securities sold
under agreements to repurchase (these agreements are typically associated with comprehensive treasury

management programs for our clients and provide them with short-term returns for their excess funds), Federal
Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati advances and Federal funds purchased. Information concerning our short-term
borrowings as of and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 is as follows (dollars in

4 .
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At December 3 l, 2006, we had no sagmﬁcant commitments for capital expendltures However, we are in the
- process of developmg our branch network or other office facilities in the Nashville MSA, Asa resnlt we anuclpate ¥
~ that we will enter into contracts to buy property or construct branch facilities’ and!or lease agreements to lease
- l

facilities in the Nashville MSAL

The followmg table presents addltlonal 1nformat|on about our contractual obhgatlon-, as of December 31, 2006

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. 2006 Annual Report
- 2006 2005 2004
Amounts outstanding at vear-end: . .
Securities sold under agreements to repurchhse $ 141,016 $ 65834 $31,928
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 25,000 29,500 - 25,000
o . Weighted average mterest rates at- -year-end: . L Lo
Securities sold under agreements to repurchrse ) © o 433% 3.16% 0.90%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ‘ 5.36% 3.21% 2.52%

i Maximum amourlt_nf borrhwings at .any monlh-endA: ' S
Securities sold under agreements to repurch hse " $ 166,520 * $ 69,767 T o§31,928 -
Federal funds purchased : ‘ 9,985 18,702 , 10,000

. Federal Home Loan Bank advances . Yo 25,000 * 35,500 31,000

' Average balances for the year: L . _ , i :

" Securitiés sold under agreements to repurchz se . $101,144 | $354811 - § 20,466 .

; Federal funds purchased 1,260 1,607 . _ 1705

‘ Federal Home Loan Bank advances . . 6,284 24,208 ' 718,250

' L , T

‘Weighted average interest rates for the year: - N
Securities sold under agreements to repurchgse _ 4.28% 240% - 0.51%

' Federal funds purchased - ' 5.26% 351% C143%:,
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 4.70% 2.65% 201%. *©

which by their terms have contractual matunty md termmauon dates subsequent to Decembeér 31, 2006 (dollars i in

thousands);

+

o

, Next 12 13-36 37-60: Morethan .. .

! months months months 60 months Totals

:Comractual obligations: : o o A .

. Certificates of deposit - $462,839 ©$ 114,694 -.$21,280 - +~'$ 10 - $598,823
Securities sold under agreements to repurch.lse 141,016 - o . - 141,016
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 28,054 25,109 109 T 454' 753,726
- Subordinated debt - 10310 41238 v 0 .- 51548

| Minimum operating lease commitments 1,223 2,464 2,308 10,329 ' 16,324

' Totals ' ' S633,132§ 152577 $64,93'5 51'10;793 $861.437

}

T

Our management beheves that we have adequate liquidity to meet all known contractual obllgatlons and unfunded
commitments, including loan commitments and reasnnable borrower, depositor, and c.redltor requlrements over the

next twelve months.

y

Off-Balance Sheet 4rrangemems At December

3] 2006 we had outstandrng standby letters of credlt of $33.0

million and unfunded loan commitments outstandmg of $532.3 million. Because these commrtments generally have
fixed expiration dates.and many will expire w:thout being drawn upon, the total commrtment level does'not ~
necessarily represent future cash requlrements If needed to fund these outstanding commitments, Pinnaclé National
has the ability to hqu1date Federal funds sold or éecunnes avaitable-for-sale, or on a shért-term. basrs1 to borrow and

purchase Federal funds from other financial msntunons At December 31, 2006, Pinnacle National had
accommodations with upstream correspondent banks for unsecured short-term advances. These accommodations

i
)
]
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have various covenants related to their term and availability, and in most cases must be repaid within less than a.
month. The following table presents addmonal information about our unfunded commitments as of December 31,

2006, which by thelr terms have contractual malunty dates subsequent to December 31, 2006 (dollars in lhousands)
i

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

! Next 12 13-36 37-60 More tium

months notiths months 60 months Totals

>Unfunded commitrrrenrs: ' f ' .
Lines of credit $ 341,751 $ 85698 § 20923 % 8i4’01-] s 532,383‘

i
. ;

Letters of credit I 44555 8,219 187 | 4 52,961
Totals | $386306  § 93917° § 21,110 § 84011 § 585344
’ f : - 1

I
f

Impact of Inflation
The consohdated financial statements and relatc.d consolidated financial data presented helem have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles genera]lv accepted in the United States and practices wnhm the banking '
industry which require the measurement of ﬁnanmal position and operating results in terms of hlstoncal dollars
without consrdermg the changes in the relatlve purchasing power of money over\nme due to ‘inflation. Unlike most
industrial compantes, virtually all the assets ancl liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates have a more significant m;qmact on a financial institution's performance than the effects of
general levels of inflation. ! : ! t
‘ Recent Accounting Pronouncements j ' §
| SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Serv1c1ng of Fmancnal Assets an amendment of FASB S,tatement No. 140.” SFAS
| No. 156 requires an entity to recognize a servicing asset or servicing liability each time it undertakes a contractual
| obllgatlon to service a financial asset in certam circumstances. All separately recognized servicing assets and
servicing liabilities are required to be mmally neasured at fair value. Subsequent measurement methods include the
amortization method, whereby Ser\ncmg asse?s or semcmg liabilities are amortized in proportlon toand overthe |
period of estimated net servicing income or net servicing loss, or the fair value method, whereby servicing assets or|
servicing liabilities are measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair value are reported in
earnings in the period in which they occur. If the amortization method is used, an entity must assess servicing assets
or servicing liabilities for impairment or mcreased obligation based on the fair value at each reporting date. SFAS
No. 156 is effective for fiscal years begmmng after December 15, 2006 We are currently evaluating the impact of
SFAS No. 156 on its consolidated financial statements i ]'

¥

FIN 48 defines the threshold: for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financiat statements as “‘more
likely-than-not” to be sustained by the taxmg authority. The recently issued literature also provrdes guidance on the
derecognition, measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties; along with any related interest and
penalties. FIN 48 also inchides guidance concemmg accounting for income tax uncertainties in interim periods and
increases the level of disclosures associated with any recorded income tax uncertainties. FIN 48 1s effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The differences between the amounts rec ogmzed in the statements
of financial position prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported after adeption will be accounted for as
a cumulative-effect adjustment recorded to the beginning balance of retained earmngs We are currently evaluating
the impact of FIN 48 on its consohdated fi nancnal statements. i l

' F |
In June 2006, the Emergmg [ssues Task Force issued EITF No. 06-4, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefits Aspects of Endorsemum Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangemetits.” The EITF concluded
that deferred compensation or postrenrement benefit aspects of an endorsement split- -dollar life insurance
arrangement should be recognized as a llabllllty by the employer and the obligation is not effeculvely seitled by the
purchase of a life insurance policy. The effective date is for fiscal years beginning after Décember 15,2007. We
are currently evaluating the impact of EITF ll\lo 06-4 on its consolldaled financial statements |

|
|
In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB lnterprelauon 48, “Accounting for Income Tax Unceﬁaintles” (“FIN 48”)

|
y ' i l
!

.
. .

i
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 In June 2006, the Emergmg Issues Task Force issued EITF No. 06- 5 “Accountmg for Purchases of Life Insurance -- . . :
! Determining the Amount that Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Tech Bulletin 85-4. ”| The EITF = * 'f ] !
.concluded that a pohcyholder should consider any additional amounts inclided in the eontraetual jterms of the life . : |
- insurance policy in determining the “‘amount that could be realized under the insurance contract.” JFor group polrmes '
I with multiple certtﬁcates or multiple poltcles with a group rider, the EITF also concluded that the amount that could .
. be real1zed should be determmed at the individual policy or certificate level, i.e., amounts that would be reahzed - :
jonly Jupon surrendermg all-of the policies or certificates would not be included when measuring the assets.. The : ,
effective date is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 We are currently evaluatmg the lmpact of EITF ‘ Lo i
lNo 06-5 on its consoltdated ﬁnahcral statements. _ ’ ‘ e L D .
lSFAS No. 157, “Falr Value Measurements” - SFAS No. 157 deﬁnes fa1r value estabhshes a framework for i
|measur1ng fair value in generally accepted accounttng principles and expands disclosures about farr value L
imeasurements. SFAS No.: 157 applies only to fair-value measurements that are already required or permitted by e
Iother accounting standards and i is expected to increase the consistency of those measurements. The definition of fair :
Value focuses on the exit price, i, €., the price that would be received to sell an asset of paid to transfer a liability in
:an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, not the entry price, i.e., the price that
lwould be paid to acquire the asset or received to' assume the liability at the measurement date. The statement !
lemphasrzes that fair value is a market-based measurement not an entity-specific | measurement Therefore the fair
value measuremt.nt should be determined based on the assumptions that market part:crpants would use in pricingthe . . -
- -asset or liability. The effectlve date for SFAS No. 157 is for fiscal years beginning after November 15,2007, and ~ <
lmterlm periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact of ElTF 06-5 on: its consclidated
. ﬁnancral statements i I ) ] LT y-
. FASB Statement No 158, “An Amendment to Employers Accounting for Defined Beneﬁt Pension and Other
' ‘Postretirement Plans” was |ssued September 29, 2006, SFAS No. 158 requires the recognition on the balance sheet .
'of the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretiremenit obligation-measured as the difference  + * '
between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit’ obhgatton Recognition of “delayed” items should be . :
considered in other comprehenswe income. The effective date of SFAS No. 158 for public enttttes is for fiscal years '
endmg after December 15, 2006. SFAS No 158 did not have a material 1mpact on Pinracle Ftnancral 5 2006 : 4
‘consolidated financial statements . . ! .
i : e . |

) ,
1 v L.

PR

In September 2006 the Securmes and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) tssued Staff Accountmg Bulletin No. 108, . .
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial -
Statements" (“SAB 108”). |SAB 108 provides mterpretwe guidance on how the effects of-the carryover or reversal )

of prior yeéar mlsstatements should be considered in quantifying a current year mtsstatement The SEC staff belleves

dthat registrants should quanufy errors using both the balance sheet and income statement approach’ when quanttfymg. .
_ a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108is
", effective for Pinnacle Fmanc1a] s fiscal year endmg December 31, 2006. SAB 108 did not have a material impact
' on our 2006 consolidated ﬁnancral statements.

'

t
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATLD BALANCE SHEETS

l
. ASSETS '

‘ !

Cash and noninteresi-bearing due from banks
Interest-bearing due from banks t
Federal funds sold . :
l

y -

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value ;

Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $26,594,235 and $26,546,297 at
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 respectively)

Mortgage loans held-for-sale '

Loans '

Less allowance for loan losses '
‘Loans, net

Premises and equipment, net ‘ :

Investments in unconsolidated sub51d1ar1es and'other entities

Accrued 1nterest receivable |

~ Goodwill’

Core deposit intangible

Other assets

Total assets

i

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EOU.ITY :

Deposits: o
Nen-interest-bearing S |
Interest-bearing |
Savings and money market accounts
Time t

Total deposits

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Subordinated debt '

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities i ’ o

Total liabilities ' ‘

F

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, no par value; 10,000, (}00 shares authorized; no
shares issued and outstanding;

Common stock, par value $1.00; 90,000, 000 shares authorized,;
15,446,074 issued and outstanding s at December 31, 2006 and
8,426,551 issued and outstanding al December 31, 2005

Additional paid-in capital

Unearned compensation ‘ |

Retained earnings !

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of taxes
Total stockholders’ equity

|
_Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity :

See accomipanying notes to consolidated financial statements. '
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December31
2006 2005
$ 43,611,533 | $ 25935048)
1041174 - 839,960
47866143 31,878,362
92,518,850 58,654,270
319,237,428 | 251,749,094
[ .
27256876 27,331,251]
5654381 | 4,874,323
1,497,734.824 | 648,024,032
(16,117,978) ' (7,857,774)

T481,616846 | 640,166,258
36,285,796 | 12,915,595
16,200,684 6,622,645,
1,019173 | 4870,197
114,287,640 B’
11,385,006 | !
26,724,183 - 9,588,097

{ i

I
$ 1,016,771,730

$ 2,142,186 863
i ) l

|
i
t

300,977,814 155,811,214
236,674,425 72,520,757
485,935,807 | 304,161,625
598,823,167 217,657,129
1,622,411,303 | 810,150,725
141,015,761 65,834,233
53,725,833 ! 41,500,000
51,548,000 - 30,929,000
4,952,422 | 1,884,596
12,516,523 3,036,752
1,886,169,842 953,335,305
]
oo
| S h
15,446,074 | 8,426,551
211,502,516 44,890,912
- (169,689)
31,100,324 | 13,182,291
(2,040,893) ! (2,893,640)
256,017,021 ; 63,436,425

$ 2.142,186,863

f
$ 1,016,771,730




T Net income

- . . sl 1| ',!_
i ' i
i

Interest income:

* | Loans, 1ncludmg fees
" Securities: - L
;! . Taxable I

" Tax-exempt b
Federa] funds sold and other
Total: mteres_t income -
[
Intérest expense:
Deposits’
. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal funds purchasedl and other borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

f

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
i

Noninterest income: - 0o
Service charges on deposit accounts
Investment sales commissions
Insurance sales commissions
Gains on loans; ‘and loan participations sold
* Trust fees
- Gains on sales of investment securities, net

Total noninterest income

Nonmterest expense:

Salaries and employee benel" ts -

Equipment and occupancy
. Marketing and other business development

Postage and supplies

' Amortization of core deposrt mtarrg:ble .
" Other nonmteresl expense

Merger related expense

Total noﬁmterest expense
Net income before income taxes
[ncome tax expense : -

1
;
- Per share mformatmn :
‘Basic net mcome per common share

‘Diluted net mcome per commton share

Wei ghted average common shares outstanding: {
. Basic N

Diluted |

Other noninterest income .

PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
o CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

N

s

o me b e e e -

G:‘ T:u.' r“"-". - = .
K -For the years ended December 31,
2006 . 2005 2004
$92,005,602  $35,166,671 . $19,909,900
VL . C
T S 12,614,623 9,086,134 , 6,935,902
X Lo 2,016,044 1,115,486 490,757
; 3,059,750 ° : 939,369 ° 342,470
{ 109,696,019 46,307,660 - 27,679,029
S >+ 40,032,020 13,690,649 5,829,395
: . 4329327 1,315,022 %0 7 104,085
: 4,381 878 2,263,851 1,481,072
; 48,743,225 17,269,622 7,414,552
' ‘ 60,952,794 29,038,038 20,264,477 ...
' " 3,732,032 2,151,966 2,948.423 ',
57,220,762 26,886,072 17,316,054
. . ;
! 4,645,685 977,386 ' 955,851
2.463,205 1,835,757 1,656,743
2,122,702 - S
1,868,184 1,247,898 1,274,331
; 1,180,839 : - -
. - 114,410 357,196’
o © 3,505,903 1,218,123 . 734,449
15,786,518 5,393,574 . 4,978,570
Ce 27,469,275 13,130,779 9,046,490
- 7,521,602 . 3,766,593 2,405,613
o . 1,234,497 698,232 - 606,841
" - 1,510,048 618,060 © 492,254
. 1,783,230 : o .
5,469,777 2318352i 2,252,233,
1,635,831 : .
46,624,260 21,032,016 14,303,431
26,383,020 11,247,630 7,491,193
) 8455987 3,192,362 . . 2,172,283
© §$17,927,033  $8,055268) $5,318.910
S siag T 30,96 $0.69
BT 8118 ~, $0.85 $0.61
. i
13,954,077 8,408,663 7,750,943
s 15156837 9,464,500 " 8,698,139

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

+
i

For the each of the vears in the three-year period ended December 31 , 2006

;
] i

' H *
Retalngd * ° Accumulated
Additional Earnin'gs Other Total
- Common Stock Paid-in Unearned (A?cumulﬁted Comprehensive * Stockholders’
. - Shares Amount . Capital Compensation - Deficit) Income (Loss) Equity
Balances, December 31, 2003 7,384,106  $7.384,106 $ 26,990,894 $ - 1) j (189,155) £ 150535 $ 14,336,381
Exercise of employee incentive common stock N . .

options and related tax benefits 23,780 23,780 94,333 - i v - 118,113
Proceeds from the sale of common stock {less ’ - - I

offering expenses of $1,357,833) - 977,500 977,500 17,214,667 - I bo- - 18,192,167
Issuance of resiricted common shares pursuant ' . . ,

10 2004 Equity Incentive Plan 3,846 3,846 T6.413 (80,259) ! ; - - -
Compensation expense for restricted shares . - - - 43,009 \ [ -4, 43,009
Dividends paid to mingrity interest . : | ‘

sharcholders of PNFP Properties. Inc. - - - : (2,732) - (2,732)

Comprehensive income: - : '
Net income T - - - | 5,318,910 - 5,318,910
Net unrealized holding losses on available-for- ' \

sale securities, net of deferred tax benefit of - !

$77.023 . - - - - { V- (125,673) (125,673
Total comprehensive income . . ! . 5,193,237

Balances, December 31, 2004 8389232 §$ 8,389,232 $ 44,376,307 $ (37.250) _§ 15,127,023 - § = 24863 $ 57.880,L75
" Exercise of employee incentive common stock ' !

opticns and related tax benefits 20,953 20,953 153,808 - i P - 174,761
Issuance of restricted common shares pursuant [ )

to 2004 Equitv [ncentive Plan ' 16,366 16,366 360,797 (377,163} [ |- - -
Compensation expense for restricted shares - - - 244,724 C - - 244,724

Comprehensive income: C. !
Net income - - - - 8,055,268 - 8,055,268
Net unrealized holding losses on available-for- i

sale securities, net of deferred tax benefit of . i !

$1.788.761 - - - - - {2,918,503) (2,918,503)
Total comprehensive income . i - 5,136,765

Balances, December 31, 2005 8,426,551 $8.426551 ° £443890,912 $ (169,689) & 13,182,291 $  (2,893,640) $ 63,436,425
Transfer of unearned compensation to . : i

edditional paid-in capital upon adoption of . '

SFAS 123(R) - - (169,689) 169,689 - - -
Exercise of employee incentive common stock ! !

options and related tax benefits " 130,168 130,168 1,240,724 - l L. - 1,370,892
Issuance of restricted common shares pursuant ' '

to 2004 Equity [ncentive Plan 22,057 22,057 (12,057) - - - -
Exercise of director common stock warrants 11,000 11,000 44,000 & - ! - - 55,000
Compensation expense for restricted shares : - - 465,003 - | Y - 465,003
Compensation expense for stock options ‘ - - 1,009,958 - : - - 1,009.958
Merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. 6,856,298 6,856,298 164,231,274 - ‘ - - 171,087,572
Costs lo register common stock issued in !

connection with the merger with Cavalry : .

Bancorp, Inc. - ' - (187,609} - ! i - (187.609)

Comprehensive income: ; b .

Net income - : - - X 17,927,033 - 17,927,033
Net unrealized holding gains on available-for- ! :

sale securities, net of deferred 1ax expensc of l b

$521,886 - e - - - ! ' 852,747 852,747
Total comprehensive income . ) ' . 18,779,780

Balances, December 31, 2006 15,446,074 §15,446,074 $211,502,516 $ - 5 31.!09,3124 $ (2,040,893) § 256,017,021

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. E
. i
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PINNACLE F]NANC[AL PARTNERS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
_ For the years ended December 31,
. f - /2006 . . 2005 . .. 2004 -

- Operating activities: e : ' ’ . -
Net income - - ; $ 17,927,033 $8,055268 - $5318910
Adjustments to, reconc1h. ‘net mcome to net cash prov1ded by ' ' :

"*  Operating a actmtlcs ' ' . .
~  [Net amortlzauon of premiums on securmes - S oL 629,634 L130,766 l 050 687
- Deprecnatlon and net amortization e b 1,382,401 1,699,380 ¢ 1,204,446
Prowston for loan losses - ’ 3,732,032 2,151,966 o © 2,948,423
Gains on sales of investment securities, net ! ’ - (114,410} | - (357,196)

- Gain on loans and-loan part1c1pat|ons sold; net . T T (1,868,184) (1,247,898} - (1,274 331) s, 1 :
Stock-bésed compensation' cxpense Lo C et 1,474,961 . 244,724 . 43,009 ;
Deferred tax benéfit T e (1,164,336) - (575,755} 4 (922 286)

Tax benefit on exercise of stock awards L. ' .. (50,535) : "(1,912) !
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation (131,121) I -
Mortgage loans held for sale: - Co ! o
g Loans originated , - B e e . =(131,971,094)  (102,874,134) ! (69,020,758) -~ :
Loans sold ST B © r 134,301,622 100,730,532 | . . 70,009,143 . -~
lncrease in other assets | S S oo T, (6,103,122) (3,155,825) - o (1,399;138)
lncrease (decrease) in other liabilities - - . ; L (6,303,665). - - 2177477 . (856,925)
th cash provided by operatmg activities | AT 11,906,161 - 8,171,556 6,742, 072 ;
. - . 1. s '
Investing activities: . Lo * » oo
Activities in avallable for sale secuntles T N ) . . o ‘ i
, Purchases . . . g . (62,760,686) | (116 361,069)! (132 755 709) T
Sales - : T . - 6,791,867 | 28,461,405 . ¢
. Matuntles, prcpayments and calls L T . ..35,568,504 . 32935215 l . 33,172,378 .
’ Increase in loans, net : i o ' (297 565,733) , (175,606,019) (176,375,116) . ‘
Purchases of | premises and equnpment and software ' (4,649 676) : (3,438,9[6)’ (5,144,869)
Cash'and cash cquwalents acqutred in merger w:th Cavalry ‘ : ’ o '
Bancorp, Inc., net of acquisition costs . '_ b 36,230,539 . - -
. Purclhases of other ass:.ts . (6,107,658) (2,708,000) " (881,719)
- Net cash used in mvestmg actlwtles o o (299,284,710) (258,386,922) {251,523,630)
Fmancmg activities: ' o ‘ - .o - ’ !
Net increase in deposits - ’ ‘ L © 229,745,145 239,423,716, 180,157,997
s Net mcreasc in repurchase agreements o ¥ 75,181,529 33,906,372 . 16,877,750 '
Federal Home Loan Bank: o IR g R I Ce e '
lssuances i . Ca ) ' 56,000,000 62,000,000, - - 48,000,000°
Payments - (61,540,828) . (74,000,000) (39,000,000)
’ Proceeds from i issuance of subordmated debt ‘ 20,619,000 20,619,000 -
Net proceeds: from sale 6f common stock e - - C18,192,167 . &
Exermsc of common ‘;tock warrants .o s oy e 55,000 . - c. .
Excmlsc of common qtock options . T, 1,239,710 174,761, . 118,113 F
Excless tax benefit from stock compensation .. ;- Y, . 131,121 =, . - gt
Costs incurred in connection with registration of common stock . . . L
1ssued in merger - : ! T o 187,609y . . 4 e
Olher o A . - - (2,732) -
INet cash pr0v1ded by fmancmg activities Ty ' 321,243,129 - - 282,123,849 1224343295 '
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquwalents ' : 33,864,580 - 31,908,483 (20,438,263)
‘Cash and cash cquwalems, beginning of period ° e d 58,654,270 26,745,787 "~ 47,184,050 e
Cash and cash equwalems, end ofpenod $192,518,850° § 58,654,270 $ 26,745,787 ! ’
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND éUBS[D[ARJI*:ZS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

'
|
+

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business — Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (Pinnacle Financial) is a bank holding company whose
primary business is conducted by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinnacle National Bank (Pmnac]e National).
Pinnacle National is a commercial bank located in Nashville, Tennessee. Pinnacle National provndes a full range
of banking services in its primary market areas of Davidscn, Rutherford, Williamson, Sumner and Bedford
Countles | i
Basis of Presentation — These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pmnacle Financial and
_its wholly-owned subsidiaries. PNFP Statutory Trust [, PNFP Statutory Trust I, PNFP .:tatutory Trust 1 and

Collateral Plus, LLC, are affiliates of Pinnacle Financial and are included in these consohdated financial
statements pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Significant intercompany tran=act|ons and accounts are
eliminated in consolidation. _ ll .

: : !
Use of Estimates — The preparatmn of ﬁnanual statements in conformity with accounting prmc1ples generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingznt assets and liabilities as of the ba]ance sheet date
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 1esults could differ from
those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term

_ include the determination of the allowance for loan losses. Yoy

Impairment — Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization, such as
Pinnacle Financial’s core deposit intangible asset, are reviewed for impairment whenever évents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverablhty of assets to
be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset excecds its
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the.
fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrymg amount or fair value
less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. - v

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indetinite useful lives are tested annually for 1mpa1rme|m and are
tested for lmpalrment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. Pinnacle
Financial’s annual assessment date is as of September 30 such that the assessment will be completed during the
fourth quarter of each year. Should we determine in a future period that the goodwill recorded in connection
with our acquisition of Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (“Cavalry”) has been impaired, then a chari;e;to our earnings will
be recorded in the period such determination is made. i ,‘
. Cash and Cash Flows — Cash on hand, cash items in process of collection, amounts due from banks, Federal
funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to rescll, with original maturities within nmety days, are
included in cash and cash equivalents. The following supplemental cash flow information addresses certain
cash payments and noncash transactions for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006
as follows: . . ! !
o
For the years ended December 31,

.. 2006 2005 2004
Cash Payments: _ i
Interest ' "$50,752,304 %16, 154,326 $ 7,252,494
Income taxes ' 8,280,000 3,802,633 3,681,817
Noncash Transactions: ) ! )
Common stock and options issued to acquire Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. . . !
(see note 2) 171,087,572 : - -
Transfers of available-for-sale securities to heid-to-maturity - 27,655,669

]
- |

Loans charged-off to the allowance for loan losses 818,467 . 207,647 1,032,378
i
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: PINNACLE F[NANCIAL PARTNERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

A NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
Secu;‘:ttes — Securities are classrﬁed based on management s intention on the date of purchase. All debt
secufities classified as avallable for-sale are recorded at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses' reported
in accumulated other eomprehenswe income:(loss), net of the: deferred income tax effects. Securities that

B Pmnaele Financial has both the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to matunty

and are carried at hrstoncal cost and adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. .

.. [ - ‘t a Yy e e e P N 't‘:
A declme in the falr value of any avarlable-for sale or held-lo—matunty secunty below cost.that i3 deemed to be

other than- temporary results in‘a reduction in carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to

“ ',eamrngs and a new cost basis for the security is establtshed To determine whether lmpatrment is.other-than- -
_'temporary, management considers whether it has the ab1llty and intent to hold the investment until'a market .

price recovery and con51ders whether evrdence mdtcatmg the cost of-the investment is recoverable outwerghs

evidence to the contrary. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the 1mpa1rment the -

seve'rlty and duration 6f the 1mpa1rment changes in value subsequent to year-end and forecasted performance of .

the investee. ;

f .. l
Interest and d1v1dends on securities, including amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts calculated
undler the effective interest method, are included in interest income. For certain securities, amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts is computed based'on the anticipated life of the security which’ may not be
the stated life of the security. Realized gains and losses from the sale of securities are determined using the

specrfic 1dent1ftcatron method.
b ! : ' ' “
. Loalns Held for Sa!e — Loans originated and intended for sale are camed at the lower of cost or estimated fair
value as determrned on a loan-by-loan basis. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation
allolwance by charges'to income. Realized gains and Iosses are recognized when legal title to the loans has been
transferred to the purchaser and payments ‘have been received and are reflected in the accompanymg
consolidated statement of i income in gains on the sale of loans and loan participations sold.

]
1
L
1

: Loans — Loans are reported at their outstandmg pnncrpal balances less uneamed income, the allowance for-
loan losses and any deferred fees Or.costs on ongrnated loans. Interest income on loans is accrued based onthe ..
pnncrpal balance outstanding., Loan rigination fees, net of certain loan origination costs, are deferred and « '
recognrzed as an adjustment to the related'loan yield usmg a method which approximates the interest method
At:December 31, 2006 and 2005, net deferred loan fees of $3,393,000 and net deferred costs of $111, 000, -
respectively, were included in'loans on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Net deferred loan fees

at December 31, 2006 includes the unamortized discount of $3,206,000 assigned 1o the. loan portfolro acquired [

from the Cavalry acqursmon as more fully discussed;in “Note 2 — Merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc:™
{or |

1 - i ’

Thle accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when there is a significant detenoratron in the fmancral
condttmn of the borrower and full repayment of principal and interest is not expected or the principal or interest
is more than 90 days past due, unless the loan is both well-secured and in the process of collection. -Generally,

. all interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status is reversed agatnst current
income. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received. e

3 0

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that managemem believes to be adequate to absorb losses-
mherent in the loan portfolio: Loan losses are charged agatnst the allowance when they are known. Subsequent
relcoverles are credited to the allowance. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based
on an evaluation of the portfolio, current éconofnic 'conditions, volume, growth, composition of the loan
portfolro homogeneous pools of loans, risk ratings of specific loans, historical loan loss factors, 1dent1fied
1mpa|red loans and other factors related to the portfolio. This evaluation is performed quarterly and'is inherently .
subjectlve as it requires materral estimates that are susceptible to significant change including the amounts and

: ttrnmg of future cash flows expected to be received on any impaired loans. In addition, regulatory agencies, as
an integral part of their examination process, will penodlcally review Pinnacle Financial’s allowance for loan
losses and may require Pmn’acle Financial to record adJustments to the allowance based on their Judgment

about information available to them at the time of the:r examinations. .
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
i !

N I
A loan is considered to be impaired when it is probable Pinnacle Financial will be unable to collect all principat
and interest payments dué in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Individually
identified impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected payments usingithe loan’s
original effective rate as the discount rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral
if the loan is collateral dependent. If the recorded investment in the impaired loan exceeds the measure of fair
‘value, a valuation allowance may be established as a component of the allowance for loan losses Changes to
the valuation allowance are recorded as a compenent of the provision for loan losses. '

'
' !

Transfers of Financial Assets — Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when c?ontrol over the
assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets
have been isolated from Pinnacle Financial, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of coﬁditidns that constrain
it from taking advantage of that right) to-pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and ('3) Pinnacle Financial
does not maintain effective control over the transferred asszts through an agreement to rf-purchase them before
maturity. \

Premises and Equipment and Leaseholds — Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the
expected lease terms for leasehold improvements, whichever is shorter. Useful lives for all premises and
equipment range between three and thirty years. _ ! .
Pinnacle National is the lessee with respect to several office locations. All such leases are being accounted for
as operating leases within the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Several of these leases include
rent escalation clauses. Pinnacle National expenses the costs associated with these escalating pz':yments over the -
life of the expected lease term using the straight-line method. At December 31, 2006, the deferred liability
associated with these escalating rentals was approximately $503,000 and is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. .

o
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and other entities — In addition to investments, in ur;consolldated
subsidiaries, Pinnacle Financial maintains certain investmetts, at cost, with certain regulalory and other entities
in which Pinnacle Financtal has an ongoing business relationship. These entities are the Federal Reserve Bank
of Atlanta, the Bankers’ Bank of Atlanta and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati. At December 31,
2006 and 2005 the cost of these investments was $12,794,000 and $4,598,000, respective ly Pinnacle Fmancxal
determined that it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these investments. Plnnaf'le Financial has not
observed any events or changes in circumstances that would have had an adverse effect on the fair value of the
investment. Such investments are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance shl.ets in mvestments in

unconsolidated subsidiaries and other entities. |
| !

1 |
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase — Pinnacle National routinely sells securities to certain

treasury management customers and then repurchases these securiries the next day. Securities sold under
" agreements to repurchase are reflected as a secured borrowing in the accompanying consolldated balance sheets
at the amount of cash received in connection with each transaction. v i .

Other Assets — Included in other assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, is approximately $765,000 and
$742,000, respectively, of computer software rclated assets, net of amortization, This software supports
Pinnacle Financial’s primary data systems and relates to amounts paid to vendars for installation and
development of such systems. These amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over penods of three to
seven years. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, Pinnacle Financial’s amomzannn expense
was approximately $281,000, $272,000 and $102 000, respectively. Software maintenance fees are capitalized
in other assets and amortized over the term of the maintenance agreement. ; !

Included in other assets at December 31, 2006 is 5995,000 of other real estate owned (ORIEQ). P%nnacle
National had ne OREO at December 31, 2005. OREO represents properties acquired by Pinnacle National
through loan defaults by customers. The property is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated
costs to sell at the date acquired. An allowance for losses on OREO may be maintained for subsequent
valuation adjustments on a specific property basis, when necessary. Any gains or losses realized at the time of

disposal are reflected in income. i

i
'
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES :
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A

Pmnacle National is the owner and beneﬁcrary of various life insurance pohc1es on certain key executives, ¥
mcludmg pohetes that were acquired in its merger with C:!walry These policies are reflected in the-
accompanymg consolidated balance sheets at their respective ¢ cash surrender values. At December:31, 2006 and -
2005 1the aggregate cash surrender value of these pohc1es which is reflectecl in other assets, was $14,802,000
and $2,084,000, respectlvely

+
' Lt Y

© Also mcluded in other assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is $770 000 and $477,000, respectlvely, Wthh is

related to loan participations which have been sold to correspondent banks. These amounts represent the .' .
present value, net-of amortization, of the future net cash flows retained by Pinnacle F1nanc1al These amounts <"
are amomzed against net interest income over the life of the loan. Amortization of these amounts was )
$127 000, $165,000 and $199 000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004, respectwely

Trust Fees Trust fees are rccogmzed when earned
'

Insurance Sales Commzssmns — Insurance sales comm15510ns are reeogmzed as of the effectlve date of the

: pohc'y and when the premium due under the policy can be reasonably estimated and when the premlum is

billabie to the client, less a provrsmn for comm1ssron refunds in the event of policy cancellation pnor to -
termination date. g Do e .

ce
o e . i

Incopte Taxes — lncome tax expense consjsts’ of current; and deferred taxes. Current income tax provtsmns
approximate taxes to be paid or,refunded for the applicable year.-Deferred income tax assets'and llablimes are
determined using the balance sheet méthod. Under this method, the net deferred tax assct or liability is.»- -
dcte'n'nmed based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance
sheet assets and Itabllltles and ghves current recogmtron to changes in tax rates and laws. Accordmgly,.the
resultmg net deferred tax asset or net deferred tax liability is included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets in elther other assets or other llabllitleS
Recogmtlon of deferred tax assets is based on management ] behef that it is more hkely than not that the tax .
beneﬁt assoc1ated wnh certain temporary differences, tax operating loss carlyforwards and tax credits will be
reahzed A valuation allowance is recorded for those deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that
realization w1ll not occur. .
Pinnacle Fmanc1al and its wholly-owned sub51d|ar1es filea eonsohdated income tax return. Each entlty prowdes 3
for income taxes based on its eonmbutlon to income or loss of the consolidated group \
- J‘ 1 L] ’ oY s
Income Per Cammon Share — Basic eammgs per share (“EPS") 18 computed by dividing net income by the-
welghted average common shares outstandmg for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the dilution that could occur -
if s'ecunnes or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted The difference between
baSlc and-diluted weighted average shares outstandmg was attributable to common stock options, warrants and
res'tneted shares. The dilutive effect of outstanding options, warrants and restricted shares is refiected in diluted
earnings per share by, application of'the treasury stock method

i

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were common stock optlons outstandmg to purchase 1 658 000 and

1 242 000 commen shares, respectwely Most of these options have exercise prices (and in 2006, compensation
costs attributable to current services); which when considered in relation to the average market price of Pinnacle
Fullancml s common lstoek dre considered dilutive and-are considered in Pinnacle Financial’s diluted income
per ¢ share calculanon for each of the years in the three year penod ended December 31, 2006, There were
common stock opttons ‘ol 287,000, and 21,000 outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respeetwe]y,
Whlch were considered anti-dilutive and thus have not been considered in the fully-diluted share calculations

below Additionally, as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, Pinnacle Financial had outstanding warrants to,_ - .
*purchase 395,000, 406,000 and 406,000, respectively, of common shares which have been considered in the

calculatlon of Pmnacle Financial’ s dtluted income per shareé for each of the years in the three-year perlod ended
December 31 2006. S _ S - _ . , :

The following is a summary of the basic and diluted earnmgs per share calculat:on for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006:
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2006 . 2005 L 2004

Basic earnings per share calculation: : oy
Numerator - Net income $17,927,033 § 8,055268 § 5318910
Denominator - Average common shares outstanding 13,954,077 8,408,663 7,750,943
Basic net income per share $ 128 $ . 0% § 0.69
| Dituted earnings per share calculation: . :
| Numerator - Net income $17,927,033 § 8,055,268, $:5318910
Denominator - Average comimon shares outstanding 13,954,077 8,408,663 - 17,750,943
Dilutive shares comingently issuable 1,202,760 1,055,837 947,196
Average diluted common shares outstanding 15,156,337 9,464,500 +8,698,139
Diluted net income per share . $ 1.1I8 § 085° % ! 0.61

Stock-Based Compensation — On January 1, 2006, Pinnacle Financial adopted Statemnent of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123 (rev:sed 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No.123(R)"), that
addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which a company receives employee services
in exchange for equity instruments. SFAS Nu. 123(R} eliminates the ability to account tot share-based
compensation transactions, as Pinnacle Finarcial formerly did, using the intrinsic value miethod as prescribed by

. Accounting Principles Board, (“APB”), Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
generally requires that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method and recogmzed as
expense in the accompanylng consolidated statement of income. y

Pinnacle Financial adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective method which requires the
application of the accounting standard as of January 1, 2006. The accompanying consolidated financial
staternents as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impact of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). In -
accordance with the modified prospective method, consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not
been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). See Note 14 for further details.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the pc}rtion of stock-
based payment awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in
the accompanying consolidated statement of income during 2006 included compensation expense for stock-
based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of January 1, 2006 and for the stock-based awards
granted after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with SFAS
No. 123(R}. As stock-based compensation expense recognized in the accompanying statement of income for
2006 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS No.
123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in;subsiequent periods if
actal forfeitures differ from those estimates. In the pro forma information for 2005, which is also detailed in
Note 14 we accounted for forfeitures as they occurred. :

i l
Comprehensive Income (Loss}) —SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” describes comprehensive
income as the total of all components of comprehensive income including net income. Other comprehensive
income refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are
included in comprehensive income but excluded from net income. Currently, Pinnacle Financial’s other
comprehensive income (loss) consists of unreahzed gains and losses, net of deferred income taxes on available--
for-sale securities.

f

Note 2. Merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. r

On March 15, 2006, Pinnacle Financial consummated its merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (“Cavalry™), a one-
bank holding company located in Murfreesboro, Tennessee. Pursuant to the merger agreeiment, Pinnacle
acquired all Cavalry common stock via a tax-free exchange whereby Cavalry shareholders received a fixed
exchange ratio of 0.95 shares of Pinnacle Financial common stock for each share of Cavalry common stock, or
approximately 6.9 million Pinnacle Financial shares. The ac*ompanymg consolidated financial statements
include the activities of the former Cavalry since March 15, 2006. '
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- In accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Accounting for Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141”), SFAS No..
" 142, “Goodwill'and Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”) and SFAS No. 147, “Acquisition of Certain '
Financial Institutions” (“SFAS No. 147”), Pinnacle Financial recorded at fair value the followmg assets 'and
llabtlmes of Cavalry as of March'15, 2006: . L . ‘

" Cash and cash equivalents ‘ $ 37,420,210
i Investment securities — available-for- sale v . 39,476,178 ’
Loans, net of an allowance for loan losses of $5 102, 296 . 545,598,367 ]
Goodwill ‘ . 114,287,640
Core deposit intangible ' T ' " 13,168,236
Other asséts : ; L 42,936,956
Total assets acquired ¢ SO 792,887,587
Deposrts ¥ ’ oo o ' 583,992,422
Federal Home Lean Bank advances S 17,766,661
Other liabilities; _ : At 18,851,261
Total liabilities assumed ! . 620,610,344
Totat consideration pald for Cavalry : $ 172,277,243
As dtscussed more fully below, total consrderatton is compnsed of $171.1 million in Pinnacte Financial
common shares issued to former Cavalry shareholders dnd options issued to former Cavalry option’
holders and $1.2 million i in acquisition costs. Pinnacle Financial is in the process of finalizing the
allocation of the purchase price to the acquired net assets noted aboye. Accordingly, the above
allocattons should be consndered prehmmary as of December 31, 2006.

As noted above, total conmderauon for Cavalry approxlmates $172.3 million of which $171.1 million was in the
. 'form of Pinnacle Finaricial common shares and options to acquire Pinnacle Financial common shares and $1.2

million in investment banking fees, attorriey’s fees and other costs related to the acquisition which have been ~ : P

acco;unted forasa component of the purchase price, Pmnacle Financial issued 6,856,298 shares of Pinnacle
Financial common stock to the former Cavalry shareholders In accordance with EITF No. 99-12,
“Determmatton of the Measurement Date for the Market Price of Acquirer'Securities Issued in a Purchase
Busmess Combination,” thé consideration shares were valued at $24.53 per common share which represents the

average closing price 6f Pinnacle Financial common stock from the two days prior to the merger announcement ‘

" on September 30, 2005 through the two days.after the merger announcement. Aggregate consideration for the o
’ cornmon stock issued was approximately $168.2 million. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial also has assumed the '
Cavalry Bancorp; Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Cavalry Plan™) pursuant to which Pinnacle is obligated .

to lssue 195,551 shares of Pinnacle Financial common stock upon exercise of stock options awarded to certain
former Cavalry employees who held’ outstanding opttons as of March 15, 2006. Al of these options were fully
vested prior to the merger announcement date and expir€ at various dates between 2011 and 2012. The exercise .
pnces for these: stock options range between $10.26 per share and $l3 68 per share. In accordance with SFAS
No.|141, Pinnacle Fmancral has ¢onsidered the fair value of these options in determining the acquisition cost of
Cavalry. The fair value of. these vested options approximated $2.9 million which has been included as a
component of the agg,regate purchase price.

In accordance wrth SFAS Nos 14] and 142, Pinnacle Fmanctal has recogmzed $13.2 million as a core deposit
mtangtble This ldenttﬁed mtangtble is being amortized over seven years,using an accelerated method which™
,ant1c1pates the hfe of the. underlymg deposrts te which the mtanglble is attributable. For the year ended
Dedember 31, 2006 abprox1mately $1.8 rmllton was recogmzed in-the accompanying statement of income as
other nomnterest expense. Amortlzanon expense associated with this identified intangible will approximate
$1.8 miillion to $2 1 mllhon per year for the next five years with lesser amounts for the remaining two years.

4 - |
Pmnacle Financial a]so recorded other adjustments to the carrymg vatue of Cavalry s assets and liabilities in
order to reflect the falr value of those net assets in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
mcludmg a$4.8 mlllton discount ‘associated ‘with the loan portfolio, a $2.9 million premium for Cavalry’s
certtﬁcates of deposit and a$4.6 mtlhon premium for Cavalry’s land and burldmgs Pinnacle Financial also
recorded the correspondmg def'etred tax asset or liability associated with these adjustments. The discounts and
premlums related to ﬁnancral assets and. hab1ht|es are being amortized into our statements of income using a
method that approxlmates the ]evel yield method over the anticipated lives-of the undérlying ﬁnancral assets or
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liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2006, lhe accretion of the fair value discounts related to the ]
acquired loans and certificatés of deposit increased net interest income by approximatcly $3.7 million. Based on
the estimated useful lives of the acquired loans and deposits, Pinnacle Financial expects to recognize increases
in net interest income related to accretion of these purchase accounting adjustments of $4.0 million in
subsequent years. : o

Statement of Position 03-03, Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer (“SOP
03-037) addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to be
collected from an investor's initial investment in loans or debt securities (loans) acquired in a transfer if those:
differences are attributable, at least in part, to credit quality. 1t includes loans acquired in purchase business
combinations and applies to all nongovernmental entities, including not-for-profit organizations. The SOP does
not apply to loans originated by the entity. At March 15, 2006, Pinnacle Financial identified $3.9 million in
loans to which the application of the provisions of SOP 03-03 was required. The preliminary purchase
accounting adjustments reflect a reduction in loans and the allowance for loan losses of $1.0 million related to

.Cavalry's impaired loans, thus reducing the carrying value of these loans to $2.9 million as of March 15, 2006.
At December 31, 2006, the carrying value of these loans had been reduced to $2.6 million due to cash payments
received from the borrowers. .

!
The following pro forma income statements assume the merger was consummated on January' 1, 2005. The pro
forma information does not reflect Pinnacle Financial’s results of operations that would have actually occurred
had the merger been consumimated on such date (dollars in thousands).

Year ended Deczmaber 31,

2006 ' 2008(1) -
Pro Forma Income Statements: o
Net interest income $ 65,071 . $.56,932
Provision for loan losses 4,713 . . 2,880
Noninterest income 18,183 P 17,726
Noninterest expense (2): , : _ i
Compensation - 30,250 ' 27,544
Other noninterest expense 16,988 . 19,918
Net income before taxes 28,303 © 24,316
Income tax expense 10,005 v 7,706
Net income ) - ‘ $ 18,298 i $:16,610
. : . 1 . .
Pro Forma Per Share Information: . !
Basic net income per common share § 123 © 8! 1.09
Diluted net income per common share $ 114 I $. 1.01
Weighted average shares outstanding: , } S
Basic . ' 14,840,326 15,265,350
Diluted 16,043,087 116,426,733

(1) In the first quarter of 2005, Cavalry recorded a tax benefit of $427,000 due to a cash distribution of
dividends to the paiticipants in their employee stock ownership plan. Excluding this benefit would
have lowered pro forma net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 by $427,000 resulting in
pro forma net income of $16,184,000 or $1.06 per basic share and $0.99 per fully-diluted share.

(2) In preparation and as a result of the merger during 2006, Cavalry and Pinnacle Financial incurred
significant merger related charges of approximately $11.7 million in the aggregate, primarily for
severance benefits, accelerated vesting of defined compensation agreements, inivestment banker fees,
etc. Including these charges would have decreased pro forma net income for yéar ended December
31, 2006 by $7.08 million resulting in net income of $11,217,000 and a basu: and fully diluted pro
forma net income per share of $0.76 and $0.70, respec,tlvely . '

During the year ended December 31, 2006; Pininacle Financial incurred merger integration expense related to
the merger with Cavalry of $1,636,000. These expenses were directly related to the merger, recognized as
incurred and reflected on the accompanying consolidated statement of income as merger rélated expense.

1 '
.
1
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.Note 3 Restricted Cash Balances - . > S o . r

Regulatlon D of the F ederal Resérve Act requires that banks maintain reserve: balances w1th the Federal*Reserve
o Bank lbased principally on the type and amount of their. deposrts At its option, Pinnacle Fmancml mamtams

** additional balances to t.ompensate for ¢learing and other services. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 ithe average: daily | balance mamtamed at the Federal Reserve was approxlmately $600, 000 and $593 000,

respecnvely e B,
oL C o ';‘_si.f' " — .
" Noted. Securities .o i o Qi

.+ The amortized cost and. fa1r value of secuntles avarlable for—sale and held to- matunty at December 31, 2006

and 2005 are summanzed as follows t L o . K
N December 31, 2006
Gross ~ e . Gross
, Unrealized” - +-  Unrealized Fair’
’ i Amortized Cost Gains - Losses © Value
_ Securttles available:for-sale:. T o : :
i US Treasury securities - : $ - 5 - 5 - 8 -
U S. Governmenl agency securmes ' 38,076,428 9739 . 457,321 . 37,628,846
Mortgage—backed securmes " . 220,397,093 ¢ 455,203 " 3,028,241 217,824,055
State and municipal. secuntles e - 622159527 131412 -.388,124 61,959,240
,1. eCorporate notes A T 1,887,475 .- 62;188 1825 287
. - R E’,“. .. $322,576,948  $ 596,354 $3,935,874 - $319,237428
oo Securltles held—to maturlty lﬂ o o o
L U S. government agency. securmes $17,747278 % .- 8378, 528 $ 17 368 700
State and municipal securities . © - 9509648 0 0 . - " 284,113 9225535
R e K R $27,256,876 § - % 662,641 § 26,594,235
I * . i
! December 31, 2005 '
) Gross .- Gross, = - i
o ) Unrealized =~ ' Unrealized Fair
: i Amortized Cost Gains . Losses Value
Securltles avanlable—for-sale . o I A : "
US Treasury securities ’ T $ 8 -8 T -
U S, Government agency securmes 31,054,469, : - 534,899 . 30,519,570
Mortgage-backecl securmes ) 190 708, 007‘ 44378 - 3,866,210 -186,886,175 .
State and municipal securmes ' 32 583, 283" © 19,044 f_f“" 464,984 32,137 343
R Corporate notes ' . ~2300442° - 94,436~ 2,206,006
o $256,646.201_§__ 63422_§. 4,960,529 §251.749,094
Securities held-to- maturlty e o ; .
" 'U S: govemment agency s secuntles s 17,746,883: 5 f - ¥ 441, 208 $ l? 305 675
L State and mun1c1pal securities . 9,584.368 - 343 746 7 9,240, 622
o T ""$"27331251. $_. . .- 8 78495 . $.26.546,297
L} ' T . ) ) " ' ‘

: Pmnacle Fmanmal reahzed appri)xlmately 81 14 ,000 in net gains. from the sale of $6, 792 000 of available-for-
sale secuntles dunng the year ended December 31, 2005. There were no losses on'the sale of securmes during,
the year ended December 31, 2005. Pmnacle Financial reahzed $357,000 in net gains on the sale of :

528, 461 000 of avallal)le for- sale secuntles during the year ended December 31, 2004. During the year ended .

December 31; 2004, gross reahzed gains’ amounted to $421,000 on,the sale’sf $14.5 million of available-for-

sale secuntles while gross rea]:zed losses amounted to $64,000 on the sale of $13.9 million of available- for-sale
securlt1es Ly .

a L

At Decernber 31 2006 approxnnately $275; 464 000 of Pmnacle Fmancral s avallable for-sale portfolio was
pledged to’ secure publlc funds and other deposits. and securmes sold under agreements to repurchase.

-, -53-
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES '
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMLNTS. '

" The amortized cost and fair value of debt sccurities as of December 31, 2006 by contractual maturity are shown
below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securiti€s since the
mortgages underlying the securities may be called or prepaid with or without penalty Therefore these

securities are not included in the maturity categones in the followmg sumimary. 5 ;
b
1
H

Held-to—maturlty

. L C ‘ ____Available-for-sale

Fair . i Fair

. : Amortized Cost . Value Amortized Cost Value
Due in one year or less T8 2,645,238 . % 2638716 S 153894 § 153,633
Due in one year to five years 54,183,409 - 53,652,713 - 21,527,276 21,029,557
Due in five years to ten years 36,609,387 ) 36,372,441 55,575,706 5,411,045
Due after ten years o 8,741,891 8,749,503 Pl -
Mortgage-backed securities - 220,397,093 217,824,055 ) ) - -
$ 322,576,948 $319,237,428 $27,256,876  § 26,594,235

f l
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, included n securities were the following investments wnth unrealized losses.
The information below classifies these investments accos dlng to the term of the unrealized loss of less than
twelve months or twelve months or longer : _ ' '

+

b
Investments with an \ '

Unrealized Loss of less than Investments with an Unrealized |, Tatal Investments with an

12 months Loss of 12 months or longer ! Unrealized Loss *
' Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
. . Fair Value Losses Fair Value . Losses ! Fair Value Losses

At December 31, 2006: ' ’ ) ' i | -

U.S. government agency securities 3 - 8 - - 5 47988246 % 835',849 1% 47,988,246 3 835, 849
Mortgage-backed securities 13,959,080 68,965 149,496,521 2,959,276 163,455,601 3, 028 241
State and municipal securities 13,975,595 47,071 35,660,379 625,166 49,635,974 672,237
Corporate notes - . C - . 1,825.286 62,188 ' 1,825,286 62,188

Total temporarily-impaired securities $ 27934675 3 116,036  §234,970,432 3 4,482,479 . §$ 262,905,107 $ 4,598,515

At December 31, 2005: , ’ |

U.8. government agency secutities 3 28,605270 % 463,534  $19,219,975 $ 5125730 S 47,825,245 $ 976,107
Mortgage-backed securities 110,636,351 1,586,394 69,512,865 2,279,816 1 180,149,216 3,866,210
State and municipal securities 22,692,062 341,869 14,074,344 466,861 1 36,766,406 808,730
Corporate notes - - 2,206,006 94,436 | 2206006 . . 94,436

Total temporarily-impaired securities $161,933,683  $2,361,797 $105,013,190 3 3,353,686 T $ 266,946,873 $ 5,745,483

{
Management evaluates securities for other than-temporary 1mpa1rment on at least a quarterly ba51s and moré
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration i is given to (1) the length
of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial ¢ ondmon and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of Pinnacle Financial to retain its 1nvestment in the issue
for a period of time sufficient to allow for any antmpatecl recovery in fair value. Because the declines in fair
value noted above were attributable to increases in interest rates and not attributable té credit qual:ty and
because Pinnacle Financial has the ability and intent to hold all of these investments until a market price T

recovery or maturity, the impairment of these investments is not deeniéd to be other-than- temporary.

1 1
1

. | i

-
e it e e
ot e m Ba e e e e -
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. PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. ‘Loans and Allowance 'for Loan Losses

The composition of loans at De"dember 31, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows:

.
B 3 * i
} o
£,
o

" LI o B e h
Commercial real estate — Mortgage . Coe s

L 2006 - 2005

‘$ 284,301,650 5148,102,053 »

Commercial real éstate — Construction 161,903,496 - . 30,295,106
Commercial — " Other T 608,529,830 239,128,969
Total Commercial 1,054,734,976 * 417,526,128 ..
Consumer real estate — Morigage 299,626,769 169,952 860
Consumer real estate -Construction , _ 791,193,738 37,371, 834 !

‘|Consumer - Other .+ -, . o 52,179,341 23,173,210

Total Consumer . ' o . 442999848 230,497,904

Total Loans. . . L 1,497,734,824 - 648,024,032 ¢
* |Allowance for loan losses N : (16,117 978) (7,857 77411
] Loans, net ‘ $ 1 481,616,846 - $640,166, 258 !

Plnnacle Financial penodlcally analyzes its commercral loan ponfoho to determine if a concentratlon of credit |

.risk exists to- any one or more industries. Pinnacle Financial utilizes broadly accepted industry classification

systems in order to classify borrowers into various industry classifications. During 2005, Pinnacle Financial

changed from using the Standard Industry Code classification system to the North American Industry.

Classxﬁcatlon System. Pinnacle Financial has a credit exposure (loans outstanding plus unfunded lines'of

: credlt) exceeding 25% of Pinnacle National’s total risk- based capital to borrowers in the following industries at
December 31, 2006 and 2005:

. ST 2006 2005
Trucking industry -$ 89,862,000 § 50,421,000
Lessors of nonresidential buildings 133,504,000 60,932,000
Lessors of re51dent1a1 bulldmgs . . 65,791,000 17,956,000 -
Land subdwrders : 164,535,000 37,963,000
-New: housmg operanve builders 192,373,000 .20,740,000

s .
1 ‘

. o Changes in the allowance for ]oan Iosses for each of' the years in lhe three—year perlod ended December 31,

2006 are as follows: : . T
l' 2006 2005 _ 2004

Balance at beginning of period $ 7,857,774 § 5,650,014 § 3,718,598
Charged—off loans o (818,467) (207 647} (1,032,378)
Recovery of prevrously charged off loans : 244343 - 263,441 15,371

+ Allowance from Cavalry acquisition (see note 2) 5,102,296 ‘-
Provision for loan losses 3,732,032 2,151 ,966 2,948,423.

$16, 117978 $ 7857 774 $ 5,650,014

Balance at end oﬁ])eriod - '

At December 31, 2006 and 2005 Pmnacle Financial had certam 1mpa1red loans on nonaccruing mteresit status.
The. pnncrpal balance of these nonaccrual. loans amounted to $7 070,000 and $460,000 at December 3 i, 2006
and 2005 respectlvely In each case, at the date such loans were placed on nonacctual, Pinnacle Fmancral
reveirsed all previously accrued.interest income agamst current year earnings. Had these loans been on accruing
- status, interest income would have been higher by $283, 000 $21,000 and $41,000 for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, respectweiy During the three year period ended December 31,
2006 the average balance of nonaccrual loans was $2,735,000, $387,000 and $776,000, respectively. 'As all
loans that-are'deemed 1mparred were erther on nonaccruing interest status during the entire year or were placed
on nonacerumg status on the date they were deemed impaired, no interest income has been recognized:on any
1mpa1red loans during the three year period ended December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2006 and 2003,
Pinnaclé Financial did not have an allowance loans con51dered to be impaired.




PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSID[ARIE"S‘
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS®

At December 31, 2006, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans and other extensions of credit amounting to
approximately $23,392,000 to certain directors, executive officers, and their related entities, of which
approximately $16,858,000 had been drawn upon. At December 31, 2005, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans
and other extensions of credit amounting to approximately $13,223,000 to certain directors, executlve officers,
and their related entities, of which $6,958,000 had been drawn upon. During 2006, $10,640, 000 of new loans
were made, $120,000 of loans were purchased through the Cavalry Banking, Inc. acqulsmon ‘and repayments
totaled $860,000. The terms on these loans and extensions are on substantially the-same terms customary for
other persons for the type of loan involved. None of these loans to certain directors, executive officers, and
their related entities, were impaired at December 31, 2006 or 2(05. !

During the three year period ended December 31, 2006, Pinnacle Financial sold participations in certain loans to
correspondent banks at an interest rate that was less than that of the borrower’s rate of interest. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles Pinnacle Financial has reflected a net gain on the sale of these
participated loans for each of the years in the three'year period ended December 31, 2006 of $420,000,

$152,000 and $234,000, respectively, which is attributable to the present value of the future net cash flows of
the difference between the interest payments the borrower is projected to pay Pinnacle F inancial and the amount
of interest that will be owed the correspondnnt banks based on their participation in the loan. At December 31
2006, Pinnacle Financial was servicing $106.8 million of loans for correspondent banks and other entities, of
whlch $95.4 million was commercial loans. - ‘

Note 6. Premises and Equipment and Lease Commitments

Premises and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Range of Useful Lives 2006 ! 2005

Land - $ 9545667 ' $ 2,502,524
Buildings . ‘ 15 to 30 years 19,849,960 ! ‘ 6,767,518
Leasehold improvements 15 to 20 years 1,954,028 ' 1,232,973
Furniture and equipment 3to 15 years . 21,350,694 ' 5,506,469
52,700,349 . ) 16,009,484
Accumulated depreciation ‘ : (16,414,553 : (3,093,889)
' $ 36,285,796 $12,915,595

Depreciation expense was approxtmately $2 702,000, $997, 000 and $657, 000 for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2006. ‘
Pinnacle Financial has entered into various operating leases, prnnanly for office space and branch facilities..
Rent expense related to these leases for 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $1,161,000, $950,000 and $636,000,
respectively. At December 31, 2006, the approx;mate future minimum lease payments due under the -
aforementioned operating leases for their base term is as follows: . ; : :

{ .

2007 : $ 1,223,000
2008 . : : 1,248 000
2009 _ 1,216,000
2010 : : ' 1,181,000
2011 : " 1,127,000

Thereafter ‘ ’ 10,329,000
Co - $16,324,000

f} +
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Deposrts

At December 31, 2006, the schedu]ed maturities of time deposrts are as follows:

. 2007 + ' '$ 462,839,784
2008 .“" o , - : 73,778,670

2009 Lo _ - . 40,914,383

2010 o ; _ 13,321,854

<2011 . L . ' ; 4 7,957,377
L2012 o : : . 10,599

$ 508,823,167

b .‘

;. Additionally, at December 31, 2006 and 2003, approximately $44O 136,000 and $246,249,000, respecllvely, of
time deposits had been issued in denominations of $1 00,000 or greater.

" At December 31, 2006, Pinnacle Financial had $1.7 million of deposit accounts in overdraft status and thus

have been rectassified to loans on the accompanying consohdated balance sheet.

Note 8 Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Other Borrowmgs

. Pinnacle Natlonal isa member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (“FHLB”) and as a result,

Pinnaclé Natronal is eligible for advances from-the FHLB, pursuant to the terms of various borrowing -
agreements, which assists Pinnacle Natronal in the funding of its home mortgage and commercial real estate
loan portfolios. . Finnacle National has pledged certain qualrfymg residential mortgage loans and, pursuant to a
blanket lien, all qualrfymg commercial mortgage loans with an aggregate cairying value of $122 019,000 as
collateral under the borrowing agreernents with the FHLB,

At December 31 2006 and 2005, Pinnacle National had received advances from the FHLB totalmg $53,726,000
and $41,500,000, respecnvely At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of these advances and interest

rates are as follows 0 . '
! . ) ’

\ Scheduled
Maturities Interest Rate Ranges
[

2007 P . $28054437  3.2%105.4%
2008 5 S . 10,054,437 . 5.0%
2009 . v C 15,054,437, 5.0%
20102019 | . 562,515 23% -

: R ) - $ 53,725,833 Y
Welghted average interest rate’ " 3. 0%

At December 31 2006 Pmnacle National has accommodanons which allow it to purchase Federal funds from

several of its correspondent banks on an overnight basis at prevailing overnight market rates. These
‘accommodations are subject to various restrictions as to their.térm and availability, and in most cases, must be
repaid within less than a month There were no outstanding balances at December 31, 2006 or 2005 tinder these

arrangements. s e
.

Note 9. Investments in Afﬁlrated Compames S

On December 29, 2003; we estabhshed PNFP Statutory Trust [; on September 15, 2005 we establlshed PNFP
Statutory Trust 1[; and on September 7,2006 we established PNFP Statutory Trust 1l (+Trust I; “Trust II”;
“Trust HI” or collectively, the “Trusts”) All are wholly-owned statutory business trusts. Pinnacle Financial is
the sole sponsor of the Trusts and acquired each Trust’s common securities for $310,000; $619,000 and
_$619,000, respectively. The Trusts were created for the exclusive purpose of issuing 30-year capital trust
preferred securities (*‘Trust Preferred Securities”) in the aggregate amount of $10,000,000 for Trust [;
$20,000,000 for Trust IT and $20,000,000 for Trust I1I'and-using the proceeds to acquire junior subordmated
debentures (“Subordinated Debentures”) issued by Pinhacle Financial. The sole assets of the Trusts are the
Subordinated Debentures. Pinnacle Finaricial’s aggregate $1,548,000 investment in the Trusts is included in

investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and other’entities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at

December 31, 2006 and the $51,548,000 0bl1gat10n of Pinnacle Financial is reflected as subordinated debt at
December 31, 2006.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Trust | Preferred Securities bear a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR (8.16% at
December 31, 2006) which is set each quarter and mature on December 30, 2033. The Trust 11 Preferred
Securities bear a fixed interest rate of 5.848% per annurm thru September 30, 2010 at which time the securities
will bear a floating rate set each quarter based on a spread over 3-month LIBOR. The Trust {] securities mature
on September 30, 2035. The Trust ITT Preferred Securities bear a floating interest rate based on a spread over 3-
month LIBOR (7.02% at December 31, 2006) which is sct each quarter and mature on September 30, 2036.

Distributions are payable quarterly. The Trust Preferred Securities are subject to mandatory redemption upon
repayment of the Subordinated Debentures at their stated maturity date or their earlier redemption in an amount
equal to their liquidation amount plus accurnulated and unpaid distributions to the date of redemption. Pinnacle
Financial guarantees the payment of distributions and payments for redemption or liquidation of the Trust
Preferred Securities to the extent of funds held by the Trusts. Pinnacle Financial’s obl:gatmns under the
Subordinated Debentures together with the guarantee and other back-up obligations, in the aggregate, constitute
a full and unconditional guarantee by Pinnacle Financial of the obligations of the Trusts under the Trust -
Preferred Securities.

The Subordinated Debentures are unsecured, bear interest at a rate equal to the rates paid by the Trusts on the
Trust Preferred Securities and mature on the same dates as thos: noted above for the Trust Préferred Securities.
Interest is payable quarterly. Pinnacle Financial may defer the payment of interest at any time for a period not
exceeding 20 consecutive quarters provided that the deferral period does not extend past the stated maturity. .
During any such deferral period, distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities will also be deferred and
Pinnacle Financial's ability to pay dividends on our common shares will be restricted.

Subject to approval by the Federal Reserve 13ank of Atlanta, the Trust Preferred Securitié_s may be redeemed
prior to maturity at our option on or after September 17, 2008 for Trust I; on or after September 30, 2010 for
Trust 11 and September 30, 2011 for Trust l1l. The Trust Preferred Securities may also be redéemed at any time
in whole (but not in part) in the event of unfiuvorable changes in laws or regulations that result in (1) the Trust
becoming subject to federal income tax on income received on the Subordinated Debentulres, (2) interest
payable by the parent company on the Subordinated Debentures becoming non-deductible for federal tax
purposes, (3) the requirement for the Trust to register under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended,
or (4) loss of the ability to treat the Trust Preferred Securities as “Tier | capital” under the Federal Reserve
capital adequacy guidelines.

The Trust Preferred Securities for the Trusts qualify as Tier I capital under current regulatory deﬁnitions subject

* to certain limitations. Debt issuance costs associated with Trust I of $105,000 consisting pnmanly of
underwriting discounts and professional fees are included in other assets in the accompanymg consolldated
balance sheet. These debt issuance costs are being amortized over ten years using the siraight-line method.
There were no debt issuance costs associated with Trust Il or Trust I11. Co

Combined summary financial information for the Trusts follows (dollars in thousands):

Combined Summary Balance Sheets C !

December 31, 2006 : December 31, 2005

Asset — Investment in subordinated debentures issued by Pinnacle Financial . $ 51,548 $ 30,929 ,
Liabilities $ s -
Stockholder’s equity — Trust preferred securities 50,0_00 30,000
Common securities {100% owned by Pinnacle Financial) ] 1,548 ' 929
Total stockholder’s equity : 51,548 30,929
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity $ 51,548 $ 30,929

Combined Summary Income Statement o

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 i 2004
Income — Interest income from subordinated debentures issued 7
by Pinnacle Financial . 5 2,504 $ 986 $ 431

_Net Income 52,504 § 0986 $ 431
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combmed S ummary Statemerit of Stockholder s Eqmty

' Truost Total :
) Preferred: Common . Retained - Stockholder’s
. el ) Securities Stock Earnings Equity L
". Balances, December 31, 2003 - . $. 10,000 % 310 $ ., - $ 10,310 ' :
Net income Lo . - - 431 431
Dividends: ' - ! _ , . - . ce.
Trust preferred securities; - - : - (418) 4i8) . .

: Common paid to Pinnacle Financial - R (13 . {13 ‘
Balances, December 31, 2004 \ $ 10,000 - 8 310 $ _ $ 10310 - -
Net income - ' - ‘ 986 986 '

Issuance of trust preferred securmes 20,000 .. 619 - 20,619 e
Dividends: : -Z . T
Trust preferred securities - ' - Lo {956) ' (956) .
Common paid to Pmnacle Financial - - C : (30 . -(30) ~
" Balances, December 31, 2005 . $ 30,000 ¢ $ 929 $ $ 30,929
Net income” * e - . 2,504 2,504
.Issuance of trust preferred securities’ : 20,000 . 619 - 20,619
Dividends: A ’ ' ik : ST
Trust preferred securities . o - - (2,428) 2428 . .
Common pald to Pinnacle Financial ' S e . (76) - {76).
+ Balances, December 31, ‘2006 S - § 50,000 T% 1,548 $ o - $ 51,548

_ Note 10. Income. Taxes o

petiod ended December 31, 2006 consists of the followmg

. ) L2006 - 2005 2004
. ‘ " Current tax expense: L
e . Federal . .. $9 073, 193 g‘$‘.3,589,487 $2,677,582
X State: . 547,130 178,630 416,987
i . ‘Tot:a! current tax expense 9,620,323 - 3,768,117 3,094,569
. - Deferred tax benefit: W P .
Federal v L (971,418) (475,072) (765,139)
State: . T e (192.918) - (96,683) (157,147) -

Total deferred tax benefit . ©(1;164,336) . " (575,75%) (922,286) -
P E $8455987 $3l92362 $2172283

l}”-,, EE R

Income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operatlons for each of the years m the three-year

i

4

' ' b
) Pmnacle Fmanclal’s income tax expense dlffers from the amounts computed by applying the Federal income tax
 statutory rates of 35% in 2006 and 34% in'2005 and 2004 to income before income taxes. A reconciliation of
the differenices for each of the years in the three-year perlod ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

2004 - - iy

. L " 2006 L “Z.‘ 2005
Income taxes at statutory rate . - -, - -$ 9 234 0§7 '_ . 53, 824 194 4 $ 2 547 006 Lo
State tax expense, net of, federal tax effect :.‘,’. - »230,238 ‘ . 54,085 - A7 494 . .
Federal tax credits... . ‘ ‘.;._a S (300 000) (3{]0 000) . (300 000y ’
Tax-exempt secun'tles . O T ’- - (602,100)-. . (339 900) | (156, 354) T
Otheritems =~ + e ' (106, 208) .. (46 017) (89,863)

B3

\

‘ .Efl: . . - 59_

Income tax expense oL . $8455 987 .- $ 3,192,362 .. $2,l72,283 .
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The effective tax rate for all years is impacted by Federal tax credits related to the New Markeis Tax Credit
program whereby a subsidiary of Pinnacle National has been awarded approximately $2.3 million in future
Federal tax credits which are available thru 2010. Tax benefits related to these credits will be recognized for
financial reporting purposes in the same periods that the credits are recognized in the Company’s income tax
returns. The credit that is available for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006 was
$300,000. Pinnacle Financial believes that it and its subsidiary have complied with the varicus regulatory
provisions of the New Markets Tax Credit program in each of these years. Also, during 2004, Pinnacle
National formed a real estate investment trust which provides Pinnacle Financial with an alternative vehicle for
rmsmg capital. Additionally, the ownership strecture of this real esiate mvestment trust provndes certain state
income tax benefits to Pinnacle National and Pinnacle Financial.

The components of deferred income taxes included in other assets in the accompanying consol:dated balance
sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: : |

' Loan loss allowance $ 6,654,334 $ 3,019,004
Loans 1,337,983 ’ 44,316
Securities 1,251,636 1,773,521
Accrued liability for supplemental retirement agreements 1,535,688 -
Deposits - . 585,568 -
Other deferred tax assets 340,296 130,500
11,705,505 . 4,967,431

Deferred tax liabilities: ..
Depreciation and amortization 1,563,078 417,207
Core deposit intangible asset 4,473,076 ‘ -
FHLB dividends ' 770,156 , -
Other deferred tax liabilities 440,642 f 139,602
7,246,952 : ~ 556,809
Net deferred tax assets $ 4,458,553 $ 4,410,622

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likety than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assels will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future 1axable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax plunning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax
assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that Pinnacle Financial will realize the
benefit of these deductible differences. However, the amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period are
reduced.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Pinnacle Financial has :ntered into off-balance sheet financial instruments
which include commitments te extend credit (i.e., including unfunded lines of ¢redit) and standby letters of
credit. Commitments to extend credit are usually the result of lines of credit granted to existing borrowers under
agreements that the total outstanding indebledness will not exceed a specific amount during the term of the
indebtedness. Typical borrowers are commercial concerns that use lines of credit to supplement their treasury *
management functions, thus their total outstanding indebledness may fluctuate during any time period based on
the seasonality of their business and the resultant timing of their cash flows. Other typical lines of credit are
related to home equity loans granted to consumers. Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
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. Note 12 Common Stock Offermgs and Warrants R

PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC.-AND SUBSIDIARIES -
. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FlNA’NClAL‘ STATEMENTS -

1
Standby letters of credit are generally issued on behalf of an applicant (our customer) to a spec1ﬁeally named
“beneficiary and are the fesult of a particular business arrangement that exists between the appllcant and the
beneﬁetary Standby letters of credit have: fi xed expiration dates and are usually for terms of two years or less
-dnless terminated beforehand due'to cntena spec1ﬁed in the standby letter of credit. A typical arrangement

. involves the appllcant routmely being indebted to the beneﬁcrary for such items as inventory purchases,
insurance, uttlmes lease guarantees or other third party commercial transactions. The standby letter of credit

- would perrrut the beneﬂcrary to obtain payment from Pinnacle Financial under certain prescribed c1rcumstances
Subsequently, Pinnacle Financial would then seck reimbursement from the applicant pursuant to the terms of
the standby letter of credit. : :

l

'Pinnacle Fmanmal follows the § same credtt policies and underwrltmg practices when makmg these commttments :

as'it does for on-balanee sheet instruments. Each custorner’s éreditworthiness is evaluated on a case- by-case
basis and the amount of collateral obtained, if any; is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer..
Collateral held varies but may include cash, real estate and improvements, marketable securities, accounts
. recewable mventory, equlpment and personal property. '

The contractual amounts of thesé commttments are not reflected in the consolidated ﬁnanclal statements and
twould only be reflected!if drawniupon. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
~drawn upon, | the contraetual amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. However, should

* . the commitments ‘be drawn i upon and should our customers default on their resulting obligation to us, Pinnacle

~Financial's maximum exposure to credit loss, without consnderanon of collateral, is represented by the -
connactual amount of those instruments. '

A summary of Pmnaele Fmanotal's total contractual amount for all off balance sheet commitments at Deeember
31, 2006 is as follows { v T .

. s s . . - .
Commttments to extend credit ) $ 532,383,000
Standby letters of credtt _ ‘ 52,961,000
s = . v S, ! . .
. At December il 2006 the fair value of Pmnacle Fmancral 8 standby letters of credit was $159; 000 Tl'llS' .
amount represents the unamortlzed fee associated with these standby letters of credit and is included in the

consolldated balance sheet of Pmnaole Financial. Thrs fair value will decrease over ume as the existing; standby’

. letters of credit approaoh therr explratton dates

-Vanous legal ela:ms also arise from time to time in the normal course of busmess In the optnlon of
management the resolutlon of claims outstanding at December 31, 2006 will not have a material effect on
Ptnnacle F1nanetal s consohdated fmancral statements.

PR '

i
. 1

‘ Dunng 2004 Pmnacle Fmancral lconc]uded a follow on offermg of its.common stock to the general publrc As
a'result-of this offering, Pinnacle Financial, through its underwriters, sold 850,000 shares of common stock to

- the general public at $20 per share The underwriters also exercised an over-allotment option and purchased an
‘additional 127,500 shares at $20 per share, less the applrcable underwriting discount. Net proceeds from the

offering were approx1mately $18.2 mtllton v

Three executtves of Pmnacle F1nanc1al (the Chamnan of the Board the President and Chief Executive Officer
_.and the Chief Admtmstrauve Officer) along with nine members of Pinnacle Financial’s Board of Directors and
two other organizers.of, Pmnacle Financial were awarded warrants to acquire 406,000 shares of common stock

at $5.00 per share.. Dunng 2006, 11,000 warrants were exerc1sed and, as a result, 395,000 unexercised warrants
_ were outstanding and exercrsable at December 31, 2006. :
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Note 13. Salary Deferral Plans and Cavalry Supplemental Executive Retirementi Agree:ments

Pinnacle Financial has a 401(k) retirement plan covering all employees who elect to par'ticipate, subject to’
certain eligibility requirements. The Plan allows employees to defer up to 15% of their salary subject to
regulatory limitations with Pinnacle Financial matching 100% of the first 4% in Pinnacle Financial stock during
2006. 1n 2005 and 2004, the match was calculated at 50% of the first 6% deferred in Pinnacle Financial stock. .

Subsequent to the merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. from March 15, 2006 through Deéember 29, 2006, certain *

employees participated in the Cavalry Bancorp 401(k) plan. On December 29, 2006, the Cavalry Bancorp
401(k) plan was merged into the Pinnacle Financial 401(k) plan. Pinnacle Financial's expense associated with
the matching component of the plan(s) for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006
was approximately $762,000, $259,000 and $199,000, respectively, and is included in the accompanying

statements of income in salaries and employee benefits expense,
( !

Prior to the merger with Pinnacle Financial, Cavalry maintained an employee stock ownership plan for the
benefit of certain employees (the “Cavalry ESOP™). The Cavalry ESOP is a noncontributory retirement plan
adopted by Cavalry in 1998 for the benefit of certain employees who meet minimum ¢ligibility requirements.
Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. was the Plan Sponsor and with the merger with Pinnacle Financial, Pinnacle Financial
became the Plan Sponsor on March 15, 2006. On Marck 13, 2006, the Cavalry ESOP owned approximately

683,000 common shares of Pinnacle Financial. The Cavalry ESOP had no Habilities as of March 15, 2006, thus -

alt of the Pinnacle Financial shares owned by the Cavalry ESOP were available for distribution to the
participants in the Cavalry ESOP pursuant to the terms of the plan. The terms of the (“avalry ESOP did not-
change as a result of the merger with Pinnacle Financial. .

Pursuant 1o the terms of the Cavalry ESOP, participation in the plan has been frozen as of March 15, 2006 and
ail participants in the plan were fully vested prior to the merger date. "All assets of the plan were allocated to the
participants pursuant to the plan’s provisions. Thus, Pinaacle Financial is not required to make future
contributions to the Cavalry ESOP. Distributions to participants are only made upon Lhe termination from
employment from Pinnacle Financial or the participant’s death, at which time, dlstnbutlons will be made to the
participant’s beneficiaries.

Pinnacle National serves as the Trustee of the Cavalry ESOP. During 2006, Pinnacle National assessed the

Cavalry ESOP no fees as Trustee. Additionally, Pinnacle National incurred administrative expenses of $15,000, .

primarily auditing and consulting expenses, to maintain the plan. . ?

Prior to the merger with Pinnacle Financial, Cavalry had adopted nonqualifi ed noncontnbutory supplemental
retirement agreements (the “Cavalry SRAs™) for certain of the directors and executive officers of Cavalry.
Cavalry invested in and, as a result of the Cavalry merger, Pinnacle Financial is the owner of single premium
life insurance policies on the life of each participant and is the beneficiary of the policy valué. When a
participant retires, the accumulated gains on the policy allocated to such participant, if any, will be distributed to
the participant in equal installments for 15 years (the “Primary Benefit”). In addition, any annual gains afier the
retirement date of the participant will be distributed on an annual basis for the lifetime of the participant (the

“Secondary Benefit”). As a result of the merger with Pinnacle Financial, all participants became fully vested in
the Cavalry SRAs. No new participants have been added to the Cavalry SRAs as a result of the merger with
Pinnacle Financial.

The Cavalry SRAs also provides the participants with death benefi its, which is a percentage df the net death
proceeds for the policy, if any, applicable to the participant, The death benefits are not taxable to Pinnacle
Financial or the participant’s beneficiary. v

Pinnacle Financial recognized approximately $163,000 in compensation expense in the year ended December
31, 2006 related to the Cavalry SRAs. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial incurred approximately $5,000 in
administrative expenses to maintain the Cavalry SRA during the year ended December 31, 2006. At Deceritber
31, 2006, included in other liabilities is $3,915,000 which represents the net present value of the future
obligations owed the participants in the Cavalry SRAs using a discount rate of 5.5%.

| ' !
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Note 14, Stock Option Plan and Restricted Shares : e : Lo

Pinnacle Financial has two equity incentive planis under which it has granted stock options to its employees to *’

purchase common stock at or above the fair market value on the date of grant and granted restricted share ., -

awards to employees and directors. During the first quarter of 2006 and in connection with its merger with

Cavalry, Pinnacle Fmanc1al assumed a third equtty incentive plan, the 1999 Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option

Plan (the “Cavalry Plan”) All opttons granted under the Cavalry Plan were f"ully vested prior to Pinnacle

Financial’s merger with Cavalry and expire at various dates between January 201 1'and June 2012. In

connection with the merger all optiohs to acquire Cavalry common stock were coriverted to options to dcquire

Pinnacle Financial common stock at the 0.95 exchange ratio. The exercise price of the outstanding options

under the Cavalry Plan was adjusted using the same exchange ratio. - All other terms of the Cavalry options - .
were unchanged. There were 195,551 Pinnacle shares which could be acqutred by the parttc1pants in’ the . - N
Cavalry Plan at exercise prtces that ranged between $lO 26 per share and $1 3 68 per share - ' v ‘

Asof December 31, 2006 of the 1,658,000 stock optmns outstandmg,, l,298 000 optmns were granted w1th the . Co
intention to be incentive stock options qualtfymg under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code for favorable Lo T
" tax treatment to the option holder while 361,000 options would be deemed non-qualified stock options and thus : Sy
not subject to favorable tax treatment to the opt10n ‘holder.; All stock options under-the plans vest in equal
increments over five years from the date of grant and are exercnsable over a period of ten years from the date of . .
grant i _ ‘ | . o
A summary of the activity wrthm the three equity mcentwe plans durmg the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 and information regarding expected vesting, contractual terms remaining, intrinsic values and other

matters was as follows: - o .- ;_,— - P ;
- o Weighted- o . l
Cor "Average ‘[ L T
Weighted- Contractual = - Aggregate " . !
Average Remaining ‘; 1‘lntrmsic P
) Exercise . © o Term . - Value (1) -
L ' Number . .Price ' = 7 “(in years)' (000°s) foe
Outstanding at December 31,2003 907,400 $ s39 - - oo e
Granted 189,080 1465 = - ‘ L.
Exercised ‘ - ' < (23,780) - 489 o . B R oo
Forfeited ' : (4,350) . 786 "~ : T I o
Outstanding at December 3] 2004 : 1,068,350 $ 7.03 R
Granted , : 209482 - 23.74 o o
- Exercised . . (20953) . . 593 S
Forfeited o . (14,486) 14.93 -y - . .
Outstanding at December 31,2005 . - CTT1,242393 8. 9.78 T L .
Additional stock option grants resultmg from . _ B I . b
assumption of the Cavalry Plan , 195551 - . 10,80 . S
Granted . 365,519 - 24.00 B - oo
* Exercised . .1 (130,168) 9.69 " ' '
Forfeited ' © o (14,836) 15.45 , .. '
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 - 1,658,459 - § 1293 . ‘64 °  $31,848 ) '
Outstanding and expected to vest. at December 31,2006 7 1,630,134 ° § 13.88 6.4 . $31,563 o J o '
- QOptions exercisable at December 31} 2006 o 922,524 . .8 740, - -_‘5.0 .$23,780 L, ‘
N ; o
(1) The aggregate mtrmsrc value.is calculated as the difference between the exercise pnce of the underlymg L <, ;
awards and the quoted price of Pinnacle Financial common stock of $33.18 per common share for the 1.6 . ro
million options that were in- the-money at December 3| 2006 .- - T !

During the year ended December 31 2006 155 000 optlon awards vested at an average exerc1se price 0ﬁ$12 46 ) . !
and an intrinsic value of approxlmately $5.14 million. On January 19, 2007, Pinnacle Financial granted options :
to purchase 234,000 common shares to certain employees at an exercise prlce of $3I 25 per share. These .

options, which were issued as non-qualified stock options, ,thl vest in varying increments over ﬁve years T e .
beginning one year after the date of the grant and are exercrsable over a period of ten years from the dateof . ... = - '
grant. ‘ . . ,

i
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During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2004, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised
under our equity incentive plans was Sl 654,000, $354,000 and $6,000, respectively, determmed as of the date
of option exercise. As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $4.39 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested stock options granted under our equity incentive plans That cost is
expected to be recogmzed over a weighted-average period of 3.9 years. . . | i

.. | :
Pinnacle Financial adopted SFAS ‘No. 123(R) usmg the modified prospective transition, method on January l
2006. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2006; we récorded stock- based compensation expense
using the Black-Scholes valuation model for awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of January 1, 2006
and for stock-based awards granted after January 1, 2005, based on fair value estimated using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. For these awards, we have recogmzed compensation expense using a straight-line
amortization method. As SFAS No. 123(R) Tequires that,stock-based compensation expensetbe based on awards
that are ultimately expected to vest, stock-based compensation for the year ended Dec ember[3| 2006 has been
reduced for estimated forfeitures. The impact on our results of operatlons (compensauon and employee benefits
expense) and earnings per share of recording stock-based compensation in accordance w1th SFAS No 123(R}) -
(related to stock option awards) for the year ended December-31, 2006 was as follows: | |

Awards granted - ' i -

|
'.
|
i
i
K

with
3 " the intention to be i
classified R
: as incentive stock Non-qualified stoc
options option awards . Totals
. . . i . i i
Stock-based compensation expense . 5586923 $423.034 i $ 1,009,957
-~ Deferred income tax benefit : : - 165956 . 165,956
' Impact of stock-based compens‘atlon expense after ‘ o j 1
deferred income tax benefit - . $ 586,923 $257.078 $ 844,001
Impact on'earnings per share: - o : ' ot )
Basic —weighted average shares outstandmg _ : $ 0.042 $ 0018 $ 0.060
- Fully diluted — weighted 2 average shares outstanding ~§ 0.039 $ 0.’017 | $ 0.056

For purposes of these calculations, the fair value of options granted for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2006 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model andlthe followmg

' assumptions: :
2006 ) 2005 . 2004

‘ ‘ ; i

. Risk free interest rate  ~ 4.65% 257% | 1.11%
Expected life of options . 6.50 years 6.50 years, 6.50 years

Expected dividend yleld : . 0.00% 0.0(jl% - 0.00%
" Expected volatility ' : 23.1% . 24.1% | 21.4%
Weighted average fair value $10.44 . %730 ' $3.62

Pinnacle Financial's computation of expected volatility is based on weekly historical volatlllty since September
of 2002. Pinnacle Financial used the simplified method in determining the estimated life of stock option
issuances. The risk free interest rate of the award is based on the closing market bid for U. S Treasury securities
correspondmg to the expected life of the stock option issuances in effect at the time of gTant '
1

‘ ! i
Additionally, Pmnacle Financial’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan prowdes for the grantmg of restricted share
awards and other performance or market-hased awards, such as stock appreciation rights.  There were no
market—based awards or stock appreciation rights outstanding as of December 31, 2006. . During 2006, 2005 and
2004, Pinnacle Financial awarded 18,057 shares, 16,366 shares and 3,846 shares, respectlvc]y, of restricted
common stock to certain executives of Pinnacle Financial. The fair value of these awards as of the date of grant
was $34.96,$24.98 and $22.62 per share, respectwely The forfeiture restrictions on the restnctcd shares lapse
in three separate traunches should Pinnacle Financial achieve certain earnings and souddness targeta over the
subsequent three year period, excludmg the impact of any merger related expenses in 2006 and thereaﬂer
Compensauon expense

'
i
[
1
t
]

. ——
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>

associated with the restricted share awards is recognized over the time penod that the restrictions associated
.with the awards lapse based on a graded vesting schedule such that each traunche is amortized separately.
Eammgs and soundness targets for the 2006, 2005 and 2004 fiscal years were achieved and the restrictions
related to 12,753, 6,734 shares and 1,282 shares, respectwely, were released. For each year in the three-year
period ended December 31,2006, Pinnacle Financial recogmzed approxlmately $360,000, $245,000 and:
$43 000, respectively, in compensatnon costs attributable to these awards. Accumulated compensation costs

" since the date these shares were awarded have amounted to approxlmately $648, 000 through December 31,
2006.
Dunng 2006 the Board of Dlrectors of Pinnacle Financial awarded 4 400 shares of restricted common stock:to
the outside members of the board in accordance with their 2006 board compensation package. Each board
member received an award of 400 shares. The restrictions on these shares lapsed subsequent to December 31,
2006 on the one year anniversary date of the award based on each individual board member meeting their
attendance goals for the various board and board committee. meetings to which each member was scheduled to
- attend during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 with the exception of one outside board member who

" resigned his board seat and forfeited his restricted share award. The welghted average fair value of all restncted
share awards granted to our directors as of the date of grant was $26.14 per share. For the year ended .
December 31, 2006, Pinnacle Fmanmal recognized approx1mately $105,000, inv compensatlon costs attributable
‘to these awards.

A summary of activity for restricted share awards for the year ended December 31, 2006 fol!ows

L ot

: . os . Executive Managemem Awards o Board of Director Awards
(number of share awards) -~ . . Vested __Unvested - Totals Vested  Unvested Totals

' R . . . . o -

Balances at December 31,2005 = 8016 12,196 + - 202127 . « = o - - ;

Granted - 18057 - 18,057 - 4,400 4,400
Forfeited | ‘ - - - - (400)  (400)
Vested St 12753 (12783) - -
Balances at December 31,2006 20,769 17,500 ... 38,269 - 4,000 4,000

A summary of eompensatidn-exf)ense,_net of the impact of income taxes, related to restricted stock awards for the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, follows:

o <. L. 2006 2005 2004
Stock-based compensation expense ‘ ;0 -$465,003 $244,724 | $ 43,009
Income tax benefit - ' - o 182,421 93,705 16,468
Impact of stock-based compc.nsanon expense net of income - . . '
tax benefit - . .. . o w00 13282582 _$151,019 $26541
lmpact on earnings per share:' . - : . o S ‘ C
. Basic —weighted average shares omstandmg v . ;.5 0020. ., - §0018 $ 0.003
° Fully dituted — we:ghted average shares outstandmg PN »fn_S 0019 . .3 006, $ 0.003

. ) i

Prior to January 1, 2006 Pinnacle- Fmanc:al applied' APB Opinion No. 23 and related 1nterpretat10ns in accc)untmg
for its stock option plans. All optlcm grants carry exercise prices equal to or above the fair value of the common
stock on the date of grant. Accordmgly, no compensation cost had been recognized for such periods. Had
compensation | cost for Pinnacle Financial’s equity incenfive plans been determined based on the fair value at the
grant dates for awards under the plans consistent with the method prescribed in SFAS No. 123(R), Pinnacle,
Financial’s net income and net income per share would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated
‘below for the years ended Deeember 31 2005 and 2004 - o _ oo
. .
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2005 . 2004
Net income, as reported . ' ' $ 8,055,263 $ 5318910
Add: Compensation expense recognized in the accompanying _ . oo
consolidated statement of income, net of related tax effects 7' 167,9811 32,252°
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation experse determined under the C
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects - {859,350) (458,405)
Pro forma net income ) B . $ 7,363,899 % 4,892,757
Per share information: : . o
Basic net income Az reported 3 096 $ 0.69
Pro forma 0.88 0.63
. o ,
Diluted net income o , As reported $ 0.85 $ 0.61
Pro forma g 0 78 0.56

Note 15. Employment Contracts

Pinnacle Financial has entered into four continuously automatic-renewing three-year employmem agreements
with four of its senior exccutlves, the President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Administrative Officér and the Chief Financial Officer. These agreements will always have a three-year
term unless any of the parties to the agreeinents gives notice of intent not to renew the agreement. The
agreements specify that in certain defined “Terminating Events,” Pinnacle Financial ‘will be obligated to pay
each of the four senior executives a certain amount which is based on their annual salaries and bonuses. These
Terminating Events mcludc disability, change of control and other events,

o
Pinnacle Financial has emered into an employment agreement with one of its directors who served as the former
Chief Executive Officer of Cavalry. This agreement shall have an initia! term that expires on April 25, 2007
(the 65" birthday of the director/employee). The agreement specifies that in certain defined “Terminating
Events,” Pinnacle Financial will be obligated to pay this director/executive a certain amount which is based on
his annual salary and bonus. These Terminating Events include disability, change of control and other events.
Furthermore, pursuant to the employment agreement the director/employee has agreed to a noncompetltlon and
nonsolicitation clause for a period of three years following his employment. Co

Note 16. Related Party Transactions .

1 r
A local public telations company, of which one of Pinnacle Financial’s directors is a pnm:lpal ‘provides various
services for Pinnacle Financial, For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 22004, Pinnacle Financial
incurred approximately $195,000, $187,000 and $141,600, respectwely, in expense for services rendered by this
pubtic relations company. Another director is an officer in an insurance firm that servés as an agent in securing
insurance in such areas as Pinnacle Financial’s property and casualty insurance and (rther insurance policies.
During 2004, Pinnacle Financial’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinnacle Credit Enhancement Holdings, Inc.
(“PCEH"), acquired a 24.5% membership interest in Collateral Plus, LLC. Collateral Plus, LLC serves as an
intermediary between investors and borrowers in certain financial transactions whereby the borrowers require
enhanced collateral in the form of guaraniees or letters of credit issued by the investors for the benefit of banks
and other financial institutions. An ernployee of Pinnacie National also owns a 24.5%' mter::st in Collateral
Plus, LLC. PCEH’s 24.5% ownership of Collateral Plus, LL( resulted in pre-tax eammgs of $120,000 in 2006

$216,000 in 2005and $9,000 in 2004, !

Also see “Note 5-Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses” concerning loans and other extensions of credit to
certain directors, officers, and their related entities. !
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Note 17._Fair Value of Financial Instruments
boas
The following methods and assumpllons were used by Pmnacle Financial in estlmatmg its fair value disclosures
for financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on,
estimates using discounted cash flow models. Those models are 51gn1ﬁcant1y affected by the assumptlons used,
including the dlscount rates and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates
cannot be substantlated by comparison to independent markets and; in many cases, could not be reallzed in
. immediate settlement of the instrument. The use of different methodologles may have a material effect on the
estimated falr value amounts. The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information
available to management as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. Such amounts have not been revalued for
| purposes of these consolidated financial statements since those dates and, therefore, current estimates of fair
- . value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.

Cash, Due Fe‘om Banks and Fed Funds Sold - The carrying amounts of cash, due from banks, and federal
funds sold approximate their fair value.

Securities - Estimated fair values for securities available for sale and securities held to maturity are based on
quoted market prices where available. If quoted market prices are not available, estimated fair values are based
on quoted market prices of comparable instruments. :

1
Loans - For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values
are equal to carrying values. For fixed rate loans that reprice within one year, fair values areequal to carrying
i values. For other loans, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow medels, using current market
interest rates offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for impaired
loans are estimated using discounted cash flow models’ or based on the fair value of the underlymg coliateral.

i, i .
] Deposits, Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase, Advances from the Federal Home Loan
Bank and Subordinated Debt - The carrying amounts of demand dep051ts savings deposns secuntles sold
under agreements to repurchase, floating rate advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank and floating rate
subordinated debt approximate their fair values. Fair values for cemﬁcates of deposit, fixed rate advances from
the Federal Home Loan Bank and fixed rate subordinated debt are estlmated using dlscounted cash flow
models, using current market interest rates offered on cemﬁcates advances and other borrowmgs with similar
remaining maturities. For fixed rate subordinated debt, the maturity is assumed to be as of the earliest date that
the indebtedness will be repriced.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments - The fair values of Pinnacle Financial's off-balance-sheet financial
instruments are based on fees charged to enter into similar agreements. However, commitments to extend credit
and standby letters of credit dojnot represent a significant value to Pinnacle Financial until such commitments
are funded. Pinnacle Financial has determined that the fair value of commitments to extend credlt 15 not
significant. : . . o )
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of Pinnacle Financial's ﬁnanei_al'instrume'ms at December 31,
2006 and 2005 were as follows (in thousands): '
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o !f;:: i‘t ‘ ! . w4y o Trustand ] oo
S v " . J' ) Commercizzl Investment Mortgage Insurance .
+ __Banking . Services Orlgination Services Total Company
For the year endedDecember 31 2006 LT T T oA S . e
Net interest income” ' S M g 60953 . "J" U TR ‘1 s o L 3 60,953 '
Provision for loan losses ) 3732 - b 73,732 y
Noninterest income #,705 3.316 1,647 i 2,119 15,787
Noninterest expense 41,930 2,375 976 1,343 . 46,624 LY
Income tax expense -7l 75080 F T o 369 1 T 263 .4 % 1 317 8,457 - bl
Net income: " . “ TR ] § '~ 16488 1o 8 G720 % 408 +.'% .8 459 $ 17,927 ' ol en *i
' L g e m.lr" LA
For the year ended December, 31, 2005: s ST i : PR SN :
Net interest income syt grE 8 20038 W 3 -t $ =;;-. $ i- .8 29,038y . 5. ;
Provision for loan losses | g 2,152 - . . - A > SR ]
Noninterest i mcome o 2,675 e 1,573 N l, 146 Mo LT - 5394 L h .
Noninterest expense . W 18315 T L1717 546" - 210327 T
Income tax expense F 4 g0 154 ° 230! - 3,193 et S
Net income $ 7437 § 248 § 370 ° I g 8,055 X o
For the year ended December 31, 2004: b
Net interest income $ 20,264 3 - $ - $ L -ty 20264
Provision for loan losses® = ne e A0 20948 T Y el oo . 2,048 i i ,
Noninterest incomel «:d 7 s yoe "o 023480 13132 ¢+ 1,317 % - 4978 - e o
Noninterest expense _ 12,884 1,004 915 - v 14803 ey
Income tax expense  ym i q it b 1900 e v 118y 154 : - 2,172, s L
Netincome ;. , S $,,.4880 - . 5., 191.,. § 248°-. . $,. 5 . 5319. o,
As ofDecember3] 2006:::.___‘ v xm Lo s . - C . “'r b .. K
Endofpenodassets b 3 ‘2“& P $°2,138,26%° . $ -0 0% T.L v $'3918 $ 2,142 187 T -
As of December 31, 2005 . =T o ST R '
End of period assets | l-ﬂ ' $ 1,016,772 Sihee ol T8y o BB e S 1016772,
- S e . . Had Ty
At December il 2006 Pmnacle‘aFmanmaI had approxlmdtely $125. 7 mll]lon m good\\ 1ll a.nd core depos:t -'.
mtanglble assets all of whlch had been assigned to the Cnm‘merc:al Bankmg segment
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO! CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

q 4

t
Note 20 Parent Company Only Fmanclal Informat:on

-t

B

The followmg information presents the condensed balance sheets statéménts of income, and cash flows of

Pinnacle Financial as of December 31 2006 and 20035 and for each of the years in the three- year penod ended

'
b
Y-
'
}

P v
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December 31, 2006 ! o h I .
£ni ST I,CONDENSED BALANCE _SHE_E 78 ‘
. ; 2006 . 2005'
Assets: " R . --.-
" Cash B - p ©$.24,803,538 . $.12, 679 759
Investments iri tonsolidated subsidiaries: t s ol
Pinnacle National ! 277,481,220 79, 463,336
Pinnacte Advisory Services.  |._ 124,716+ 107,086
Pinnacle Credit Enhancement’ Holdlngs 185,325 © 123,431 -
PNFP Insurance e . 477,473 S -
Investment in unconsohddted subsndianes: R L T
PNFP Statutory Trust] "T.. * L 310,000 © 310,000
PNFP Statutory Trust m- A : ’ 619,000 619,000 . .-
PNFP Statutory Trust IIT -~ -5+ S 619,000 o -
Income taxes receivable from subsidiaries L 1,298/299.. . 676,886
Current income tax receivable . ‘ 1,049,604 - O
Otherassétsw  ©: .. +% & = - o 786,846 . 618,650 -« . .:1.”
. L Sy s " ’ -$307,755,021 - $94,598:148 5 b
Liabilities and stockholders’ ‘equity: ‘ ‘ SRR . . :
Current income taxes payable : - 232,723
Subordinated debt . v . 51,548,000 30,929,000 :
Other liabilities . ) .. 190,000 - R
Stockholders® equity o ‘ A 256,017,021 4 .- 63,436,425
S ’ -+ $307,755,021 “$ 94,598,148
. CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME R
i “ . ol -t Fot
: . E 2006 2005 . 2004 ‘
Revenues—lnterest lncome !' { % 267,154 - - ..$ 133,748 $ 63,121
. Expenses: "~ 3‘ o S - PR Lo .
Interest expense — subordmated debentures : 2,504,033 985,645 . 431,318 ¢
Stock-based cernpensatlon expense 1,474,960 244,724 ; 43,009
. Other expense Pr : 245,528' 58,772 .. A 100,179 ~
* Loss before income taxes and equlty m 1ncome of : o T I
- subsidiaries’. LT [ (3 957,367) (1,155,393) ¢ (511,385)
Income tax’ expense LR T 1,632,738 438270 198,516
Loss before equlty in income of subsmharles (2,324,629) . (717,123). ©-(312,869)
. Equity in income of subsidiaries 20,251,662 8,772,391 1 5,631,779
Net i mcome $ 17,927,033 $ 8,055,268 -$ 5,318,910

L e e




PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND- SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

CONDENSEL STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS :

3

Operating activities:
~ Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Stock-based compensation expense
Decrease (increase) in income tax receivable, net
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Tax benefit from exercise of stock awards
Excess tax benefit from stock compensaticn -
Deferred tax benefit
Equity in income of subsidiaries
Net cash provided {used) by operating dctivities
Investing acrivities —
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries: -
Pinnacle National
Other subsidiaries X
Investments in other entities =~ - -

Cash and cash equivalents acquired in merger with

Cavalry
Net cash used by investing activities
Financing activities —
Proceeds from issuance of subordmated debt

Net proceeds from sale of common stock

Exercise of common stock warrants

Exercise of common stock options

Excess tax benefit from stock compensatlon

arrangements

Costs incurred in connection w1th reglstratmn of
~ common stock issued in merger’

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

- 2006

2005 2004
$ 17,927,033 Sleossaes  s5318910°
b
1,474,960 | 244,724 43,009
(1,921,194) 1,000352  (1,449,903)
1,118,127 | (479,474) 12,365
190,000 99,726 (4.832) |
- I (50,535) (1,912)
(131,121) S . :
(232,366) A .
(20,251,662) (8,772391) ° (5,631,779)
(1,826,723) i 97,670 (1,714,142)
{619,000) f (51§ 000) -
-~ (10,000,000) (15,500,000) - (17,556,000)
(350,250) 1(183 2 GT81)
(65,647 ] o
3,128,116 Vo ]
(7,906,781) (16,302,721 (17,613,812)
| : o
20,619,000 20,619,000 -
L. - 18,192,167
55,000 Lo -
1,239,771 © 174,761 118,113
!
131,121 S .
(187,609) Lo -
21,857,283 0376 18310280
12,123,779 4588 710 (1,017,674)
12,679,759 8,091,049 9,108,723
_~§ 24,803,538 $12,679,759 ___$ 8,091,049
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FE NOTES TO 'CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 21 Quarterly Fmanclal Results (unaudlted)
’ 3, )* } . ' i-'

A

A summary of selected consoll_dated quarterly ﬁnancnal data for each of the years in the three-year perlod ended -

1,134 -

Decerber 31, 2006 follows: - : L A ‘u; .
et -1’3.':' Cen L Catte Lo Do . i
B M ;’h A ' - First - "% Second- St o0 Third ., . » . .Fourth * s
. fin thousands, exceptpershare dm'ag ! e . Quarter ‘Quarter. . Quarter . ‘Quarter .
2006 . . R N T ~
Intcrest 1nc0me . S $ 16,811 . $ 28305. - $:31,340 ,_$ 33, 241 L
Net interestincome ., . - .- , 19,507 -~ 16,895, 317,159 . 17,391
‘ Provmon for loan'losses+ . L N 387 - . 1,707 .. 587 . . .,.1,081
" Net income before taxes L3839 -0, 6463, ../ 7942, + 8139
Net income _: . PR, 2,612 .. ool 4322 5, 347 .- . . 5646 -
Basic net mcomeper s‘hare C e 5,027 8. 0.28 3., 0357 48 037,
Diluted net income per share ,} . 8. 024 .. 8 026 ,3 0.32. .. § 034
2005 . L B l, ..‘- .',' LT
Interest income $.9270-  + S10544 " $12379 .$14,118°.
Net interest income ‘ ‘6 503 .00 16795 . 1456, ",;,8,28:7;;.‘ ;
Provision for loan losses . -601 - 483, 366 .. o702
Net income before taxes *2 499 2 ,762 2,867 -»f A
Net incorne 1,780 1,959 2078 . . 2238
Basic net income per share 3 021 $-023° % 025 l'§ 027
Diluted net income per-share $ 0. 19 $.02r 8 022 $ 024
. + .o " . i N ;!‘5 [ s
Interest income ’ Lo $' 5,666 B 6,225 '$ 7214 '$ 8574 .
.. Net interest income - o 4,152 . % 4,536 5299, 6278
Provision for loan losses: T 354 449 . 1,012 N :
- Y Net income before taxes! = <~ - 1,611 1,655 1,961 2263
Net income’ o . C 1,071 .. 1,168 1,391 . . 1,689
Basic net income per share $ 0.15 § 06 . % 018 $.020
3 Diluted net income per share § 013 3 014 $.016 . 5.018
i
H
1
i '
X * 4 #
3 ‘ .
f 4
L. £ i I
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Pinnacle Financial Partners. Inc. 1~ ' _ - 'l 1 2006 Annual Report

I!LMM'&MBNAL WW
The management of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. is responsible for establlshmg and maintaining adequate
internal contro} over financial reporting. Pinnacle Financial Pariners, Inc.’s interial control system was designed
to provide reasonable assurance to the Company 5 management and board of dlreétors Tegarding the preparatlon
and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internalicontrol'systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can prowde only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statemenit preparation and presentatlon '; ; >
l I
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31;2006. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by-the
Committee of Sponsering Orgamzatzons of the Treadway Commission (COSO) m Internal Control-Integrated
Framework. In conducting the Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.'s evaluation of thc effectiveness of its internal
control over financial reporting, the Company has excluded the acquisition of Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (Cavalry),
which was completed by Pinnacle’ Financial Partners, Inc. on March 15, 2006, At the acquisition date, total assets
of Cavalry totaled $672 million, Further information concerning the acquisition of Cavalry appears in Note 2,
Merger with Cavalry Bancorp, Inc.; (o the’accompanyiny audited consolidated financigl statements. Based on our
assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is
effective based on those crlterla .
o \ ! H
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.’s mdependent registered public accounting firrn has lssued an audit report on
Pinnacle Financial Partners Inc.’s mcmagemem s assessment of the company’s. mtemal control over ﬁnancnal
repomng This report appears on payc 76 of this Annual Report. e ;o
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
] ‘ . . . }

The Board of Directors . - e -
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.: .o .. ) P

[

. ryiWe thaveyauditedythe; accompanying « consolidated baiarice . shects ;of: PinnacleFinancial Partners, Inc. and

subsidiaries (the:Company) as of ‘December 31, 2006 and 2005; and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

~ period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated finanéial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

| L eq ays . . N Ve LTI .
management. Ou{ responsibility is to eXpress an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

" audits. - . - i L Cee . o

t 3

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight-Board

. .(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit'inci_udé:‘; examining, on a test basis,

. evidence supporting the amounts ah.d disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the '
. accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our-audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. .

In our 6pinion,- the consolidated financial statements referred to above presenl-fa-irly, in all rﬁate_rial respects, the
financial position,of.the Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and cash

- " flows f_or.eac_h.of;'the years in the, three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in- conformity with U.S. generally

-accepted’accounting principles. ¢ tar G Laenst R NI st ragtan

L]

- As discussed in notes | aﬁ%i 14 to the consolidated financial sta_temenfs, 'in 2006 the Company chénged its method

of accounting for share-based payments.
I P

We also have aué_]ited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United Statés), the: effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based ‘on c'i-iteria'estgblished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Orgahizations, of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 20, 2007
expressed an ungualified opinion on rrianagerriém_“s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control

“over financial reporting. . :

Nashvilfe, Tennessee . ,' ' . 1 :
- February 20, 2007 C v




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOVU'NTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders : .
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.:
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying. Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting, that Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (the Company) maintained effective internal controf over financial
reporting a5 of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal contral over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all-material respects; Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment; testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
" considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordancz with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
ﬁnancial’statcments._ .

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
o S :

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated-Framework issued by the Coimmmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{CO80). Also, in our opinion, the Cempany maintained, in all material respects, effective intemnal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on critéria established in Internal Control—Integraied Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0).:

The Company acquired Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (Cavalry) on March 15, 2006. Total assets of Cavalry at the acquisition
date totaled $672 million. Management excluded Cavalry’s internal control over tmancnal reporting from its assessment
of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, COur audit of
internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over
financial reporting of Cavalry.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 20, 2007 expressed an

unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. t

Nashville, Tennessee ‘ - .
February 20, 2007 . . .
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

_ Pinnacle Fmancral‘s common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Markets under the symbol “PNFP” and has
traded on ‘that market since July 3,2006. Prior to that date, Pinnacle Financial’s common stock traded on the Nasdaq
‘National Market for the penods presented. The following table shows the high and low sales prrce information for
sPinnacle Fmancral s common stock for each quarter in 2006 and 2005 as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market or its predecessor the Nasdaq Natronal Market.

Price Per Share

. " High - Low
2006: : - R o
First quarter ' - $28.84 52475
‘Second quarter ) 3092 . : 27.09
Third quarter .. - 3741 ' 28.93
Fourth quarter h _ 36.17 31.23
2005: o ' S !
First quarter : . 82405 . $ 2072
Second quarter - oo : 25.14 20.50
Third quarter - | o 26.65 22.67
Fourth quarter ' _ 25 96 - 21 70

As of February 15, 2007, Pinnacle Financial had approx1mately 900 shareholders of record and, addmonally,

o approxlmately 5,600 beneﬁc1al owners. -

Pmnacle Fmancral has not paid any cash dividends since inception, and it does not anticipate that it will consider
paymg dmdends until Pinnacle National has achieved a level of proﬁtabﬂlty appropriate to fund sueh dividends and

S support asset growth

Pinnacle Frnancral did not repurchase any shares of its common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2006. -

T STOCKHOLDER RETURN.PERFORMANCE GRAPH
Set forth on the followmg page is a line graph comparing the monthly percentage ehange in the cumulatlve total
“stockholder réturn on the Pinnacle’s common stock against the cumulative total rerurn of the NASDAQ Composite

* rIndex-and the SNL Bank_ lndex with assets of $1-billion to $5 billion for the period commencing on December 31,

2001 and énding December 31, 2006 (the “Measuring Period”). The graph assumes that the vatue of the investment in

. " the Pinnacle’s common stock and each index was $100 on December 31,2001, The change in cimulative total réturn

"is measured by dlvrdmg the change in share price between thé begmnmg ‘and énd’of the Measunng Period by the share
price at the begmnmg of the Measuring Period. As the Company paid no eash dividends, the |mpact of dividends is not
applrcable to the Frmacle s-total return. However, cash dividends may impact the cumulative returns of the two
indices. ,, . .+ o . ’
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Cumulative Total Returns (l) !
Comparison of L

PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. -
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
SNL $1 BILLION to $5 BILLION BANK INDEX (2) |

J Total Return Performance

q
|
|

700 ! : }

—h— Pinnacl{e Financial Partners, Inc. .

600 ( —— NASDAQ Compdsite ‘*

—8— SNL $1|B-$SB Bank Index :

500 : f

2 400. :

C |
o> ]

5 .

T 300 f !

E | 1

200 ::;’.’,¢«,,,f,t__;__;__f e

100 i |
' b
0 - T : { !
12131/01 12{’31!02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05

12/31/06

=

! |

* (1) Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2001 in Pinnacle Financial Partners, lnc Common Stock
" (“PNFP™) and the twolmdexes noted above. Additionally, PNFP has traded on’ ‘the Nasdaq Global Select

Market since July 3,2006. Prior 10 that date, PNFP was traded on the Nasdaq National Market beginning

on August 14, 2002, From May 28, 2002 to August 13, 2002, PNFP was traded on lthe Nasdaq SmallCap-

Market. Prior to May: 28, 2002, PNFP was traded on the

{2) SNL Bank Index w1th|assets of $1 billion to $5 billion is a customized index con51st1ng of 47 publicly

OTC Bulletin Board. !

traded banking msututlons headquartered in the United States. SNL Financial is a financial research firm
focused on bankmg and other industries and is located in Charlotteswlle Vlrglma '

Cumulatwe Total Return of $100.00 initial investment on Dec;mber 31, 2001

December 31 i
2001 2002 2003 2004 ! 2005 2006
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. 100.00 125.95 229,27 - 441.39 487.41 647.41
NASDAQ Compaosite lndex 100.00 68.76 103.67 [SRNL 115.57 127.58
SNL Bank Index with assets of vl
156.98 193.74 190,43 220.36

$1 billion to 35 billion 100.00 115.44
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sue G. Atkinson
Chairmun
Atkinson Public Relations

Gregory L. Burns
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
O Charley’s Inc.

Colleen Conway-Welch
Dean of Nursing
Vanderbilt University

James C. Cope .

Partner

Cope, Hudson, Scarlett,
Reed & McCreary

William H. Huddleston, IV

President

Huddleston-Steele
Engineering, Inc.

Clay T. Jackson

Senior Vice President,

Regional Agency Manager,
Tennessee

BB&T Cooper, Love, Jackson,
Thornton & Harwell

Ed C. Loughry, Jr.
Vice Chairman
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

Formerly Chairman and CEO

of Cavalry Bancorp, Inc.

Robert A. McCabe, Jr.
Chairman
Pinnacle Financial Parners, Inc.

Hal N. Penninglon
Chairman and

Chief Execuiive Officer
Genesco Inc.

Dale W. Polley

Retired President of
First American National
Bank and Vice Chairman of
the First American Boarid

LEADERSHIP TEAM

Harold R. Carpenter
Executive Vice President and
Chief Finuncial Officer

Ronald K. Carter

Senior Vice President and
Rutherford County Client
Services Manager

R. Dale Floyd

Senior Vice President and
Chief Lending Officer

Rutherford County

Gerald M. Hampton
Senior Vice President and
‘Financial Advisor

Joanne B. Jackson
Executive Vice President
and Manager

Client Services Group

Donald K. Jenny
Senior Vice President and Senior
Program Manager

William S. Jones

Executive Vice President and
Rutherford County Area
Executive

M. Glenn Layne

Senior Vice President and Senior
Credit Officer
Rutherford Counity

Robert A. McCabe, Jr.
Chairmuan

Charles B. McMahan
Executive Vice President and
Senior Credit Officer

INVESTOR RELATIONS

www.pnfp.com or contact:

Shareholders and others seeking a copy of the Company’s public
filings should visit the Investor Relations seclion of our website al

Chief Financial OfYicer
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

211 Commerce Strect, Suite 300
Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 744-3742

<

P. Barry Moody

Executive Vice President and
Manager

Pinnacle Asset Maunagement .

Martha Olsen
Executive Vice President and
Chief People Officer

Hugh M. Queener
Executive Vice President und
Chief Administrative Officer

James O. Sweeney, 111

Senior Vice President
and Manager, Client
Services Group

Rutherford County

M. Terry Turner
President and
Chief Executive Officer

James E. White
Executive Vice President and
Chief Lending Officer

James L. Shaub 11
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Southeast Waffles, LLC

Reese L. Smith [T
President
Haury & Smith Contractors, Inc.

M. Terry Turner
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.,
DIRECTOR EMERITUS
Robert E. McNeilly, Jn
Retired Chairman of First
American’s Nashville Bank
and President of First
American Trust Company

GENERAL -
COUNSEL

Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
Nashville, Tennessce

INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED
PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING
FIRM

KPMG LLP
Nashville, Tennessee

STOCK
LISTING

The common stock of Pinnacle
Financial Pantners, ing. is traded on
the Nasdaq Global Sclect market
under the trading symbol “PNFP”

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Shareholders desiring to change address or ownership of stock, report
lost certificates or 10 consolidate accounts should contact:

Registrar and Transfer Company

P.O. Box-1010

Cranford, NJ 07016-3572

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Annual Mceting of Sharcholders will convene at 11 a.m. on Tuesday, April 17. 2007. The meeting will be held at Pinnacle Financial Partners,
211 Commerce Street, Nashville, TN. Further information regarding this meeting can be found in the firm’s proxy staternent for the 2007 Annual Meeting.




" 424 Donelson Pike

Zinnacle

FINANCIAL PARTNERS .

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.
211 Commerce Street, Suite 300 |

Nashville, TN 37201
(615) 893-1234

Bedford County Location
Pinnacle Shelbyville

604 North Main St.
Shelbyville, TN 37160
(931) 684-6166

Davidson Count; Locatmns
Pinnacle Donelson

Nashville, TN 37214
(615) 743-6010

Pinnacle Downtown Nashvilie
211 Commerce Street, Suite 300
Nashville, TN 37201

{615) 744-3705

Pinnacle Green Hills
2307 Crestmoor Drive
Nashville, TN 37215
(615) 743-3500

Pinnacle Rivergate

847 Conference Drive
Goodlettsville, TN 37072
(615) 744-3290

Pinnacle West End
2300 West End Avenue
Nashville, TN 37203
(615) 690-4000

=

EOUAL.

LENDER

114 West College St.
Murfreesboro, TN 37130
(615) 893-1234

2035 5.E. Broad St.
Murfr;esboro TN 37127
{615)-893- 1234

|645 \J W Broad Sl
Murfrcesbom‘TN 37129
(6]5) 893: 1234 -

123 Cason Lane
Murfrcesboro aTN 37]28
(6|5) 893- 1234

]745 Memondl Blvd
Murfrccsboro 'IIN 37129
(615) 893-1234;, / 'z

2604 South Church St.
Murfieesbore, TN 37128
(615) 893-1234

Pinnacle Smyrna:

269 South Lowry St.
Smyrna, TN 37167
(615) 893-1234

467 Sam Ridley Parkway West

Smyrna, TN 37167
(615) 893-1234

Rutherford County Locations
Pinnacle Murfrecsboro:

. 7040 Carothers ]’arkway
" Franklin, TN 37067

Sumner County Locatlon
Pinnacle Hendcr,onwllc
270 East Main St. |
Hendersonville, TN 37075
(615) 690-4045

Williamson Cnunly Locations
Pinnacle Brentwood

7029 Church Slr#el East
Brcntwood TN 37027
(615} 744-5100

Pinnacle Cool Spnng‘;

(615) 744-3770

Pinnacle Franklin
216 South: Roya] Ouaks Boulevard
Franklin, TN 37064
(615) 690-4030




